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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBREE

Year ended 31 December
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On behalf of the board (the
“Directors”) of AVIC International Holding (H

“Board”) of directors (the
K) Limited (the
“Company”), | am pleased to present the annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2017.

OVERALL REVIEW

In 2017, the Group recorded revenue from continuing
operations of HK$1,520,710,000 (2016: HK$102,786,000) and
loss attributable to owners of the parent of HK$288,481,000
(2016: HK$685,842,000). Basic loss per share amounted to
HK¢5.23 (2016: HK¢12.43). The return on equity, calculated on
the basis of profit/loss attributable to owners of the parent as a
percentage of equity attributable to owners of the parent as of
31 December 2017, was =17% (2016: =35%).

The improvement in loss position was mainly attributable to:
(1) the decrease in the share of losses of the joint venture
and associates by HK$199,561,000 from HK$218,382,000 in
2016 to HK$18,821,000 in 2017,
value loss on an equity investment at fair value through profit
or loss by HK$191,237,000 from HK$198,094,000 in 2016 to
HK$6,857,000 in 2017, (3) the decrease in the fair value loss
on derivative financial instruments by HK$97,221,000 from
HK$108,558,000 in 2016 to HK$11,337,000 in 2017, (4) a
one-off gain on disposal of convertible loans of HK$87,151,000

(2) the decrease in the fair

recorded, and (5) the decrease in the impairment of available-
for-sale investments by HK$66,827,000 from HK$134,107,000
in 2016 to HK$67,280,000 in 2017, even though properties
under development and completed properties held for sale have
been written down to net realisable value and resulted in a loss
of HK$296,848,000 (2016: Nil) which was included in the cost
of sales.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TRBEUREEEFNRR DT
BUSINESS REVIEW

Property development and investment business

Currently, two projects are in progress for the property
development and investment business. One is located at the
Southern side of Zhongshan Road of the Shahekou District of
the Dalian City (“Dalian Project”), and another is situated in a
newly developed residential area with communal facilities in the
Liangjiangxin District of Chongqing (“Chongging Project”).

Dalian Project comprises four parcels of land having a total
site area of approximately 46,938 square meter (excluding
communal site area). A large-scale development project, the
International Square, is being constructed comprising offices,
retail shops and residential buildings. The total saleable area
of Dalian Project upon completion is approximately 350,488
square meter. Dalian Project is currently in the normal
development and construction phase, and pre-sale of certain
residential and office space of the International Square has
commenced since June 2013. Saleable area of 244,885 square
meter has been completed as at 31 December 2017, of which
172,958 square meter has been sold, 18,299 square meter
was available for rent and included in investment properties,
and the remaining was included in completed properties held
for sale. As at 31 December 2017, the total saleable area of
properties under development was approximately 105,603
square meter.

Chongging Project comprises twelve parcels of land with a
total site area of approximately 375,252 square meter and is
currently in the early development phase.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2017, the properties under development
and completed properties held for sale amounted to
HK$2,937,160,000 (2016: HK$4,105,317,000) and
investment properties amounted to HK$368,639,000 (2016:
HK$315,866,000). The customer deposits, which represent
the proceeds of the pre-sale of properties, amounted
to HK$217,981,000 (2016: HK$920,238,000). Property
development and investment business recorded revenue of
HK$1,520,710,000 (2016: HK$102,786,000) and gross loss of
HK$185,812,000 (2016: gross profit of HK$28,517,000) for
the year. The main reason for the gross loss was due to the
loss of HK$296,848,000 (2016: Nil) arisen from writing down
properties under development and completed properties held
for sale to net realisable value and included in the cost of sales.
The net realisable value was determined based on valuations
performed by an independent professionally qualified valuer.
As a result, the property development and investment
business segment recorded a loss of HK$267,833,000 (2016:
HK$47,058,000) for the year.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Disposal of convertible loans

During the year, convertible loans which have been fully
impaired were disposed of to an independent third party at
a consideration of HK$87,151,000. As a result, a gain on
disposal of convertible loans of HK$87,151,000 (2016: Nil) was
recognised.

Convertible bonds

The Group held convertible bonds issued by Peace Map
Holding Limited (“PMH") and AVIC Joy Holdings (HK) Limited
("AVIC Joy"), respectively, both are listed companies in Hong
Kong. These convertible bonds are hybrid instruments that
include non-derivative host contracts and the embedded
derivatives. The non-derivative host contracts, representing
the bond components, have been designated as available-for-
sale investments. The embedded derivatives, representing the
conversion options, have been designated as derivative financial
instruments.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ETRBEUAREEENRRE DM

The Group's derivative financial instruments are managed and
their performance is evaluated on a fair value basis. Any fair
value gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Fair values
are stated based on valuations performed by independent
professionally qualified valuers, which are mainly influenced by
the prices of the underlying securities and the time value of the
derivative financial instruments.

The Group’s portfolio of derivative financial instruments as at
31 December 2017 consisted of the derivatives at fair values of
Nil (2016: HK$9,277,000) and HK$1,000 (2016: HK$2,061,000)
embedded in the convertible bonds issued by PMH and
AVIC Joy, respectively. During the year, a fair value loss of
HK$11,337,000 (2016: HK$108,558,000) was recognised in
respect of the derivatives embedded in the convertible bonds
issued by PMH and AVIC Joy, which was mainly due to the drop
in the share prices of both companies, as well as the coming
maturity of both convertible bonds.

Due to the decline in the fair value of the bond components
of the convertible bonds issued by PMH and the existence
of objective evidence of impairment, an impairment of
HK$18,795,000 (2016: Nil) was recorded, which was included
in the impairment of available-for-sale investments.

Equity investment at fair value through profit or loss

The Group held shares issued by PMH and classified the
investment as an equity investment at fair value through profit
or loss. During the year, the Group recorded a fair value loss
on an equity investment at fair value through profit or loss of
HK$6,857,000 (2016: HK$198,094,000) due to the drop in the
share price of PMH.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Impairment of a listed equity available-for-sale
investment

The Group held shares issued by AVIC Joy and classified
the investment as an available-for-sale investment. Due
to the significant decline in the share price of AVIC Joy
during the year, an impairment of HK$48,485,000 (2016:
HK$134,107,000) was recorded, which was included in the

impairment of available-for-sale investments.

Joint venture and associates

During the year, the Group recorded share of losses of the
joint venture and associates in an aggregate of HK$18,821,000
(2016: HK$218,382,000).

Administrative expenses

During the year, the Group recorded administrative expenses
from continuing operations of HK$73,718,000 (2016:
HK$41,611,000).
expenses arisen from an extreme very substantial acquisition

The increase was mainly due to the

and connected transaction of the Company, amounted to
HK$21,742,000.

LIQUIDITY, CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has consistently maintained sufficient working
capital. As at 31 December 2017, the Group had current
assets of HK$3,825,763,000 (2016: HK$4,969,966,000),
including cash and bank balances and time deposits in an
aggregate of HK$627,140,000 (2016: HK$605,925,000).
The Group's current liabilities as at 31 December 2017 were
HK$980,982,000 (2016: HK$1,692,802,000).
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ETRBEUAREEENRE DM

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s equity attributable
to owners of the parent amounted to HK$1,732,505,000
(2016: HK$1,973,272,000), comprising issued capital of
HK$551,959,000 (2016: HK$551,959,000) and reserves of
HK$1,180,546,000 (2016: HK$1,421,313,000).
interest-bearing debts, including loans from a fellow subsidiary
of HK$923,077,000 (2016: HK$1,234,637,000), loans from
an intermediate holding company of HK$503,550,000 (2016:
HK$475,419,000) and interest-bearing bank borrowings of Nil
(2016: HK$230,134,000) are mainly denominated in Renminbi
and arranged on a fixed rate basis. The Group’s gearing ratio,

The Group’s

calculated on the basis of the interest-bearing debts as a
percentage of equity attributable to owners of the parent plus
the interest-bearing debts, was 45% (2016: 50%).

The Group's banking facilities are mainly utilised for general
working capital requirements.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, there were no charges on the
Group's assets. Details of the charges on the Group’s assets as
at 31 December 2016 are set out in note 32(a) to the financial
statements.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group’s foreign currency exposures primarily arise from
certain sales or purchases by operating units in Renminbi. In
view of the fact that the Group tries to match its assets and
liabilities with the same currency, the Group’s exposure to
foreign currency risk is minimal.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Company carried out an extreme very substantial
acquisition and connected transaction, and continued exploring
opportunities to dispose of its real estate assets. As set out
in the announcement of the Company dated 19 September
2017, the Company (as purchaser) entered into an acquisition
agreement with substantial shareholders of the Company, AVIC
International (HK) Group Limited (“AVIC HK") (as seller) and
AVIC International Holding Corporation (as seller guarantor),
pursuant to which the Company agreed to acquire the entire
issued share capital of Motto Investment Limited (“Motto”)
and the shareholder’s loan notes owing by Motto to AVIC
HK (the “Acquisition”), at an aggregate consideration of
HK$2,400,000,000, out of which HK$1,000,000,000 was
satisfied by cash and HK$1,400,000,000 was satisfied by
way of allotment and issue of shares of the Company. The
core businesses of Motto and its subsidiaries include: (a)
the design, development and production of general aviation
aircraft piston engines fueled by gasoline and diesel fuels as
well as engine spare parts; and (b) aftermarket services and
supports for general aviation aircraft. The Directors believe that
the Acquisition will provide an opportunity for the Group to
capture the prospect of aviation industry, which will enable the
Group to enhance the stability of revenue and cash flows and
reduce the Group's reliance on property development in China
which is undergoing a downward risk and subject to tightened
government regulatory requirements. Further details of the
Acquisition were included in the circular of the Company dated
29 December 2017. Subsequent to the reporting period, the
Acquisition was completed on 7 February 2018.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ETRBEUREEEFNRR DT
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the significant contingent liabilities of the Group are
set out in note 42 to the financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND REGULATORY
COMPLIANCE

Environmental protection and the effective use of natural
resources have gradually become an important concept in
modern economic growth. We follow the major trends in
environmental protection around the world. Our operations are
also in an effort to increasingly integrate this concept. Based on
new technology and management approach, we strictly control
our environmental impact and resource usage, in an effort to
forge cleaner production featuring lower pollution and lower
emissions toward sustainable development.

We strictly follow all applicable laws and regulations released
by the relevant authorities which are material to us. Throughout
the year, there was no incidence of non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
us.

The Company's environmental policies and performance are
summarised in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report on page 36 to 48 of this annual report.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2017, there were 70 (2016: 73) employees
in the Group. The employee wages and salaries for the
continuing operations, excluding directors’ remuneration,
amounted to HK$31,231,000 (2016: HK$28,586,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2017. The Group recognises
the importance of good relationship with employees. The
Directors believe that the working environment and benefits
offered to employees have contributed to building good staff
relations and retention. The Group’s remuneration policies are
formulated based on the performance of individual employees
and market conditions and are reviewed regularly. The Group
also provides other staff benefits including medical and life
insurance, and grants discretionary incentive bonuses and
share options to eligible staff based on their performance and
contributions to the Group.
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CHAIRMAN'’'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a) On 7 February 2018, the Company completed
the Acquisition, as detailed in the section headed
“MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS"” above.
A total of 3,783,783,783 new shares of the Company
have been issued as fully paid to AVIC HK on 7 February
2018. Accordingly, immediately after the completion of
the Acquisition, the issued share capital of the Company
increased to HK$930,337,478, and the total number of
issued shares increased to 9,303,374,783.

(b) On 6 March 2018, the convertible bond issued by AVIC
Joy with a principal amount of HK$51,776,000 matured
and was redeemed by AVIC Joy.

OUTLOOK

The Company, as an investment holding company, is committed
to investing in the general aviation business and other fields,
and aims to enhance its value and create long-term return
for its shareholders in terms of returns on investments
and operating profits. The newly acquired general aviation
aircraft piston engine business has a potential for return in
the long run and will provide the Group with a source of
revenue and profit and thus asset growth. Given that China
is encouraging the development of general aviation industry,
particularly the reform of low-altitude airspace management,
the general aviation business will have a golden opportunity
for development in future. Property development in China
is undergoing a downward risk and subject to tightened
government regulatory requirements, and the Company is
continuing to explore opportunities to dispose of its real
estate assets. The Group will identify the projects with a
bright development prospect, and will continue to review and
optimise its business portfolio.
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TRBEUREEEFNRR DT
APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my appreciation
to my fellow Directors and all our staff for their support, hard
work and dedication.

By order of the Board
AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

Liu Hongde
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 March 2018
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Hongde, aged 57, has been an Executive Director,
the Chairman of the Company, and a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company since December
2016. He is a PhD in Management Science and Engineering
of Harbin Engineering University (BB & T2 K2 ) and a
professoriate senior engineer. He enjoys the special government
allowances of the State Council. Mr. Liu has extensive
working experience in the areas of operation management,
scientific research management, organisational and cultural
development. Mr. Liu is currently the chairman of the board
of directors of AVIC International Holding Corporation (“AVIC
a director of AVIC International (HK) Group
Limited (“AVIC International (HK) Group”) and the supervisor
of Aviation Industry Corporation of China, Ltd ("AVIC"), all
being substantial shareholders of the Company. Mr. Liu was

International”),

appointed in February 2017 as an executive director of AVIC
International Holdings Limited (“AVIC IHL"), a company listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Prior to joining AVIC International, Mr. Liu was the
deputy general manager of Harbin Dongan Engine Corporation
(BEBERLEBHNT), the general manager and chairman
of Harbin Dongan Auto Engine Co., Ltd. (B AR L RE
) N %15 AR A A, which shares are listed and traded on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange), the director and the deputy
executive general manager of Harbin Aviation Industry (Group)
Co., Ltd. (EREMZETE (KB ) AR AT, the chairman of
Jiangxi Changhe Automobile Co., Ltd. (T 78 &1 /558 %15 & R
A A, which shares are listed and traded on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange), the general manager of AVIC Automobile Industry
Corporation (FFEMZE=AETEHENF),
manager of AviChina Industry & Technology Company Limited,

the deputy general

which shares are listed on the Stock Exchange, the head of the
corporate cultural departments of the China Aviation Industry
Corporation Il (FEIfiZE T % — £ E /2 5]) and AVIC, and the
vice executive chairman of the trade union of AVIC.
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EENEEREZER

Mr. Pan Linwu, aged 53, has been an Executive Director of
the Company since February 2008 and the Deputy Chairman
of the Company since January 2013. He holds a Master's
degree in Aeronautical Engineering from Beihang University,
an EMBA from Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business, a
Bachelor’s degree in Engineering from Beihang University and a
Specialised Diploma in Financial Accounting from Beijing Open
University. In 1989, Mr. Pan served as the Deputy Head of the
General Administration Division of the Audit Department of
the Ministry of Aero-Space Industry. In September 1993, he
was transferred to AVIC International and served as the Deputy
Director of the Audit Division and was promoted to Director
in May 1996. Mr. Pan had been the Chief Financial Officer of
AVIC International since 2001, and he was also appointed as
the Deputy General Manager of AVIC International in April
2012. In addition, he was the Executive Director of AVIC IHL
from June 2012 to February 2017. He was also a Director of
Tacko International Limited (“TacKo”), which is a substantial
shareholder of the Company from October 2013 to April 2017.

Mr. Lai Weixuan, aged 53, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since June 2015. He is a senior accountant,
holding doctorate degree in Management of Tongji University
and an EMBA of Guanghua School of Management, Peking
University. Mr. Lai is now the Chief Executive Officer of
AVIC International and a director of AVIC International (HK)
Group. Mr. Lai joined AVIC International Shenzhen Company
Limited (“AVIC Shenzhen”, a wholly owned subsidiary of AVIC
International) in 1983. He previously served as the deputy
general manager of AVIC Shenzhen, the Chairman of Fiyta
Holdings Limited (“Fiyta”),
Microelectronics Co., Ltd.("Tianma”) and the chairman of

the deputy chairman of Tianma

Rainbow Department Store Co., Ltd. (“Rainbow Department
Store”).
companies listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange. He is also

Fiyta, Tianma and Rainbow Department Store are

a director of a subsidiary of the Group. Mr. Lai has rich
experience in finance and operation management, and once
acted as an executive director of AVIC IHL from 2004 to 2012
and was appointed as an executive director again in 2014.
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Ms. Zhou Chunhua, aged 52, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since December 2016. She is a professorate
senior accountant, EMBA of Cheung Kong Graduate School
of Business. Ms. Zhou has extensive working experience in
the areas of financial management, capital operation, audit
supervision and risk management. Ms. Zhou was appointed as
the deputy general manager and the chief accountant of AVIC
International in December 2016. She is currently an executive
director of AVIC IHL, a director of AVIC International, AVIC
International (HK) Group, AVIC International Investment Limited
and the Chairman of A& & BRR FEE /A F). Before that,
she was the assistant to manager and vice chief accountant of
Shenyang Liming Aero-Engine Group Corporation Ltd. (/&[5
RAMZEEPHEEFR A R]), the director, deputy general
manager and chief accountant of AVIC Beijing Keeven Aviation
Instrument Co., Ltd. (M I XL REEME=EHRERAF),
the deputy manager of the audit department of AVIC and
the deputy general manager and chief accountant of AVIC
Electromechanical Systems Company Limited (Rl E £ 45
FRA 7)) as well as a director, deputy general manager and chief
accountant of AVIC Electromechanical Systems Co., Ltd. (R fi
TEHBEZXRGIM AR AF], which shares are listed and traded
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange).

Mr. Xu Hongge, aged 46, has been an Executive Director and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company since June 2015.
He holds a Bachelor’s degree in architecture from Southeast
University. He also completed the Post-EMBA program from
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business in 2010. Mr. Xu
previously served as an executive vice president of China
Vanke Co., Ltd, a company listed on the Stock Exchange and
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. He has over 24 years of experience
in property development industry.
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EENREEREZER
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chow Wai Kam, /2, aged 70, has been a Non-Executive
Director of the Company since June 2015. He obtained a
Bachelor of Arts degree in Architectural Studies and a Bachelor
of Architecture degree from the University of Hong Kong in
November 1970 and November 1972, respectively. He has
been an Authorised Person (List of Architects) and a Registered
Architect since July 1976 and January 1991, respectively. He
was also admitted as a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of
Architects since August 2001. He is currently an Executive
Director of CK Asset Holdings Limited (“CKAH"), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chow joined the Hutchison
Group in July 1995 and was the Group Managing Director of
the property and hotels divisions of the Hutchison Group since
2000. He is now the Group Managing Director of Hutchison
Property Group Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of CKAH.
He has over 40 years of experience in project management and
architectural design for various developments, including hotel,
residential, commercial, industrial and school projects in Hong
Kong, the Mainland China and overseas.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David, /2 SBS, aged 74, has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
May 1999. He is also a member and the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Mr. Chu received his Master of Business Administration
degree from Harvard University after degrees in Electrical
Engineering and Management at Northeastern University and
was awarded an honorary Doctor of Public Service degree from
Northeastern University. He worked for a number of sizeable
international corporations such as Bank of America, General
Electric Co. and Jardine Matheson & Company Limited. Mr.
Chu is an independent non-executive director of Chuang's
China Investments Limited, Chuang’s Consortium International
Limited and Zhuhai Holdings Investment Group Limited, all
being listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Li Ka Fai, David, aged 63, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since December 2007. He is
also a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor of
Science honours degree in Chemistry and Administration.
He is the deputy managing partner of Li, Tang, Chen & Co.
CPA (Practising). Mr. Li is also a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, UK, The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, UK as well as The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales. He is
an independent non-executive director of China Merchants
Port Holdings Company Limited, China-Hongkong Photo
Products Holdings Limited, Cosmopolitan International Holdings
Limited, Goldlion Holdings Limited, Shanghai Industrial Urban
Development Group Limited and Wai Yuen Tong Medicine
Holdings Limited, all being listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Zhang Ping, aged 53, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee
of the Company on 26 May 2017. He received a doctoral
degree in Economics from Chinese Academy of Social Science
Graduate School (R EIH ERIZ2RHFTER) . Mr. Zhang
started working at the Institute of Economics under Chinese
Academy of Social Science (7 B4t & R} B2 Fx £ B M FTFT ) since
July 1988. He once led and organised key national research
project on economics. He published several essays based on
theory research and surveys. His major research fields are the
growth of China economy and macroeconomic policies. Mr.
Zhang was an independent non-executive director of AVIC IHL,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange, until December 2014.
He is currently an independent director of Minsheng Tonghui
Asset Management Co., Ltd (REBBEEETEBRLAA)) .
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EENEEREZER

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhao Yang, aged 47, joined the Group in January 2017 as
the Chief Financial Officer and is responsible for the Group's
corporate finance, accounting and treasury functions. He is also
a director of Tacko and certain subsidiaries of the Company. He
holds a Bachelor’s degree in Finance from Nankai University and
EMBA degree from China Europe International Business School.
Mr. Zhao Yang is a senior economist. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Zhao held senior management positions in different
companies, of which two are Shenzhen listed companies.
Mr. Zhao has over 24 years of experience in accounting and
finance.

Mr. Zhong Rong, aged 41, Deputy Chief Financial Officer,
joined the Group in July 2015 and is responsible for assisting
the Chief Financial Officer for the Group’s corporate finance,
accounting and treasury functions. He holds a Master's degree
in management and is a member of The Chinese Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He has over 18 years of
experience in accounting and finance.

Ms. Wu Shaohua, aged 32, joined the Group in January 2017
as Deputy Chief Financial Officer and is responsible for assisting
the Chief Financial Officer for the Group’s corporate finance,
accounting and treasury functions. She holds a Master’s degree
in accounting from University of International Business and
Economics and MBA degree from Missouri State University.
Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Wu held senior management
positions in different companies. She has almost 10 years of
experience in accounting and finance and international aviation
business.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain good standards of
corporate governance practices by emphasising transparency,
accountability and responsibility to its shareholders.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company applied
the principles of, and complied with all the code provisions
and, where applicable, the recommended best practices of the
(the "CG Code"”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities

“Corporate Governance Code”
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), except as noted
hereunder:

1. Other than the Non-executive Director appointed on 23
June 2015 and the Independent Non-executive Director
appointed on 26 May 2017, the other two Independent
Non-executive Directors are appointed without specific
terms (code provision A.4.1), details of which are
mentioned under the section headed “NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS"” in this report; and

2. the Company does not have a nomination committee
(code provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4), details of which are
mentioned under the section headed “BOARD OF

DIRECTORS” in this report.

The Company will periodically review and improve its corporate

governance practices with reference to the latest development

of corporate governance.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
(the "Model Code")

as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the Company’s

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers”

code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
A reminder is served by the Company to each Director twice
annually of the black out period that Director cannot deal in
the securities and derivatives (if any) of the Company.
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ERERRE

Directors are required to notify the Chief Executive Officer
(who is also a Director) and receive a dated written
acknowledgement before dealing in the securities and
derivatives (if any) of the Company. In the case of the Chief
Executive Officer himself, he must notify the Chairman and
receive a dated written acknowledgement before any dealing.

Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard as set out in the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Company has also established a written guideline no less
exacting than the Model Code for securities transactions by
relevant employees (including any employee of the Company
or director or employee of a subsidiary who, because of his
office or employment in the Company or a subsidiary, is likely
to possess inside information in relation to the securities of the
Company). No incidence of non-compliance was noted by the
Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by the Board which has the
responsibility for leadership and control of the Company. The
Directors are collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising the Company's
affairs.

Currently, the Board comprises five Executive Directors,
including Chairman and Deputy Chairman, and four Non-
executive Directors, including three Independent Non-
executive Directors. An Independent Non-executive Director has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as prescribed by the Listing
Rules. 8 out of the 9 Directors served the full year for the year
ended 31 December 2017. The biographical details of the
Directors are set out on pages 13 to 18 of this annual report.
There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship) between Board members.
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Notwithstanding any contractual or other terms on which
any Director may be appointed or engaged, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at least once every three years. The Directors to
retire in every year shall be those who have been longest in
office since their last election but as between persons who
became Directors on the same day those to retire shall (unless
they otherwise agree between themselves) be determined by
lot. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election. A new
Director appointed by the Board after the preceding annual
general meeting shall hold office only until the next following
general meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a casual
vacancy) or until the next following annual general meeting of
the Company (in the case of an addition to the existing Board)
and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

The Company does not have a nomination committee. The
Board is directly in charge of nomination of Directors. In
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, the Board shall
have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint
any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board but so that the number of Directors so
appointed shall not exceed the maximum number determined
from time to time by the members in general meeting. For
nomination, consideration will be made to the qualifications
and capabilities of the nominated individual. During the year,
the Board selected and recommended the appointment of Mr.
Zhang Ping as Independent Non-executive Director.
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At present, the Company does not consider it necessary to
have a nomination committee as the Board is responsible for
reviewing the structure, size, diversity and composition of the
Board and the appointment of new Directors from time to
time to ensure that it has a balanced composition of skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the businesses
of the Company, and the Board is also responsible for assessing
the independence of each Independent Non-executive Director
and reviewing the succession plan for the Directors, in
particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain
diversity on the Board in order to maintaining a competitive
advantage of the Board. The Company seeks to achieve board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to the talents, skills, regional and
industry experience, background, gender and other qualities.
The Board will consider and if appropriate, set measurable
objectives to implement the Policy and review such objectives to
ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made
towards achieving those objectives. The Board will review the
Policy, from time to time, to ensure its continued effectiveness.

The Board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors
its financial performance and maintains effective oversight
over the management. The Board members are fully committed
to their roles and have acted in good faith to maximise the
shareholders’ value in the long run, and have aligned the
Group’s goals and directions with the prevailing economic and
market conditions.
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The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate

governance functions under the requirements of the CG

Code. The major role and functions of the Board regarding its

corporate governance include:

to develop and review the Company's policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Company;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees of
the Company and Directors; and

to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this report.

The following is a summary of the work of the Board in respect

of corporate governance matters during the year ended 31
December 2017:

1.

performed corporate governance duties under the CG
Code;

reviewed the Company's corporate governance policies
and practices;

reviewed the connected transactions and the continuing
connected transactions of the Group;

reviewed the compliance with the CG Code; and
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5. reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company through the
Audit Committee.

The senior management of the Company is delegated
with responsibilities in the day-to-day management and
administration of the Company and makes operational and
business decisions within the control and delegation framework
of the Company.

The Company has issued formal letters of appointment for
Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of their
appointment.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal actions against its Directors and officers. The
Company reviews the extent of insurance cover each year.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary who is responsible for ensuring that
board procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations, are
followed; and also regularly updates the Board on governance
and regulatory matters. Any Director, in the furtherance of
his or her duties, may take independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances through the Chairman at the
expense of the Company. The availability of professional advice
extends to the Audit and Remuneration Committees.

Minutes of Board meetings are taken by the Company Secretary
and, together with any supporting Board papers, are available
to all Board members. During the year ended 31 December

2017, seven regular Board meetings were held by the Company.
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The attendance record of Directors at regular Board meetings ®EEZERHE_Z—+F+_-_A=1+—HILFE
and other Committee meetings as well as general meetings WHEFEEES@THEZNEMEZESEHIUL
during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in the MEAREHLCHEHNTXK:

table below:

Number of regular meetings or Number of general
meetings attended/held meetings attended/held
HE/BTEHERAEEAH HE/BTREAERH
Remuneration Audit
Board Committee  Committee Annual Special
Director Bx Exg FHMEEE EKRZEES BEF 5l
Executive Directors HITEF
Liu Hongde Bt 717 22 = 11 0/0
Pan Linwu MR 7/7 - - 171 0/0
Lai Weixuan BEE 717 = = 11 0/0
Zhou Chunhua A&RE 5/7 = = 0/1 0/0
Xu Hongge TR 1/7 = = 0/1 0/0
Non-executive Director HHITEF
Chow Wai Kam A% 7/7 - - 171 0/0
Independent Non-executive B HHTEE
Directors
Chu Yu Lin, David K2 B 7/7 2/2 3/3 171 0/0
Li Ka Fai, David TREE 717 2/2 3/3 I7Al 0/0
Zhang Ping** R x 4/4 - 2/2 0/0 0/0
Li Zhaoxi* ZJRER* 3/3 - m 0N 0/0
J Mr. Li Zhaoxi retired on 26 May 2017. Up to the date of his  * TR -_F—+tFRA-TBRE-HZE
retirement, three Board meetings and one general meeting were tERERAIEFARRITREEFEEER R
held during the year. BREKRE -

R Mr. Zhang Ping was appointed as director of the Company on 26  ** KREEER_T—EFRA-T"BEZTEA

May 2017. Four Board meetings, two Audit Committee meetings RARREF - HMHNEG BESFFREARM
and no general meeting were held during the period from the date BRTHOREZSER MABEREECTE
of his appointment up to the end of the year. KEBEBRITRRARE -

During the year ended 31 December 2017, a meeting was held RBEZFT—LHF+-A=+—HILEFEAR"
by the Chairman with the Non-executive Directors (including T/REFATEF (BEBUFRTESF)E
Independent Non-executive Directors) without presence of the  ZBAITEFHFEMBN NRITT —REH-
Executive Directors. Save for the annual general meeting, no HREFEFREIN KT FRRART
special general meeting was held during the year 2017. BRRAFRIAE -
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL EERIIREXRE

DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed director is given a comprehensive, BZFEZANEFTELTL2HE EARSEAH
formal and tailored induction training to ensure that he is fully MRAMITBE  UERMGFATE2MNERNSE
aware of his responsibilities under statute and common law, the EXBR R E@E - EMARR AR REMEER
Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements. ENRBE -

All directors are encouraged to participate in continuous ZARQAAHEEEREELEFEZIERRE LR
professional development to develop and refresh their WHEHMEMNBERE - BE-_T—+F+_7
knowledge and skills. During the year ended 31 December =+—HIIFE ARaAREBEELRER
2017, the Company arranged an in-house training on SEZHBEISZHRNBE -RIEZEFiRHE
connected transactions for the Directors and senior MR EFR -_E—tFREIUANE:
management of the Group. According to the records provided

by the Directors, the Directors received the following training

during the year 2017:

Type of continuous professional
development programmes

BESERRITEER
Reading materials Attending briefing
and updates sessions/seminars

Director = MEMHEEHRER HESNS/ANE
Executive Directors HITEF
Liu Hongde 24tE v v
Pan Linwu EMRER v v
Lai Weixuan FEE v v
Zhou Chunhua IEE= v v
Xu Hongge wt i v S
Non-executive Director HHITEE
Chow Wai Kam BE % v v
Independent Non-executive Directors &/ F#iT7ZE F
Chu Yu Lin, David K 4h Bk v v
Li Ka Fai, David ERE v v
Zhang Ping** g xx v v
Li Zhaoxi* ZIKER* v v
g retired on 26 May 2017. * R-ZB—tHFHEAZ-+XHEBE-

*x appointed on 26 May 2017.

*i R-ZE—tFRA-t+HEZE-
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the role of the
Chairman is separated from that of the Chief Executive Officer.
Currently, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company are Mr. Liu Hongde and Mr. Xu Hongge respectively.

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board,
ensuring the effectiveness of the Board in all aspects of its role
and for setting its agenda and taking into account any matters
proposed by other Directors for inclusion in the agenda.
Agendas and accompanying Board papers are circulated where
possible at least three days before the time of a Board meeting.
The Chairman is also responsible for making sure all Directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings. The
Chief Executive Officer is delegated with the authorities to
manage the business of the Group in all aspects effectively.

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer has been clearly established and set out
in writing.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of skills and
experience to the Group. They serve the important function
of providing adequate checks and balances for safeguarding
the interests of shareholders and the Company as a whole.
The Board considers that three out of the four Non-executive
Directors are independent in character and judgment and fulfill
the independence guidelines set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

Other than the Non-executive Director appointed on 23 June
2015 and the Independent Non-executive Director appointed
on 26 May 2017, the other two Independent Non-executive
Directors are appointed without specific terms, but are subject
to retirement by rotation as explained above under section
headed "BOARD OF DIRECTORS".
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises one
Executive Director, Mr. Liu Hongde, and two Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David
(as chairman) and Mr. Li Ka Fai, David. The Remuneration
Committee is responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration. The role, authority
and duties of the Remuneration Committee are clearly set out
in its terms of reference.

The Remuneration Committee met twice during the year 2017
to review and recommend the remuneration of Non-executive
Directors and to review and approve the remuneration
packages of Executive Directors and senior management. The
attendance of each member is set out in the table above under
section headed “BOARD OF DIRECTORS".

The primary goal of the remuneration policy on executive
remuneration packages is to enable the Company to retain
and motivate Executive Directors by linking their compensation
with performance as measured against corporate objectives.
Under the policy, no director or any of his associates is allowed
in deciding his own remuneration. During the year 2017,
the Remuneration Committee has adopted the model “to
determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management”.
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Details of remuneration of members of senior management of
the Company by band for the year ended 31 December 2017
are set out below:

EEERRSE

HE-_Z2—+F+-A=+—BLEE XA
AEESEBzMESEREIMT

Number of
individuals
Remuneration & AE
HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,000/ 7t £ 1,500,0007% JT 2

Details of Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16
to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial
statements respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established
in compliance with rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the
purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over the
Group's financial reporting process, risk management
and internal control systems and the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal audit function. It currently comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chu Yu Lin,
David (as chairman), Mr. Li Ka Fai, David and Mr. Zhang Ping.
The Audit Committee met three times during the year 2017
to review the interim and final results, the interim and annual
reports, the external auditor's engagement letter and fee, the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group,
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal audit function and
the continuing connected transactions. The attendance of each
member is set out in the table above under the section headed
“BOARD OF DIRECTORS”. The duties of the Audit Committee
are clearly set out in its terms of reference.

Full minutes of meetings are kept and sent to all members of
the Board. Matters raised at the meetings were reported back
to the Board so that due consideration was given as to the
action to be taken.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Ernst & Young are the auditors of the Company. The services
provided by them include audit and non-audit. Fees for auditing
and non-auditing (including interim review, taxation and other
professional services) services for the year ended 31 December
2017 amount to HK$1,665,000 and HK$7,367,000 respectively.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors are responsible for monitoring the preparation of
financial statements of each financial period and ensuring those
financial statements provide a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for the
relevant financial period. In preparing the financial statements,
the Directors have selected appropriate accounting policies
and applied them consistently, adopted Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, made a prudent and reasonable
judgment and estimation, and, prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

The Company has timely announced and published its financial
results in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The auditors are responsible for forming an independent
opinion, based on their audit, on those financial statements
and to report their opinion solely to the members of the
Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies Act”), and
for no other purpose.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting
responsibilities is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report of
this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's risk
management and internal control systems and for reviewing
their effectiveness through the Audit Committee. These
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement, losses or fraud. Procedures have been
designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or
disposition, for maintaining proper accounting records; and for
the reliability of financial information used within the business
or for publication. Procedures have also been designed for
compliance of applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Reviews of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, were conducted by the internal audit section of the
Group from time to time. The results and recommendations
were reported to the Audit Committee and thereafter to the
Board. The adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group's
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions
have also been reviewed by the Board and Audit Committee.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, internal audit
section of the Group evaluated the effectiveness and adequacy
of the Group's risk management and internal control systems
by adopting an integrated risk assessment approach. In
addition, the Group also engaged an independent internal
control consultant to conduct independent evaluations on its
internal control. The consultant’s internal control assessment
report together with the review report of the internal audit
section were presented to the Audit Committee and the
Board for review in December 2017. No material deficiency
was identified. the Board considered that the Group's risk
management and internal control systems were adequate and
effective and the Company has complied with the provisions
on risk management and internal control of the CG Code.
The Board confirms that systems and procedures are in place
to identify, control and report on significant risks involved
in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives. Exposures
to these risks are monitored by the Board with the support
of Audit Committee, internal audit section and senior
management.
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The Company has implemented Corporate Disclosure Policy,
which set out the reporting procedures for the handling and
dissemination of inside information.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Tsui Choi Yee, Connie, the Company Secretary, is an
employee of the Company and responsible directly to the
Board. She has complied with all the qualification, experience
and training requirement under the Listing Rules.

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The updated Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws of
the Company had been posted on the Company's website at
www.avic.com.hk and the Stock Exchange’s designated website
at www.hkexnews.hk. During the year 2017, there was no
change in the Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws of the
Company.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening of a special general meeting by
shareholders

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company and the Companies
Act, the Board shall, on the requisition of shareholders holding
at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of such of the paid-up capital of the Company as at
the date of the deposit carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed duly to convene a
special general meeting of the Company.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
registered office of the Company (the “Registered Office”),
which is presently situated at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda, and may consist of
several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.
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If the Board does not within twenty-one days from the date
of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the
said date.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act, either any number of
shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date
of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which the
requisition relates; or not less than one hundred shareholders,
can request the Company in writing to (a) give to shareholders
entitled to receive notice of the next annual general meeting
notice of any resolution which may properly be moved and
is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to
shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting
sent to them any statement of not more than one thousand
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the requisitionists must be
deposited at the Registered Office with a sum reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses, not less
than six weeks before the meeting in the case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution; and not less than one week
before the meeting in the case of any other requisition.
Provided that if, an annual general meeting is called for a date
six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the
requisition though not deposited within the time required shall
be deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes
thereof.
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ERERRE

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director

Regarding the procedures for proposing a person for election as
a Director, please refer to the procedures made available under
section Corporate Governance of the Company’s website at
www.avic.com.hk.

Procedures for directing shareholder’s enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose
contact details are as follows:

Unit B, 15th Floor, United Centre
95 Queensway, Hong Kong
Fax: (852) 2915 0867

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
general meetings of the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is committed to fair disclosure, comprehensive
and transparent reporting. Effective communication with
shareholders has always been one of the Company’s priorities.
Information in relation to the Group is disseminated to
shareholders in a timely manner through various formal
channels, which include interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars.

The Company has established a shareholders’ communication
policy which is subject to review on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness.
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General meetings of the Company provide good opportunities
for direct communications between the Board and its
shareholders. The Chairman of the Board, all other
Directors and senior management endeavor to attend any
general meeting of the Company and answer queries from
shareholders. Separate resolution is proposed for each issue by
the chairman of the meeting at each general meeting. Notice
of general meeting is served together with the circular to the
shareholders at least twenty clear business days or twenty-one
clear days, whichever is the longer, before an annual general
meeting and at least ten clear business days or twenty-one
clear days, whichever is the longer, before a meeting called for
passing of a special resolution, and, at least ten clear business
days or fourteen clear days, whichever is the longer, before a
meeting other than an annual general meeting or a meeting for
the passing of a special resolution.

Detailed procedures for conducting a poll are to be explained
by the chairman of the meeting at the commencement of
the general meeting. Any questions raised from shareholders
regarding voting by way of a poll may also be answered by the
chairman of the meeting.

The 2017 annual general meeting of the Company was held
on 26 May 2017. At the meeting, a separate resolution was
proposed by the chairman of the meeting in respect of each
separate issue, including re-election of retiring directors,
and voted by way of poll. The Company announced the
results of the poll in the manner prescribed under the Listing
Rules. All Directors except for two Executive Directors and
an Independent Non-executive Director, the chairman of
the audit committee and remuneration committee and a
member of the audit committee and remuneration committee,
attended the 2017 annual general meeting and had effective
communications with shareholders.
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R #HERERRS
SCOPE OF REPORTING

This report covers the Dalian-based property development and
investment business of AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
(hereinafter the “Company”).

The reporting period is fiscal year 2017 (1 January 2017 — 31
December 31 2017), which runs consistent with the annual
report of the Company.

This report was prepared in accordance with Appendix 27
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide of the
Listing Rules, and has made general disclosures in accordance
with the
guide. The scope of reporting for this year has been extended

“Comply or Explain” requirements set out in the

to cover key performance indicators.

STAKEHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The Company deeply values efficient communication
with its stakeholders, and is committed to fair disclosure,
comprehensive and transparent reporting. Information in
relation to the Company has been disseminated in a timely
manner through various formal channels, which include interim

and annual reports, announcements and circulars.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
PERFORMANCE

The Company believes that a low-carbon economy would
become one of the key concepts for future economic
developments. To keep up with environmental protection trends
around the world, the Company’s operating model has become
increasingly integrated with this concept. New management
approaches and technology have been adopted. Reducing
impact on the environment, optimizing the use of resources,
and achieving a clean, low pollution and emission production
model would lead the Company towards a low-carbon
economy.
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Furthermore, corporate social responsibility has been given
increasingly more attention. Employment at the Company is
based on the principle of equality. The Company focused on
occupational health and safety, fulfilled product responsibility,
and assumed social responsibility such as anti-corruption
prevention mechanisms. The Company believes that one of
the driving forces in increasing its value is to fulfill its social
responsibility.

ENVIRONMENT
Emissions

Reducing emissions, preventing pollution and promoting
continuous improvement of the environment have been the
Company’s core philosophy for corporation development. The
Company has abided by government laws and regulations,
followed closely on the latest trend on international
environmental protection and worked diligently to protect
the environment. The Company has integrated environmental
management and emission reduction considerations into all
operational decisions of the company. This includes reducing
greenhouse gas and wastewater emissions, increasing energy

efficiency, and promoting recycling.

The Company prioritised the use of energy efficient equipment.
For example, low-wattage high-brightness lighting systems
have been utilised to effectively reduce energy consumption,
thus reducing greenhouse gas emissions. To decrease
wastewater discharge, the Company adopted grey water
recycling technology. Wastewater is collected, then precipitated
and filtered for reuse, which have effectively reduced

wastewater discharge.

R #HERERRS

Hp R CEOHEEETEEETET-
NRANEBERRAFERRA TEBRER
T2 BITEMEE AEHERNSEHLER
T UYHBETHEEERARSAREEND
hz—-

B
B

NE R BAR SR BN TER S A RS
BERNERBERAFALETFRBENZOE
2 RARETBMENERE R BERHE
BRHEBRERBE ”%ﬂﬁﬁlﬂf&%{%&ﬁ’ﬂﬁ BT
E-RAIBREETERBLERNEEEREZR
ASRENEERAR 2N BREROERAE
REE ISR R ARG AR RE

I BEARDEEREY -
REBERAMHES MR BRERFELE

MEfEsR R PINERATEELERER

BRI ERRA RS ﬁx&/ﬁﬂfﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ’%
MEBRRERBYERNBEN -5 —J7H"

NAEXBRAHKE BN Eh U EREK &
BINERNOBBBIBEBIRF A BRIk
BB B R °

37



38

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEMZE TEERER (58)BRAF
Annual Report 2017 —Z—+FF7R

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R #HERERRS

To reduce impact on the environment, the Company has
provided proper waste management solutions by segregating
waste, increasing the potential of downstream recycling and
appropriately discarding non-recyclable waste. The Company
has recycled and reused rubber and glass components, and has
also prioritised using prefabricated building materials such as
concrete and glass products to avoid the generation of waste
on site.

During the reporting period, there has been no case of
prosecution against the Group due to violation of any
environmental laws.

Total Greenhouse Gas Emissions aznd Intensity

Total Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Calculated range included 312 tonnes of
electricity consumption and carbon dioxide
diesel combustion from equivalent (COz-e)

stationary sources

Average greenhouse gas 0.20 kg of COz-e/m?
emissions per square metre
of floor area

Total Greenhouse Gas
Emissions (Tonnes of CO:ze)
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Total Amount Non-hazardous Waste and Intensity

57.8 tonnes
0.037g/m?

Total Amount Non-hazardous Waste

Average amount of non-hazardous
waste generated per square metre
of floor area

Total Amount of Nonhazardous
Waste (Tonnes)

BERRVAE (NH)

Tonnes g/m?2
AW ENEF S
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0 57.8
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Use of Resources

Cleaner production has been an important corporate
responsibility for the Company. Efficient use of resources in
upstream and minimisation of downstream waste have helped
in controlling and reducing pollutants discharge, which in turn
helped prevent pollution and benefited the transformation of
the entire production process.

For construction methodology, the Company has prioritized the
use of modular and prefabricated buildings to effectively reduce
consumption of raw materials.

The Company has placed significant importance on energy
management in order to achieve effective use of electrical
resources. By prioritising the use of more energy efficient
appliances, the Company would be able to reduce energy
consumption in the long run.
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BRI HERERRS

On the other hand, the Company has placed emphasis on water
resources management. Proper pipelines have been used for
water source. A rainwater collection system was installed to
fully utilise rainwater and reduced the consumption of water
from other sources. The Company has also minimised the use
of water consumption by collecting and reusing downstream
wastewater that has been treated through precipitation and
filtration.

The Company has actively promoted a paperless office
environment by encouraging the use of electronic means in
place of paper. When use of paper was necessary, the Company
would encourage double-sided printing and copying on scrap
paper with an aim to conserve trees.

Effective use of energy and other resources have helped the
Company in becoming long-term partners with our clients as

costs have been reduced.

Total Direct and Indirect Energy Consumption and Intensity

Energy

Type of Energy Consumption

Electricity 352,530 kWh

Diesel 22,991 kWh

Total 375,521 kWh
Average Total Energy Consumption

per square metre of Floor Area 0.24 kWh/m?
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Total Water Consumption and Intensity

5,326 m?
0.0034 m*/m?

Total Water Consumption
Average Total Water Consumption
per square metre of Floor Area

Total Water Consumption (m?3)

kB (MTK)

m?3
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Average Total Water Consumption per
square metre of Floor Area (m3/m?)
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Environment and Natural Resources BRERKXARER

The Company has adopted a series of effective measures
to prevent and mitigate impact on the environment and its
surroundings, for example minimising dust, noise and indoor
air pollution. The Company has carried out landscaping at
construction sites, and watering and wetting to reduce dust.
The Company has also strictly limited construction time to
prevent working at night. The construction team also utilised
aluminum formwork construction technology to minimise noise
pollution. Environmentally friendly materials have been used for
interior decorations which would reduce emissions and improve
indoor air quality.

There was no major environmental incident at the Company
during this period.
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R #HERERRS
SOCIAL

Employment

The Company’s employment policy follows the principle of fair
competition and selection of the finest. The Company ensures
a fair and equal recruitment process. Candidates would be
considered based on their skills, knowledge and job-related
experience, regardless of their gender, age, race, family status,
religion or disability. The Company Guidelines for Appointment,
Termination and Transfer have detailed information on the
process and requirements. Any appointment and termination
would be based on the qualification requirements for the
relevant positions. It also states to adhere to the close relatives
principle to avoid any conflict of interest. Employees have been
provided with equal opportunities for promotion and career
development without discrimination. The Company currently
has female employees holding director, department manager
and manager positions, showcasing its concept of equality in
promotion and career development.

Employees can enjoy statutory holidays, statutory paid annual
leave, marriage leave, maternity leave, paternity leave,
nursing leave, bereavement leave, injury leave and sick leave.
Employees working during the holiday would be paid triple
the normal wage. Those working on the weekend would enjoy
compensation days off. Furthermore, the Company provides
benefits, work-hour benefits, employee care, health checkups
and employee activities for all employees. With regards to social
security insurance, employees are also covered with group
accident insurance to ensure full protection.

During the reporting period, there has been no case of
prosecution against the Company due to violation of any
employment laws.
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Health and Safety

Employees’ occupational health and safety are an important
part of the Company’s policy. The Company is committed
to creating a sound working environment through various
aspects such as establishing an occupational safety system,
educating employees on safety awareness, providing protective
equipment, and regularly monitoring and auditing safety
performance.

The safety management office directly manages the production
of project safety and has been responsible for the establishment
of site safety management systems and daily safety controls.
Project safety management objectives have also been set
and implemented. The management division frequently
communicated with the production team and supervision
team regarding the Company's various safety mechanisms and
standards, and has established project safety management
systems. The supervision team reviewed and audited the
safety measures reported by the production team, and has
responded with suggestions and requirements as needed. The
team has worked with the management division for joint safety
review with the main contractor, subcontractors, and such.
Risks associated with on-site construction were analysed and
summarised, and corrective measures have been implemented.

Safety trainings are held regularly, focusing on safety
regulations and fire drills. A safety experience booth was built
on site to educate workers on the proper use of safety products
and implement precautionary and safety measures to ensure
that employees understand related safety operations.

During the reporting period, there has been no case of
prosecution against the Company due to violation of any
occupational safety laws.
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RE HERERARE
Development and Training

Promotion is based on the performance, experience and
personal competence of the employee. Employees are given fair
and equal opportunities for promotion and career development.
The Company would hold quarterly and yearly performance
assessments and guidelines for the employees would be
released based on the outcome of the assessment.

All new employees were provided with orientation and
guidance activities and those already employed have
been given various training opportunities, including in-
house and outsourced training. The Company has also
created opportunities in various projects for employees to
communicate, learn and grow.

Labour Standards

The Company is strongly against child labour and forced
labour, and has taken preventative measures as a management
approach.

All employees must be at least 18 years old and relevant
documents would be reviewed during the recruitment process
to verify the age before a candidate is hired. Recruitment
is performed on a fair and voluntary basis. Any forced or
fraudulent recruitment is prohibited. The Company ensures
that all employees are employed on a voluntary basis and
prohibits any form of forced labour. The employee or employee
representative would be consulted in the event of over-time
work during the production process, which would be within
the statutory limit. Management would not ask employees to
engage in illegal operations or activities that pose significant
safety or health risks.

During the reporting period, there has been no case of
prosecution against the Company due to violation of any child
labour or forced labour laws.
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Supply Chain Management

The Company understands that corporate social responsibility
needs to be shared by the whole supply chain. Suppliers
are expected to implement sound environmental and social
management measures and treat employees fairly and
reasonably. The Company requires suppliers to follow the
Suppliers Code by communicating through verbal or written
means. While screening suppliers, in addition to capability
and pricing, the Company would examine their qualifications
by checking on the Administration of Industry and Commerce
website to ensure the compliance, legitimacy and sound record
of the supplier. Any supplier with a bad record or overdue

inspection would be rejected.

The Company performs an annual review on the suppliers’ and
contractors’ cooperation and coordination. This mechanism
would link all aspects of the supplier’'s performance with future
business opportunities, ensuring effective improvement and
enhancement on the suppliers’ part.

Product Responsibility

The Company understands that quality product is the
foundation for its long-term growth, hence quality
management measures are strictly controlled. Before its
handover to customers, any housing product would be subject
to rounds of internal reviews and external examinations by the
quality control authority to obtain a completion certificate.
This ensures that the standard not only complies with laws and
regulations, but it also meets the requirements of the Company.
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R #HERERRS

To further provide protection for customers, the Company
has provided maintenance guarantees for two heating and
cooling seasons for the air conditioning systems. A five-
year maintenance guarantee has been implemented to cover
the foundation and major structures, roof waterproofing,
washrooms that require waterproofing, leak-proofing of
room and exterior walls, and exterior insulation. A two-year
maintenance guarantee has been provided to cover electrical
piping, drainage pipes, equipment installation and renovation
works. The Company has a customer service centre where
designated staff would receive suggestions and complaints
from customers and pass them to the relevant divisions for
handling and settlement.

Furthermore, as a result of the growing prevalence of
cybercrime, the Company has placed great significance on
information security. All computers have been installed with
anti-virus software. Customer data have been recorded by
designated staff in a password protected system and would be
unattainable without authorisation. The Company also values
the protection of intellectual property rights and would not use
any unauthorised third-party designs or products.

During the reporting period, there has been no case of
prosecution against the Company due to violation of any
product responsibility or privacy laws.
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Anti-corruption

As a responsible corporation, the Company must ensure that
all personnel at managerial positions and other employees are
clear of corruption. The Company has implemented corruption
prevention measures and various honesty and diligence
regulations through personnel, authoritative and monetary
management aspects. These measures are constantly being
improved and enhanced. The Company has used various forms
of education to provide company officials with legal training,
anti-corruption and pre-emptive education to reinforce self-
discipline and conduct. This has also formed an effective
internal and external supervision and control system, and
ensured strong professional ethics and occupational discipline.

Constructions projects and bulk procurement of equipment
would be subject to open tenders or tender negotiations.
Contractors and suppliers are selected fairly to avoid abuse,
corruption and other misconduct. There are strict provisions
regarding accepting hospitality and entertainment at official

events. Employees are not allowed to accept any banquet,
travel, fitness and high-end entertainment offers. It is also
forbidden to accept gifts, gift cards, securities, payment

vouchers and other such items under any capacity.
During the reporting period, there has been no case of
prosecution against the Company due to violation of any
related laws.
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RE HERERARE
Community Investment

The Company would regularly review its community investment
goals and objectives, and supervise its community investment,
sponsorships and donations and approval policy. The Company
would also review its social performance annually to see
whether it meets the community investment policies and goals.
Team capability would be monitored and enhanced to ensure
the community investment policy is well implemented within
each division.

OUTLOOK

The Company plans to implement more environmental,
social and governance measures in its operation to reflect its
responsibility towards the environment and society.
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
laws of Hong Kong), including a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties faced by the Group and an indication of
likely future development in the Group’s business, can be found
in the Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion
and Analysis set out on pages 3 to 12 of this annual report.
The Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and
Analysis forms part of this directors’ report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 and
the Group's financial position at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 74 to 232 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2017.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements, is set
out on page 234 of this annual report. This summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in either the Company’s authorised
or issued share capital during the year.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the Company's reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to
HK$39,324,000. In addition, the Company’s share premium
account, in the amount of HK$609,080,000, may be distributed
in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of the Group's purchases attributable to the
Group's major suppliers are as follows:

BEBERE

ARABAAREREEVDEETEIEEK
X REARRALBERERBRRZFREL AR
HEEMK-

Al 7R & B
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IR 1+ 5 1%39,324,000/8 7T o 4N KRR B 2 I
1% 18 BR609,080,0007% 7T A LA 8 8 41 B% 72 =¢
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mF

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
% %

Percentage of purchases: HEREREA DL
From the largest supplier RERAHER 6 18
From the five largest suppliers RKEAANEERS 8 47




The percentages of the Group’s sales attributable to the
Group’s major customers are as follows:
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AEBFERXFPAEAEEZHERD LN
T

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
% %

Percentage of sales: HHEERD L :
To the largest customer RKEZRAER 1 26
To the five largest customers RERAKREP 3 57

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interest in the Group's five largest suppliers and customers.

DIRECTORS

The Board during the year and up to the date of this report
comprises:

Executive Directors:
Liu Hongde

Pan Linwu

Lai Weixuan

Zhou Chunhua

Xu Hongge

Non-executive Director:
Chow Wai Kam

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Chu Yu Lin, David

Li Ka Fai, David
Zhang Ping (appointed on 26 May 2017)
Li Zhaoxi (retired on 26 May 2017)

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Pan Linwu, Mr.
Xu Hongge and Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David will retire by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

EENHEMNEEMEALIHNBEETMAES
RRRS%ALEBITRAZERBERE AN
SERLARHERNEP I M#R-

=
REARBEAREAH EF2RHE:

HITES:
B
RN
FEE
& &5
RN

FHITES:
B#e

BYFHTES:

Nl

FRE

o F (RZZE—tFRHAZ=-1+RH
EBZE)

FKkEE (RZZE—LFHEA-+RBEEE)

REALBAR EMRR L HFATEER
RYBEEBREERRBERG LHFER
T BAERYMEEEET-

51



52

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEMZE TEERER (58)BRAF
Annual Report 2017 —Z—+FF7R

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEgRE

The Company has received an annual confirmation from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors of his
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules on the
Stock Exchange. The Company, as at the date of this report,
still considered all the Independent Non-executive Directors as
independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 13 to 18 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of employees (including Directors and senior
management of the Group) is determined with reference to
their qualification, expertise and experience in the industry,
competence, duties and responsibilities within the Group,
the performance and profitability of the Group as well as
the market benchmark and the prevailing market conditions.
Employees shall also be eligible to receive a discretionary year-
end incentive bonus, which shall be determined by the Group
at its absolute discretion taking into account, inter alia, the
Group’s operating performance, market conditions in which
the Group operates and the individual’s performance, payable
at such time as the Group may consider appropriate, and
discretionary share options.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No Director or entities connected with the Directors had
a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company, or any
of the Company’s holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party during or at the end of the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

Except for certain Directors who had non-beneficial interests
in certain subsidiaries of the Company held for the benefits of
the Company, as at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company had an interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (a) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"); or (b) as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section of “DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES” above and in the
section of “SHARE OPTION SCHEME" below, during the year
no rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company had been granted
to any of the Directors or their respective spouses or children
under 18 years of age; no such rights had been exercised
by them; and none of the Company, or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights
in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting held on 28 May 2014, the
Company adopted a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
to contribute to the business development and growth of
the Group and to enable the Group to recruit high-calibre
employees and attract or retain human resources that are
valuable to the Group. The share option scheme is valid and
effective for a period of 10 years from the date of its adoption.
Further details of the share option scheme are disclosed in note
35 to the financial statements.

Since the adoption of the share option scheme, no options
have been granted, exercised, lapsed, cancelled or outstanding
thereunder as at 31 December 2017.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, the following interests of 5% or
more of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded
in the register of interests required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions:

BAE:

Name of shareholders

BRERB

Tacko International Limited (“Tacko")

AVIC International (HK) Group Limited
("AVIC International (HK) Group”)

TREE (FE) REERAF
([hMmER (FB)&E])

AVIC International Holding Corporation
("AVIC International”)
TR ZERMERERERAR ([FHRERE])

Aviation Industry Corporation of China, Ltd

("AVIC")

FEMETEEBEAERAA ([FMRITE])

Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (“CKH")

CK Hutchison Holdings Limited (“CKHH")

RIMZEZRR AR ([RIMRE])

Notes

liria

(a)

(a)

(a)

(a)

(b)

(b)
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Capacity and
nature of
interest

SO REREE

Beneficial owner
EanBEEA

Through a controlled
corporation
BR—-RAXEEE

Through a controlled
corporation
BR—-RAXEEE

Through a controlled
corporation
BBA-EXEEE

Through controlled
corporations
BRTEE

Through controlled
corporations
BIRXEE

Number of
ordinary

shares

held
MELZERYAE

1,895,559,000

1,895,559,000

1,895,559,000

1,895,559,000

450,000,000

450,000,000

EEERE
EFERARHEMA T RRG RABR G

WoZ—tF+-A=+—0 ARFARES
% RIE GDIE3361 17 B 2 BB R MR
BEVARRBIS%HIA FEBEITRAERNT

Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share
capital as at

31 December
2017
R-EB—+t&F
+=ZB=+—H
EEAR BT
BREZBESL

34.34

34.34

34.34

34.34
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Notes:

(a)

(b)

According to notices of disclosure of interests filed with the
Company, Tacko is a wholly-owned subsidiary of AVIC International
(HK) Group, which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of AVIC
International, AVIC International is a non wholly-owned subsidiary
of AVIC (62.52% interest controlled by AVIC as at 31 December
2017). Accordingly, each of AVIC International (HK) Group, AVIC
International and AVIC is deemed to be interested in the shares held
by Tacko.

According to notices of disclosure of interests filed with the
Company, 225,000,000 shares are held by Worsdale Investments
Limited (“Worsdale”) and 225,000,000 shares are held by Hutchison
International Limited (“HIL").

Worsdale is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Arra International
Limited, which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cheung
Kong Investment Company Limited (“CKIV"). CKIV is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of CKH. CKH is deemed to be interested in
225,000,000 shares held by Worsdale. Meanwhile, HIL is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Hutchison Whampoa Limited (“HWL"). HWL is
deemed to be interested in 225,000,000 shares held by HIL. CKH is
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of more than one-third
of the voting power at the general meetings of HWL. Accordingly,
CKH is also deemed to be interested in 225,000,000 shares held
by HIL. In addition, CKH is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CKHH and
accordingly, CKHH is deemed to be interested in the aggregate
shares directly held by Worsdale and HIL.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, no person

had any interest or short position in the shares or underlying

shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had the following continuing
connected transactions, certain details of which are disclosed in
compliance with the requirements of Charter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

(@) Pre-handover real estate management services

On 31 May 2016, the Company and CATIC Property
Management Co., Ltd (‘AVIC Real Estate Management”),
an associate of a controlling shareholder of the
Company, namely, AVIC International, entered into a
framework agreement for the engagement of AVIC
Real Estate Management to provide pre-handover real
estate management services for the relevant properties
in real estate development projects of the Group.
The management fees comprise the management
costs based on the annual budget proposed by the
relevant developers of the Group and the management
commission of 10% of the total management costs
incurred for each development project.

(b) Tender agency services

On 31 May 2016, the Company and China National
Aero-Technology Trade and Economic Development
company Limited (“AVIC TED"), an associate of AVIC
International, entered into a framework agreement for
the engagement of AVIC TED to provide tender agency
services for the construction projects of the Group.
The fees for tender agency services is calculated by
applying the marginal rates to the relevant actual sum
of the tender awarded or contracted on a progressive
scale as prescribed by the Provisional Measures on
the Administration of Service Fees Charged for Tender
Agency Services (HBERIBRE KW E T EETHE) with
such further discounts as the parties agree to in each
engagement.
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The continuing connected transactions contemplated under
the framework agreements for pre-handover real estate
management services and tender agency services would only
be subject to reporting, announcement and annual review
requirements but exempt from the independent shareholders’
approval requirement under the Listing Rules. The Group has
followed the pricing policies and guidelines set out in the
relevant announcement of the Company dated 31 May 2016
when the pricing and terms of the above continuing connected
transaction were determined. Further details were disclosed in
that announcement.

These continuing connected transactions of the Group are
disclosed as related party transactions in note 43 to the
financial statements.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed
the above continuing connected transactions pursuant to
Rule14A.55 of the Listing Rules, and have confirmed that these
continuing connected transactions have been entered into:

(1 in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(3) according to the terms of the two framework
agreements on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

The total amounts of the pre-handover real estate management
services fees and tender agency services fees disclosed above
during the year under review have not exceeded the annual
caps amounts of HK$24 million and HK$5.8 million respectively.
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Ernst & Young, the Company’s external auditors, were engaged
to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information,
and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect
of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the said letter has been provided to the Stock Exchange by the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, the related party transactions that did
not constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions of the Company made during the year are
disclosed in note 43 to the financial statements. The Directors
confirm that the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, the following Director had interests in the
following businesses conducted through the company named
below which are considered to compete or be likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group, as defined in the Listing Rules:

Name of Director

EE=nA

Name of company

DEEH EEME

Nature of interest

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEMZE TEBERER (58)BRAF
Annual Report 2017 —Z —+FF 7R

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

ARBICREZBM LK ETMERF BR
EREFMASELN (BERIRAE]
3000) (#R1ERT)H) [E LA E R BT KB
ORISR ] W2 IR (EEHH) F7405%
[BNEE (EWMRA) PAAFERERSHN%
R K] A RE MR ERER S LR
FoRKGAEEHMDIRE LTRRFE4A.
SelRBE L EEBREER KT ETHEEEGH
AEEREXFARBZRHEREISNERK
KB o AN B AR A B A AT AR S A BRAW K 1 2
Bl

Br Bt BN RERETT B TR R
MR NFEBAH I IN B AR EER
MERAMF43 - EEHRARRCET LT
RAEMAZEZHETAEE -

EENHEMER Lo ER

FARPIEFBBTARAIFE T EBH
Em MZSEBREBELTHRNTEWE M
AEENEBBERFI B EEXHEER
:

Nature of competing business

BRERBMHE

Chow Wai Kam
BE%

CK Asset Holdings Limited

RIBXSEERAF WITES

Executive director -

Property development
and investment
("Excluded Businesses”)
- MEZERLRE
([FABRER])
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The Board is of the view that the Group is capable of carrying
on its business independently of, and at arms length from the
Excluded Businesses. When making decisions on the businesses
of the Excluded Businesses of the Group, Mr. Chow, in the
performance of his duties as Director, has acted and will
continue to act in the best interest of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force throughout the
year 2017.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company'’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements of the Company and the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2017 have been audited
by Ernst & Young who shall retire and a resolution for their
reappointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

Liu Hongde
Chairman

Hong Kong
14 March 2018
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e

Ernst & Young KEFTENSE AR Tel E5%: +852 2846 9888
EY 22/F, CITIC Tower BEPRAEEIR Fax 8 H: +852 2868 4432
ﬁ?i( 1 Tim Mei Avenue hEKRE2218 ey.com

Central, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of AVIC International Holding (HK)
Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of AVIC
K) Limited (the
“Group”) set out on pages 74 to 232, which

International Holding (H “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

FHAVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. For each matter below, our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matter

BTSN

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RN ETNMEE@ARETEER

Recoverability of trade receivables

JE W B 5 8k 5 9 AT 5] 1

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had trade
receivables of HK$77 million. Management performs
an impairment assessment on a regular basis, with
the impairment provision estimated through the
application of judgement and use of subjective
assumptions.

Relevant disclosures are included in note 21 to the
financial statements.

RZZE—+F+-A=+—H  BSEENEKEZES
BE S A77,000,000/8 T - BIEE FEHETRESTG B
KEHAHEE B REGEHERERE-

HERBEIENM BRRME21 -

We have evaluated the inputs and assumptions used
by management in their impairment assessment,
and management’s procedures over aged receivables
or amounts in dispute. We have also tested the
ageing classification of receivables and assessed the
reasonableness of the impairment provision as of
the end of the reporting period, taking into account
factors such as the payment history, the subsequent
settlement of the receivables and other relevant
information.

BB A E RO E A AT ER e 3 A B &
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Key audit matter

REETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RAMWETNMEE@ARETEER

Valuation of investment properties

REYE G E

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had investment
properties measured at fair value amounting
to approximately HK$369 million, with the
corresponding fair value gain of HK$33 million
recognised in profit or loss. The valuation process is
inherently subjective, and dependent on a number of
estimates. The Group engaged an external valuer to
perform the valuation for the properties.

Relevant disclosures are included in note 14 to the
financial statements.

RZZ—+F+=-_A=+—8' BEEEEQAFER
EMREYWELB369,000,0008 T RIBEFHERED
P X B I A&33,000,00058 7T o (A EBIEFP E S
REXEMN  REARZEGFTER BEEZRET
SNEB L ERT S Y R ITIEE -

ERR RSN M AR MIE14 -

We have evaluated the objectivity, independence
and competency of the external valuer. We have also
involved our internal valuation specialists to assist
us to assess the reasonableness of the bases and
assumptions adopted in the valuation for estimating
the fair value of the investment properties and
performed benchmarking the value of investment
properties held by the Group to other comparable
properties.
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Key audit matter

BTSN

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RN ETNMEE@ARETEER

Impairment provision in a joint venture

FE &2 B8]89 6 B 1

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had interest
in a joint venture amounting to HK$42 million. As
the joint venture sustained losses,
performed an impairment assessment on the assets

management

of the joint venture. The determination of the
recoverable amounts of the assets of the joint venture
is dependent on a range of estimates (amongst
others, estimated future cash flows and discount

rate).

Relevant disclosures are included in note 15 to the
financial statements.

RZE—+F+=ZA=+—8"
Z %5 /42,000,000 L - RN EERRIFEBE B
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HEREIN B RERMES -

We have evaluated the appropriateness and
application of the valuation methodology for
estimating the recoverable amounts of the assets of
the joint venture and key valuation parameters. We
have involved our internal valuation experts to assist
us to assess the reasonableness of the bases and
assumptions adopted in the valuation.
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Key audit matter

BTSN

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RAMWETNMEEEARETER

Valuation of convertible bonds

AT 2R (& 5 4 18

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had convertible
bonds with fair value of HK$82 million. The valuation
process is inherently subjective, and dependent on
a number of estimates, including risk free rate and
credit spreads. The Group engaged an external valuer
to perform the valuation for the convertible bonds.

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 18 and 19
to the financial statements.

RZZE—+F+-_A=+—8' BEETERES
#) A F 1B A82,000,000% 7T« (BB IEF EFS NE =
Bt REUVARZEGBTEER  REERRAENER
Mz BEBZETIHINBEEMETRRESET
EEER

HERBEINMBHRERWMFE18R19 -

We have evaluated the objectivity, independence
and competency of the external valuer. We have also
involved our internal valuation specialists to assist
us to assess the reasonableness of the bases and
assumptions adopted in the valuation for estimating
the fair value of the convertible bonds.
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Key audit matter

REETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMWETNMEEEARETEER

Impairment review of properties under development and completed properties held for sale (the “Properties”)

RETYERIFIELEZ BT E ([YF]) 75 (8 FFH

As at 31 December 2017, the Group held the
Properties with carrying amounts of HK$2,937
million. The aggregate carrying amount of the
Properties represented 67% of the total assets of the
Group as at 31 December 2017 and is significant to
the consolidated financial statements.

The Group considered the budgeted and actual selling
prices on sales contracts and has engaged an external
valuer to perform a valuation of the Properties as
at 31 December 2017 to assess if the net realisable
values of these assets are higher than their carrying
amounts.

RZT—+F+-A=+—H ' ESEFEDENE
M6 A2,937,000,000/8 L - MEMNBIREEN B&S
ER T +tF+-_A=+—HNEELMEN6T%"
WHEEVBREMSBEKN -

ERECERHEARMNBAENEREE LRET
SR EMEMER —_FT—tF T -_A=+—HMNE
EETETHE UFEDENAERFETEIRN
HARmEE -

We evaluated the objectivity, independence,
competency and relevant experiences of the external
valuer engaged by management of the Group. We
also involved our internal valuation specialists to
assist us with our audit in evaluating the valuation
models, assumptions and parameters adopted in
the valuation. We also evaluated the inputs for the
valuation including the unit rate per square metre
and the gross floor area.

HMENE EXEEEREMEEZIISBELEMNE
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Key audit matter

REETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEMHEFTNMEERAREETER

(continued)

Impairment review of properties under development and completed properties held for sale (the “Properties”)

RRPYERFIEHEZExTHNE ([WE]) ) Bl EFM (#)

Different valuation models were applied by the
external valuer on different types of the Properties
held by the Group.

We identified this as a key audit matter because
the aggregate carrying amount of the Properties is
significant to the Group and significant estimations
are involved in determining the net realisable values
of the Properties. The determination of valuation
models adopted also involves judgements.

Relevant disclosures are included in note 20 to the
financial statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.
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o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chan Sai Yu.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
14 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS &R & B &

Year ended 31 December 2017 # %=

—E—+F+A=t+—HIEFE

2017 2016
—E—+t&E —E-RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
iz FET FET
CONTINUING OPERATIONS RELERH
REVENUE Uy & 5 1,520,710 102,786
Cost of sales HEKR (1,706,522) (74,269)
Gross profit/(loss) EH,/ (8) (185,812) 28,517
Other income and gains Hitnlg A R F 8 5 41,681 12,765
Selling and distribution expenses HEREHER (26,130) (31 694)
Administrative expenses THERER (73,718) (41,611)
Other operating expenses Hitg g% 6 (21,463) (54 633)
Finance costs FHY 7 (38,761) (7 )
Gain on disposal of convertible loans HEMRRER 2 FIHE 23 87,151
Net gain on deemed disposal of associates %)%ﬁ?%ﬁﬁ - UNS I FbE 16 = 3,386
Share of profits and losses of: PERMRERE:
Joint venture RN (19,043) (215,369)
Associates 95%’& al 222 (3,013)
Impairment of available-for-sale investments AREENRE ZRE
(transfer from available-for-sale investment (AL EREER
revaluation reserve) REEA) 18(3), (c) (67,280) (134,107)
Fair value loss of available-for-sale investments ~ AJtHEMKEZ A FEFR
(transfer from equity on derecognition) (RELRARNERBEA)  186) = (490)
Fair value loss on derivative financial instruments T4 & B TAZ AT EFR 19 (11,337) (108,558)
Fair value loss on an equity investment at fair BATEFABR BA
value through profit or loss BREZATEER (6,857) (198,094)
LOSS BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING REGEQCEXB 2RBA
OPERATIONS B# 6 (321,347) (742,978)
Income tax credit/(expense) FrekiEe,/ (Bx) 10 (15,196) 6,685
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING REREREXBZAERHR
OPERATIONS (336,543) (736,293)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRIEREER
Profit for the year from a discontinued operation KRB E&IFELEE 2 KEHEF 17 - 27,362
LOSS FOR THE YEAR rEER (336,543) (708,931)
Attributable to: Tﬁ‘l/\iﬁ‘é‘ffﬁi
Owners of the parent NGiEES (288,481) (685,842)
Non-controlling interests #T B s (48,062) (23,089)
(336,543) (708,931)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY ~ RIABIEZEEZBEA
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT EEERER 12
Basic and diluted EAREE (HK5.23 cents) (HK12.43 cents)
— For loss for the year —-REBE (5.23784L) (12.437% )
~ For loss from continuing operations ~REFBEREXBLER (HK5.23 cents) (HK12.97 cents)
(5.23%Al) (12.977H1)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME #r & & H W 25 &

Year ended 31 December 2017 HE-ZT—tF+-_A=1+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—-tE —E-RF
Notes HKS'000 HK$'000
Hiqz FET FET
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FEER (336,543) (708,931)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hit2Eh =
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified MNEZ BB ECEFHTHEE
to profit or loss in subsequent periods: BRcHM2EKE:
Available-for-sale investments: AHHENEE:
Changes in fair value ATEEF 18 (86,017) (119,876)
Reclassification adjustments for losses FAGRABRRRIEBEY
included in the consolidated statement of EFOERAE
profit or loss
— Loss on derecognition —RIERER 2 BE 18 - 490
— Impairment loss —HEBRE 18 67,280 134,107
(18,737) 14,721
Exchange differences: BE N R
Exchange differences on translation MEBINEBEEZ
of foreign operations EH =R 97,554 (125,145)
Reclassification adjustment for a foreign AEHEZBINERZ
operation disposed of during the year BN BEAE 38 = (1,223)
97,554 (126,368)
Share of other comprehensive income DA ERR B2 EKE
of a joint venture 2,905 (8,905)
NET OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME TO REAHEBEENRSEZE
BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT OR LOSS BEsHEMEZEKETFER
IN SUBSEQUENT PERIODS AND OTHER rEHMEEKR
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR, (MBrBEER)
NET OF TAX 81,722 (120,552)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FEXEKHEE
FOR THE YEAR (254,821) (829,483)
Attributable to: THALEMN:
Owners of the parent HRARMESE (240,767) (764,262)
Non-controlling interests R (14,054) (65,221)
(254,821) (829,483)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION & & Bt B iR R &

31 December 2017 —Z—+F+=-A=+—H

2017 2016
—E-—tF ZE-RF
Notes HKS'000 HK$000
lioz3 FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME BEMRE 13 22,444 24,975
Investment properties REME 14 368,639 315,866
Investment in a joint venture BERNRIZERE 15 42,464 58,602
Investments in associates BENB2KE 6 14,385 13,378
Financial asset under Project EC120 ECNROEBE 2 BEE 17 = -
Available-for-sale investments AEHENEE 18 110,380 278,745
Derivative financial instruments TES®MIA 19 - 11,338
Trade receivable s E F R 21 - 20,178
Deferred tax assets EREHBEE 33 - 10,025
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 558,312 733,107
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Properties under development and completed ZEFRYERFELEZ
properties held for sale REIERES 20 2,937,160 4,105,317
Trade receivables FEYE 5 R 21 76,977 69,442
Due from fellow subsidiaries JE U [R) Z BT B A A 29 1,664 10,960
Due from an intermediate holding company ~ JEUX = R #2 A% A 5] 28 - 5,282
Due from an associate P i B 8 ) 6 10,441 =
Loans to associates M2 A RIRENER 6 - 9,497
Loan to a related company mE R EIIREHER 22 - 16,760
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables ~ TBFUE & & Rk
H fth e W AR R 23 5,095 42,978
Available-for-sale investments AEEENEE 18 82,348 =
Equity investment at fair value through BATERARRLZ
profit or loss BRAEKE 24 80,761 87,619
Derivative financial instruments fTEEmIA 19 1 =
Prepaid taxes BB 25 4,176 16,186
Cash and cash equivalents BekBReEE 26 627,140 605,925
Total current assets REEERE 3,825,763 4,969,966
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31 December 2017 _ZE—+F+-/F=+—H

2017 2016
—E-tE —E-RE
Notes HKS'000 HK$000
Wizt FET FET
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Due to non-controlling shareholders of FERTPR B A Bl 2 FE AR AR B
subsidiaries 27 138,852 88,444
Due to an intermediate holding company PR R A 2 A 28 16,681 =
Due to fellow subsidiaries JE 1 [R) 2 BT B A A 29 5,492 1,643
Loans from a fellow subsidiary KERZHWBLABHNER 29 366,864 586,592
Trade payables & SRR 30 122,511 41,213
Other payables and accruals B ENRIERETER 37 34,198 17,223
Customer deposits REEe 217,981 920,238
Tax payable B 78,403 37,449
Total current liabilities NBEERE 980,982 1,692,802
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 2,844,781 3,277,164
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEABERTBEE 3,403,093 4,010,271
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES *kRBEE
Loans from an intermediate holding company %k B EER D RHWE R 28 503,550 475,419
Loans from a fellow subsidiary RERZMBARMER 29 556,213 648,045
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FEBITER 2 - 230,134
Deferred tax liabilities BREFIEAR 33 71,398 129,920
Total non-current liabilities FREBEERE 1,131,161 1,483,518
Net assets EE%E 2,271,932 2,526,753
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to owners of the parent B RQFfEEEEES
Issued capital BEIRA 34 551,959 551,959
Reserves [ 36 1,180,546 1,421,313
1,732,505 1,973,272
Non-controlling interests FERER 539,427 553,481
Total equity EmEE 2,271,932 2,526,753

Lai Weixuan
BEE
Director

EF

Zhou Chunhua

AEE

Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY &R &= B B &

Year ended 31 December 2017 HE-ZT—tF+-_A=1+—HILFE

Share
Issued premium
capital account
BEITRAR Bt B AR
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
it FET FET
At 1 January 2016 RZF—-R"¥—HA—H 551,959 609,080
Loss for the year AEBE S S
Other comprehensive income AEEMPERE:
for the year:
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale AHEENKRE AT EE
investments, net of tax (MEkFIER) = =
Share of other comprehensive income of a SMEEERATZEMEE LR
joint venture S =
Exchange differences related to foreign EBNEBRRACERLES
operations - S
Total comprehensive income AEPHEHRELE
for the year S =
Transfer to reserve fund BREREES - -
Disposal of a subsidiary HEMRBRA 38 = =
At 31 December 2016 RZF-AF+-A=t+—H 551,959 609,080*
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY &R S EZ 2 B KR
Year ended 31 December 2017 HE-ZT—tF+-_A=1+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAMBEREER

Available-
for-sale
investment Exchange Non-
revaluation Reserve fluctuation Retained controlling Total
reserve fund reserve profits Total interests equity
A E B 5 R
REBMFERE Ekn e BEan G MRS EHEE
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T TET T TET THET TET THET
(note 36)
(Hi5t36)
10,665 18,477 (23,199) 1,570,552 2,737,534 594,124 3,331,658
- - - (685,842) (685,842) (23,089) (708,931)
14,721 = = = 14,721 = 14,721
- - (8,905) - (8,905) - (8,905)
- - (84,236) - (84,236) (42,132) (126,368)
14,721 - (93,141) (685,842) (764,262) (65,221) (829,483)
= 121 = (121) = = =
- (93) - 93 - 24,578 24,578

25,386* 18,505* (116,340)* 884,682* 1,973,272 553,481 2,526,753
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY Z&R & = 2 B 5k

Year ended 31 December 2017 HE-ZT—tF+-_A=1+—HILFE

Share
Issued premium
capital account
BRITRA 810 % B B
HK$'000 HKS'000
FEL FET
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—F—H 551,959 609,080
Loss for the year REBR = -
Other comprehensive income AEEMPERE:
for the year:
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale AHENREZ A TEED
investments, net of tax (MErFEE) = =
Share of other comprehensive income of DEEERRZ At EKE
a joint venture - -
Exchange differences related to BN ERERACELZHE
foreign operations - -
Total comprehensive income AEZHNERE
for the year - -
Transfer to reserve fund BREFERES = =
At 31 December 2017 R-_E—tF+-HA=1+—H 551,959 609,080*

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of *
HK$1,180,546,000 (2016: HK$1,421,313,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

ZERBEBREATBMRIAE PR
A 1%1,180,546,0008 L (=T — XN &F:
1,421,313,0008 7T ) °
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Year ended 31 December 2017 HE-ZT—tF+-_A=1+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BAEMEEEGES
Available-
for-sale
investment Exchange Non-
revaluation Reserve fluctuation Retained controlling Total
reserve fund reserve profits Total interests equity
AHHE EXKD
REEMHE wEE =] BEER At FERER EnEE
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
(note 36)
(Hi5t36)
25,386 18,505 (116,340) 884,682 1,973,272 553,481 2,526,753
= = = (288,481) (288,481) (48,062) (336,543)
(18,737) = = = (18,737) = (18,737)
= = 2,905 = 2,905 = 2,905
= = 63,546 = 63,546 34,008 97,554
(18,737) = 66,451 (288,481) (240,767) (14,054) (254,821)
= 5,150 = (5,150) = = =

6,649* 23,655* (49,889)* 591,051* 1,732,505 539,427 2,271,932
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS#ZEHE&RER

Year ended 31 December 2017 HE-ZT—tF+-_A=1+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E-tF ZE-REF
Notes HKS'000 HK$'000
Jiofz3 FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ~ R&TEBZHERE
Loss before tax: BREBATEE:
From continuing operations RERBELEES (321,347) (742,978)
From a discontinued operation REDKRIEEEEK 11 - (5,075)
Adjustments for: THE
Finance costs %Y 38,761 1,265
Share of profits and losses of a joint venture ~ DA E DRI REE DR Z
and associates & R g 1 18,821 218,382
Bank interest income SRITHIBUA (6,239) (2,176)
Interest income on a convertible bond AR ES 2 F BWA 5 (1,036) (1,036)
Interest income on loans to associates S N FRENERZ
FE A 5 (586) (577)
Interest income on a loan to a related REHARRENER 2
company FlEYA 5 (536) (1,076)
Gain on disposal of convertible loans HEMTRRERZFE 23 (87,151) =
Net gain on deemed disposal of associates WRALEBEDNRZ
B 16 - (3,386)
Depreciation e 13 1,098 2,487
Amortisation of customer relationship BEPBREH = 95
Recognition of prepaid land lease payments ~ FEZRFEM LA ER = 13
Provision for impairment of loans to related WA A RRENER
companies RERE 6 - 12,608
Provision for impairment of other receivables b & 4 Bk 7t 2 Il (B 25 155 20,699 4,345
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, HEME BEMREER
plant and equipment ZBB/ (F8) 56 764 (222)
Fair value losses/(gains) on investment RENMEZATEEBE/
properties (FE) 56 (33,103) 34,047
Impairment of an investment in a joint venture A% AR ZRE ZHE 6 - 7,745
Write-down of properties under development 2 EHYE MiFEHE
and properties held for sale to net EEKMERE
realisable value EU B FE 6 296,848 =
Fair value loss on an equity investment at fair A FEFABZEZ
value through profit or loss BAKRE 2 AT EBE 6,857 198,094
Fair value loss of available-for-sale investments A[{t HEM K E 2 A FE
(transfer from equity on derecognition) BB (RR IR
EREAN) 18 - 490
Impairment of available-for-sale investments [t EIEE ZHE 18 67,280 134,107
Fair value loss on derivative financial THEemMIAL
instruments, net AFEERFE 19 11,337 108,558
12,467 (34,290)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS iR 8 R & RE R

Year ended 31 December 2017 # %=

—E—+F+A=t+—HIEFE

2017 2016
—E—tf§ T—-RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i FET FET
Decrease/(increase) in properties under ERPOERBELEL
development and completed BETRMERD/ (EM)
properties held for sale 1,149,205 (172,696)
Decrease in inventories FERD - 502
Decrease in trade receivables EWE ZERFTORD 17,165 83,708
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and BNRIE e RAMER
other receivables REUR D 32,441 12,108
Decrease in amounts due from fellow EURRZNBARZTERD
subsidiaries 9,950 34,671
Decrease in an amount due from JE WL 8 A Bl 2 FEIE IR R R
a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary ~ FRIEF L - 323
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables ENBSERTEN, Cid 79,219 (31,988)
Increase in other payables and accruals H AR K Iéi\&ﬁﬁéﬁlﬁ%ig n 16,225 6,696
Increase/(decrease) in customer deposits EE®RSEN,/ (FD) (748,686) 689,909
Cash generated from operations LEEEVRS 567,986 588,943
Overseas tax paid BRGINEIE (16,986) (41,544)
Net cash flows from operating activities REFHELECREREFHR 551,000 547,399
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETHELEZRERE
Purchases of items of property, BAME BENREERE
plant and equipment 13 (28) (96)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, ~ HEWE BEMREER
plant and equipment 135018 793 746
Proceeds from disposal of HETHRBENRERS
available-for-sale investments WIE - 1,800
Proceeds from disposal of convertible loans HEMTRRERFME 23 87,151 =
Repayment of loans to related companies BB REEEER - 22
Disposal of a subsidiary HENE AR 38 - 3,716
Bank interest received BUERITH B 6,214 2,072
Interest received on a convertible bond BT ES ZF B 1,036 1,036
Interest received on loans to associates B E DRI B S 774 427
Interest received on a loan to a related BRBHRRAERF L
company 1,079 790
Increase in pledged time deposits B 85 5L - (2,815)
Net cash flows from investing activities REFHEEZRENEFHE 97,019 7,698
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Year ended 31 December 2017 HE-ZT—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E-tfF —E-RF
Note HKS'000 HK$'000
sz FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ~ BEZBZEERE
New bank loans HMIBTER - 230,134
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (230,134) -
Repayment of loans from a fellow subsidiary ~ EBERER XM BERINEX (373,852) (495,008)
Increase in amounts due to non-controlling FEFT BT A Bl 2 JEE R R
shareholders of subsidiaries @Rl 45,946 28,817
Decrease in an amount due to an intermediate &< /7 & 22 i A B 208 R
holding company - (15,189)
Increase in amounts due to fellow subsidiaries — F&f< [ Z< Fff B 2 &) 3} I8 1 71 4,726 713
Interest paid BERFE (88,593) (162,359)
Net cash flows used in financing activities MEEZDMACREREFHE (641,907) (412,892)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRRELEEMFR
CASH EQUIVALENTS 6,112 142,205
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F¥zH&MELEE 605,925 473,330
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net ~ [EXREE T2 FHA 15,103 (9,610)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRBERAEEE
AT END OF YEAR 627,140 605,925
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH BH&RESEELEHRZ DN
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances BeRBITER 26 301,921 307,215
Non-pledged time deposits with original BEERISATRZEAZ
maturity of less than three months when BEREHER
acquired 26 325,219 298,710
627,140 605,925
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 78 3R 3% M 5%

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
registered office of the Company is located at Canon’s
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda.

During the year, the Group was mainly involved in the
property development and investment business.

The Group disposed of the knitting and textile business
in the prior year. Details of the disposal are included in
note 38 to the financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding
company of the Company is Aviation Industry
Corporation of China, which is incorporated in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

1.

31 December 2017 —_E—+F+=-_A=+—H

RAREEER

AVIC International Holding (HK)
Limited B 2= T ¥ BB ER (F8)
BERARA—HARBREFMKIZE
RAF e RRA) 2 sEM## EE & Canon's
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton,
HM 12, Bermuda °

FRAEEIBEUEYPERRNKE
VR

AEBEREFHEHHBRHBE
%o HEZHBEHNMBHRARM LIS -

EFRRARRERERARSTEM
ETEREERR ZARRPEARHK
ME ([HE) ML
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31 December 2017 —E—+F+=-_A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(continued)

DNEREEER (&)

BEKEQRANER

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

AARETEMBRABZFHBNOT

follows:
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/
registration registered Percentage of equity Principal
Name and business share capital attributable to the Company activities
AL BRALER
=L BN EF 30 ARRA  AQERELCRAEZEILE FTEXH
Direct Indirect
HE ) 4
CATIC Helicopter PRC/Mainland HK$42,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Development China 42,000,000/ 70 REER
(Shenzhen) Limited FE RN
("CATIC Helicopter SZ2")**
LR B T R PR 7
CRIN BR AT
(TR BBREFERI) =
Billirich Investment Limited* British Virgin Us$1,000 100 - Investment holding
Islands/Hong 1,000% 7T HEER
Kong
REELES/
BB
Ease Triumph International Hong Kong/ HK$250,000,002 100 - Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong 250,000,002 7T HEER
HEBBRERDA BE/BE
EEMEBEARLDA PRC/Mainland US$62,530,000 - 99 Property developer of
(TEEMEE] ) China 62,530,000% 7T residential and
R B R commercial projects
EERBHFEERED
MEER
REMEEERR DA PRC/Mainland US$96,000,000 - 52.08 Property developer of
(TRERZE] ) China 96,000,000 7T residential and
R B R commercial projects

EERBEBEEN
MERR
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31 December 2017 —E—+¥+=-A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2AREBER (&)

(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) EEMBARNER (£)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as KRB EEMBARZHEBHO T
follows: (continued) (&)
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/
registration registered Percentage of equity Principal
Name and business share capital attributable to the Company activities
ML BRTEER
L B E—E$:E gftlRA  AAFEERAEZEAL TEER
Direct Indirect
HE ) 4
CATIC General Aviation British Virgin US$2 100 - Dormant
Holdings Limited* Islands/ 2ETT gmex
Hong Kong
EBRAHS/
N
Wahman Investment Limited*  British Virgin US$1 100 - Dormant
Islands/ 17T gmex
Hong Kong
EBRAHS/
N
Kingspot Investment Limited*  British Virgin HK$1 100 - Investment holding
Islands/ 18T REER
Hong Kong
EBRAHS/
N
Yipon Investment Limited* British Virgin US$1 100 - Dormant
Islands/ 17T gmex
Hong Kong
EBRAHS/
N
CATIC Helicopter (H.K.) British Virgin US$2 100 - Investment holding
Limited” Islands/ 2ETT REER
Hong Kong
EBRAHS/
N
e CATIC Helicopter SZ is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned L R E TR IR P BUA G A
enterprise under PRC law. INEBERE-
i EEMBE and KB EE are registered as Sino-foreign co- > BEMBERAREMERE P EEGEM
operative joint ventures under PRC law. RBPIINEERE-
g None of the statutory financial statements of these i FRA UL S0 B R R 8ETE M ISk 93k
subsidiaries was audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or HLZKEBR LT KERPEHEMKER

another member firm of the Ernst & Young global network. Al o
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2.1

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

The above tables list the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

In the prior year, the Group disposed of its 51% equity
interest in AT EBG &4 ETHERKXER DA (“Zhejiang
Dongyang Jinniu”). Further details of the above disposal
are included in note 38 to the financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“"HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for investment properties, an equity investment at
fair value through profit or loss, certain available-for-
sale investments, and derivative financial instruments
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.
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2.1
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2017. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases.

2.1

31 December 2017 —E—+F+=-_A=+—H
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2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s
share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 2.2

DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for

the first time for the current year’s financial statements.
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses
Amendments to HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
included in Annual Entities: Clarification of the

Improvements to HKFRSs  Scope of HKFRS 12
2014-2016 Cycle

None of the above amendments to HKFRSs has had a
significant financial effect on these financial statements.
Disclosure has been made in note 39 to the financial
statements upon the adoption of amendments to HKAS
7, which require an entity to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes
in liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash
changes.

31 December 2017 —_E—+F+=-_A=+—H
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Classification and
Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts'

Financial Instruments’

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'

Clarifications to HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts
with Customers'

Leases?

HEA
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 CEMEMAERZEBHER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING SR (F

STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 40  Transfers of Investment BAGIHER KEYFHEE
Property’ FA0R B ET
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in EBGER REELFREE
Associates and Joint F8MMERT LD AIRIRA
Ventures?
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts? BEMBRE REELP
AERIZE175%
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions B (BIRB B IIERXZRETCE
and Advance Consideration’ WEREZE
g) —RE
SE225%
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax B (BB ArEHEENTHEE
Treatments? HREBREZE M2
g) R
ZE235%
Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 1 and —T-MFE BEBUBFHEER
2014-2016 Cycle HKAS 28 S ANCS F1EREEEE
BENFE ERFE 285 BIIEET
HUE
Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 3, —E-hFE BHEUBHEGER
2015-2017 Cycle HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and —E—+FR F3 ZEUK
HKAS 237 HWFELE HELEAE115%
BB G ER
FI2REEEE
RN E2359E BT IEET?
l Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January L RZE—NF—A—B &R F
2018 E R A
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 RZE—NF—A—B2EREZF
2019 E R A
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January E RZEZ—F—A B 2EREZF
2021 E R A
g No mandatory effective date yet determined but available < 8 % 5 T 58 ) A Ak B HA M AT R AR

for adoption
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below. Of those standards, HKFRS 9 and HKFRS
15 will be applicable for the Group’s financial year
ending 31 December 2018 and are expected to have a
significant impact upon adoption. Whilst management
has performed a detailed assessment of the estimated
impacts of these standards, that assessment is based
on the information currently available to the Group,
including expectations of the application of transitional
provision options and policy choices. The actual impacts
upon adoption could be different to those below,
depending on additional reasonable and supportable
information being made available to the Group at the
time of applying the standards and the transitional
provisions and policy options finally adopted.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

The HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 2 in August
2016 that address three main areas: the effects of
vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled
share-based payment transaction; the classification of
a share-based payment transaction with net settlement
features for withholding a certain amount in order
to meet an employee’s tax obligation associated with
the share-based payment; and the accounting where
a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-
based payment transaction changes its classification
from cash-settled to equity-settled. The amendments
clarify that the approach used to account for vesting
conditions when measuring equity-settled share-based
payments also applies to cash-settled share-based
payments. The amendments introduce an exception so
that a share-based payment transaction with net share
settlement features for withholding a certain amount
in order to meet the employee’s tax obligation is
classified in its entirety as an equity-settled share-based
payment transaction when certain conditions are met.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that if the terms
and conditions of a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction are modified, with the result that it becomes
an equity-settled share-based payment transaction,
the transaction is accounted for as an equity-settled
transaction from the date of the modification. On
adoption, entities are required to apply the amendments
without restating prior periods, but retrospective
application is permitted if they elect to adopt for all
three amendments and other criteria are met. The Group
will adopt the amendments from 1 January 2018. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.

23
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final
version of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the
financial instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all
previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces
new requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group will
adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. The Group will not
restate comparative information and will recognise any
transition adjustments against the opening balance of
equity at 1 January 2018. During 2017, the Group has
performed a detailed assessment of the impact of the
adoption of HKFRS 9. The expected impacts relate to
the classification and measurement and the impairment
requirements and are summarised as follows:

(@) Classification and measurement

The Group does not expect that the adoption
of HKFRS 9 will have a significant impact on the
classification and measurement of its financial
assets. It expects to continue measuring at
fair value all financial assets currently held at
fair value. Equity investments currently held
as available for sale and at fair value through
profit or loss will be measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income as the
investments are intended to be held for the
foreseeable future and the Group expects to
apply the option to present fair value changes in
other comprehensive income. Gains and losses
recorded in other comprehensive income for the
equity investments cannot be recycled to profit
or loss when the investments are derecognised.
Convertible bonds currently separated into
derivative financial instruments and available-for-
sale debt instruments will be measured at fair
value through profit or loss as HKFRS 9 should be
applied to an entire financial asset.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

(b)

Impairment

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt
instruments recorded at amortised cost or at
fair value through other comprehensive income,
lease receivables, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts that are not accounted for
at fair value through profit or loss under HKFRS
9, to be recorded based on an expected credit
loss model either on a twelve-month basis or a
lifetime basis. The Group will apply the simplified
approach and record lifetime expected losses that
are estimated based on the present values of all
cash shortfalls over the remaining life of all of
its trade receivables. Furthermore, the Group will
apply the general approach and record twelve-
month expected credit losses that are estimated
based on the possible default events on its
other receivables within the next twelve months.
The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's provision for
impairment.

(b)
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address
an inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS
10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require
a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective
date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a
new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments
are available for adoption now.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 15, issued in July 2014, establishes a new five-
step model to account for revenue arising from contracts
with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS
15 provide a more structured approach for measuring
and recognising revenue. The standard also introduces
extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in
contract asset and liability account balances between
periods and key judgements and estimates. The
standard will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under HKFRSs. Either a full retrospective
application or a modified retrospective adoption is
required on the initial application of the standard. In
June 2016, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS
15 to address the implementation issues on identifying
performance obligations, application guidance on
principal versus agent and licences of intellectual
property, and transition. The amendments are also
intended to help ensure a more consistent application
when entities adopt HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost
and complexity of applying the standard. The Group
plans to adopt the transitional provisions in HKFRS 15
to recognise the cumulative effect of initial adoption
as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
earnings at 1 January 2018. In addition, the Group plans
to apply the new requirements only to contracts that
are not completed before 1 January 2018. The Group
expects that the transitional adjustment to be made
on 1 January 2018 upon initial adoption of HKFRS 15
will not be material. However, the expected changes in
accounting policies, as further explained below, will have
a material impact on the Group’s financial statements
from 2018 onwards. During 2017, the Group has
performed a detailed assessment on the impact of the
adoption of HKFRS 15.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

The expected impacts arising from the adoption of

HKFRS 15 on the Group are summarised as follows:

(a)

Sale of completed properties held for sale

The timing of revenue recognition for the sale
of completed properties held for sale which is
currently based on whether significant risk and
reward of ownership of properties transfer, in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below, may be different under
the control transfer model. The Group expects
that those sales of completed properties held
for sale with control of the properties that are
not transferred to customers before 1 January
2018 and the corresponding cost of sales will
be adjusted to the opening balance of retained
earnings at 1 January 2018. The Group is in
the process of calculating the opening retained
earnings impacts of the above.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

The expected impacts arising from the adoption of

HKFRS 15 on the Group are summarised as follows:

(continued)

(b)

Presentation and disclosure

The presentation and disclosure requirements
in HKFRS 15 are more detailed than those
under the current HKAS 18. The presentation
requirements represent a significant change from
current practice and will significantly increase
the volume of disclosures required in the Group’s
financial statements. Many of the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 15 are new and the Group
has assessed that the impact of some of these
disclosure requirements will be significant. In
particular, the Group expects that the notes to
the financial statements will be expanded because
of the disclosure of significant judgements made
on determining the transaction prices of those
contracts that include variable consideration,
how the transaction prices have been allocated
to the performance obligations, and the
assumptions made to estimate the stand-alone
selling price of each performance obligation. In
addition, as required by HKFRS 15, the Group wil
disaggregate revenue recognised from contracts
with customers into categories that depict how
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of
revenue and cash flows are affected by economic
factors. It will also disclose information about
the relationship between the disclosure of
disaggregated revenue and revenue information
disclosed for each reportable segment.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 16, issued in May 2016, replaces HKAS 17
Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating
Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of
a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and
liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two
recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value
assets and short-term leases. At the commencement
date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to
make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an
asset representing the right to use the underlying asset
during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The
right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of
investment property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class of
property, plant and equipment to which the revaluation
model is applied. The lease liability is subsequently
increased to reflect the interest on the lease liability and
reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be required
to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease
liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-
use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure
the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events,
such as change in the lease term and change in future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate used to determine those payments. Lessees will
generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement
of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use
asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from the accounting under HKAS 17.
Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish
between operating leases and finance leases. HKFRS
16 requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive
disclosures than under HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to
apply the standard using either a full retrospective or
a modified retrospective approach. The Group expects
to adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 January 2019. The Group
is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 16 upon
adoption and is considering whether it will choose to
take advantage of the practical expedients available and
which transition approach and reliefs will be adopted.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 40, issued in April 2017, clarify
when an entity should transfer property, including
property under construction or development, into or
out of investment property. The amendments state that
a change in use occurs when the property meets, or
ceases to meet, the definition of investment property
and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere
change in management’s intentions for the use of a
property does not provide evidence of a change in use.
The amendments should be applied prospectively to
the changes in use that occur on or after the beginning
of the annual reporting period in which the entity first
applies the amendments. An entity should reassess the
classification of property held at the date that it first
applies the amendments and, if applicable, reclassify
property to reflect the conditions that exist at that
date. Retrospective application is only permitted if it is
possible without the use of hindsight. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2018. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22, issued in June 2017, provides guidance
on how to determine the date of the transaction when
applying HKAS 21 to the situation where an entity
receives or pays advance consideration in a foreign
currency and recognises a non-monetary asset or
liability. The interpretation clarifies that the date of the
transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange
rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income (or part of it) is the date on which
an entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset
(such as a prepayment) or non-monetary liability (such
as deferred income) arising from the payment or receipt
of the advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance of recognising the
related item, the entity must determine the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration. Entities may apply the interpretation on a
full retrospective basis or on a prospective basis, either
from the beginning of the reporting period in which the
entity first applies the interpretation or the beginning
of the prior reporting period presented as comparative
information in the financial statements of the reporting
period in which the entity first applies the interpretation.
The Group expects to adopt the interpretation
prospectively from 1 January 2018. The interpretation
is not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23, issued in July 2017, addresses the
accounting for income taxes (current and deferred)
when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the
application of HKAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain
tax positions”). The interpretation does not apply to
taxes or levies outside the scope of HKAS 12, nor does
it specifically include requirements relating to interest
and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments.
The interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an
entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii)
the assumptions an entity makes about the examination
of tax treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how
an entity determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax
bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax
rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes in facts
and circumstances. The interpretation is to be applied
retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without the
use of hindsight or retrospectively with the cumulative
effect of application as an adjustment to the opening
equity at the date of initial application, without the
restatement of comparative information. The Group
expects to adopt the interpretation from 1 January 2019.
The interpretation is not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Investments in associates and a joint venture

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and a joint
venture are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into
line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and the joint
venture is included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate
or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associates or joint venture are eliminated to the extent
of the Group's investments in the associates or joint
venture, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of associates or the joint
venture is included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates or the joint venture.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and a joint venture
(continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest
is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues
to be accounted for under the equity method. In all
other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the
associate or joint control over the joint venture, the
Group measures and recognises any retained investment
at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of
significant influence or joint control and the fair value
of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of

the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for

within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group's previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in
a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, derivative
financial instruments and certain equity investments
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use
of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level T — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, financial assets and investment
properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’'s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EASHHEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b) (continued)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the

Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment

comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable

costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and

location for its intended use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

Over the lease terms
10% - 20%
20% - 33%
20% - 25%

Land and buildings

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating
lease for a property which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured initially
at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the
reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of
profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties (continued)

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties or inventories, the deemed cost
of a property for subsequent accounting is its fair
value at the date of change in use. For a transfer from
inventories to investment properties, any difference
between the fair value of the property at that date
and its previous carrying amount is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Properties under development and properties
held for sale

Properties under development and properties held for
sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined by apportionment of total
development cost, including capitalised borrowing cost,
attributable to the unsold units. Net realisable value is
determined on the basis of anticipated sales proceeds,
or estimated by management based on the prevailing
market conditions, less all estimated costs to completion
and selling expenses, on an individual property basis.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

31 December 2017 —E—+F+=-_A=+—H
EASTTHERE (&)

REWE (&)

HEEMXERERMERTFER %
MERREAZRERARAEREE
BZAFE - BFEESREMES
ZYMERE AN QA FEELNNKREE
ZEMEBENBRRER -

BRRTUEREHEZYE

BRTPVERFIELEZMETIRKA
NS REZBRETIR KA
DEADEEMEEZABRKA (B
BOBEEAMEERAN) MEE A
ERFEDREENYEEESE R
BERHEEMERE REEERER
mRMEL Z A5 BEEETKEZ
PrEfARARHEERER -

BILEE (BEBR)

BEBEEE BV EENIRERRIRK
AAB - REBEHRUBZEBEVEE
ZRAAWE AR Z AFEFE BT
BEZAREHANERBERAER-
FHERCEBVEERRNAERALE
FHANERE IRNZEVEELRRE
BREETHRENGE -AAREFHERZ
BEEZBENNBHTEZAZIR
BEMBFRER®RE —Re

117



118

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEMZE TEERER (58)BRAF
Annual Report 2017 —Z—+FF7R

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt %3 R Mf &%

31 December 2017 —E—+F+=-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Customer relationship

Customer relationship is stated at cost less any
impairment losses and is amortised on the straight-line
basis over its estimated useful life of 6 years.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The finance costs of such leases are charged to the
statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. When the Group is
the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to
the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments
are included in the cost of the land and buildings as a
finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables, and available-for-sale financial
investments, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets, except in the case of financial
assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include the financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purposes of
sale in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. These net fair value changes
do not include any dividends or interest earned on these
financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS
39 are satisfied.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted
for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if
their economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not held for trading or designated as
at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change
in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies
the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a
reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss category.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate amortisation is included in other income and gains
in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss in other operating expenses for loans and
receivables.

31 December 2017 —E—+F+=-_A=+—H

BEXSTHHEEE (&)

RERAEMUBEE (&)

H&git & (&)
BAVEFABEZWHEEE (£)

HIRAREROZITETAZKEERE
EEBRETENFZREFERRARE
BUBE BEROUFFEEEXE
ERBERAFEFARR  MZFERAR
TANZITETABREBIITETA
VR RAFEIER ZERAATETA
BRAVEGE AVEEPIRNBERRE
R-RBEAGWEFLIREE MAE
BRABREMREZRERE XK
EVBEEEHN LR A EFABRRE
Bl BRI REs - TR ER TG

B N YRR

B YR IR Ty B B E 3R] i E
ReR BYEETEMSREZIITE
MBEE-RNGFER AREEH
BIVABEHK A (RERFEEFE)
BAEEFRERETE -t EHEEKRA
BEZEINRSHMERTRIEE -
YEBRERMNEREXE D 2 BRI
Ro-BEMEREHAABER ZEMI
ARFE A - & 3R 5 FE WOk R (B & £
MBENEERAN  HME LM P

=7
s ©

121



122

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEMZE TEERER (58)BRAF
Annual Report 2017 —Z—+FF7R

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt %3 R Mf &%

31 December 2017 —E—+F+=-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EASHHEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted equity
investments and debt securities and a financial asset
under Project EC120 as set out in notes 20 and
19, respectively, to the financial statements. Equity
investments classified as available for sale are those
which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended
to be held for an indefinite period of time and which
may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in
response to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, or until
the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement
of profit or loss in other operating expenses. Interest and
dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale
financial investments are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss as other income in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify
these financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised
cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over
the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined
to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent
it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears
or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in
a collective assessment of impairment.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet
been incurred). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount
using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other
operating expenses in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a group
of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in
the statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against
the original cost of the investment and “prolonged”
against the period in which the fair value has been
below its original cost. Where there is evidence of
impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss
— is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment
losses on equity instruments classified as available for
sale are not reversed through the statement of profit or
loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The determination of what is “significant” or
“prolonged” requires judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors,
the duration or extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for
sale, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria
as financial assets carried at amortised cost. However,
the amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative
loss measured as the difference between the amortised
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that investment previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Future interest income
continues to be accrued based on the reduced carrying
amount of the asset using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is
recorded as part of other income. Impairment losses on
debt instruments are reversed through the statement of
profit or loss if the subsequent increase in fair value of
the instruments can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or
as loans and borrowings, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include amounts due to
fellow subsidiaries, an intermediate holding company
and non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries, loans
from fellow subsidiaries and an intermediate holding
company, trade payables, other payables and certain
accruals and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement of loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and

disposal.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, and
assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted
as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EASHHEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and a joint venture, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and a joint venture, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EASHHEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions would be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it was recognised as income on a systemic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(a) from the sale of properties, when the significant
risks and rewards of the properties are passed to
the purchasers when (i) an irrevocable sale and
purchase contract has been entered into by both
buyer and seller; (ii) the seller has received or
retained the right to receive all the consideration
of the sale; (iii) the construction has been
completed, and its quality has been inspected and
accepted by the relevant government authorities;
(iv) the ready-for-delivery conditions under the
sale and purchase contract have been fulfilled;
and (v) the notices of property delivery have been
sent to the buyer or the buyer has inspected and
accepted the quality of the property;

(b) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

(c) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established; and

(f) from the development, manufacture and
distribution of helicopters, when the Group's
right to receive its share of profit from Project
EC120 has been established (note 17).

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments ("equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised
in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and
end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant
date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group's
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to
be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if
the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of
the award are met. In addition, an expense is recognised
for any modification that increases the total fair value of
the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options, if any, is
reflected as additional share dilution in the computation
of earnings per share.

The cost of cash-settled transactions is measured initially
at fair value at the grant date taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the instruments were
granted. The fair value is expensed over the period until
the vesting date with recognition of a corresponding
liability. The liability is measured at the end of each
reporting period up to and including the settlement
date, with changes in fair value recognised in the
Group's statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)
Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company's functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transaction.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of
the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries,
joint venture and associates are currencies other than
the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of the overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax
assets relating to recognised tax losses at 31 December
2017 was HK$26,656,000 (2016: HK$38,056,000).
Further details are included in note 33 to the financial
statements.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for
similar properties, the Group considers information from
a variety of sources, including:

(a) current prices in an active market for properties of
a different nature, condition or location, adjusted
to reflect those differences;

(b) recent prices of similar properties on less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes
in economic conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those prices; and

() discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the
terms of any existing lease and other contracts
and (when possible) by external evidence such as
current market rents for similar properties in the
same location and condition, and using discount
rates that reflect current market assessments of
the uncertainty in the amount and timing of the
cash flows.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties
(continued)

The aggregate carrying amount of investment properties
at 31 December 2017 was HK$368,639,000 (2016:
HK$315,866,000). Further details, including the key
assumptions used for fair value measurement and
a sensitivity analysis, are included in note 14 to the
financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. They are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when
the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of
disposal is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must estimate
the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of trade receivables and deposits and
other receivables

The Group maintains an allowance for estimated
losses arising from the inability of the customers
or borrowers to make the required payments. The
Group makes the estimates based on the ageing of
trade receivables and deposits and other receivable
balances, customers’ creditworthiness, and historical
write-off experience. If the financial condition of the
customers or borrowers was to deteriorate so that the
actual impairment loss might be higher than expected,
the Group would be required to revise the basis of
making the allowance and the future results would be
affected. The carrying amounts of trade receivables
and deposits and other receivables as at 31 December
2017 were HK$76,977,000 (2016: HK$89,620,000)
and HK$820,000 (2016: HK$15,407,000), respectively.
Further details are included in notes 21 and 23 to the
financial statements.

Estimation of recoverable amounts of properties under
development and completed properties held for sale

Properties under development and completed properties
held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The estimated net realisable value is
the estimated selling price less selling expenses and
the estimated cost of completion (if any), which are
estimated based on the best available information. The
Group has engaged an external valuer to perform a
valuation of the Group's properties under development
and completed properties held for sale as at 31
December 2017 to assess if the net realisable values
of these assets are lower than their carrying amounts.
As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amounts
of properties under development and completed
properties held for sale were HK$2,937,160,000 (2016:
HK$4,105,317,000).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 3. EEgMEE (&)
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued) EET N TREY (&)
Land appreciation tax T B E

Under the Detailed Rules for the Implementation of
Provisional Regulations on Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT")
implemented upon the issuance of the Provisional
Regulations of the PRC on 27 January 1995, all gains
arising from the transfer of real estate properties
in Mainland China with effect from 1 January 1994
are subject to LAT at progressive rates ranging from
30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being
the proceeds from sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including amortisation of land use
rights, borrowing costs and all property development
expenditures.

The subsidiaries of the Group engaging in the
property development business in Mainland China
are subject to LAT. However, the implementation of
LAT varies amongst various Mainland China cities and
the Group has not finalised certain of its LAT returns
with various tax authorities. Accordingly, significant
judgement is required in determining the amount of
land appreciation and its related taxes. The ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises these liabilities based
on management’'s best estimates. When the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
on the income tax and provisions of LAT in the period in
which such determination is made.

RENR—-NANEF— A=+ BMHEM
ZHBETHBRER ([LHEER])E
THROIERAR B - AN F—A—
FERTFEAREEEFMENEESE
ZHBWE AR F30%E60%2 =
HWIEERBEL R T I ERBA L
WEER - L HIRERELEDERF
IR AT R X BT E RS
HEERAMMEMERRAS

AEBEHBARARPREANELEDE
BFREG AN L HIEED AT
BB N R T IR BT 2 B
TEMR - AR B AR TR AT R
BHEARERE T LB ER - Bt »
BEELRERRABERERAFLE
R -EBREXGBREPRKNIAE
EFENEEE ANEEENREEEN
REGAERAZFRE-EXFFEL
RETIARZRENRSIR 2 BB BRE
R ZERBAZRHNERRAETE
HARR P 1S A e L 3 3R (E T B B AR

@,
=
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Fair values of convertible bonds

The fair values of convertible bonds that are not traded
in an active market are estimated by management
based on the valuation performed by an independent
professional valuer using the Binomial Model. This
valuation requires the Group to make estimates on
dividend vyield, net asset value volatility, option life,
risk-free interest rate, credit risk, and stock volatility of
comparable companies, and hence they are subject to
uncertainty. The fair values of the derivative embedded
in and bond components of the convertible bonds held
by the Group at 31 December 2017 were HK$1,000
(2016: HK$11,338,000) and HK$82,348,000 (2016:
HK$129,164,000), respectively. Further details are
included in notes 19 and 18 to the financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and
has one (2016: two) reportable operating segment,
the property development and investment business
segment, which engages in the property development of
residential and commercial projects. The trading business
is not identified as a reportable operating segment in the
current year as that business recorded no revenue and
no profit or loss for both 2017 and 2016.

Management monitors the results of the Group's
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment loss, which is a
measure of adjusted loss for the year from continuing
operations. The adjusted loss for the year from
continuing operations is measured consistently with the
Group's loss for the year from continuing operations
except that certain income and gains or losses relating
to investments in a joint venture and associates and
financial instruments, the gain on disposal of convertible
loans, as well as head office and corporate expenses
and unallocated income tax are excluded from such
measurement.

3.

31 December 2017 —E—+F+=-_A=+—H
BEEGHEE (&)

EEH I RREN (42)
THRREHZ A FE

WAREEFRMSEENBRRES ZA
FETAEEEREB Y BEMERME
—HEARNETHHEEMET - ZHE
TEAEERKE R BEEFERR
TS ERBRAE FERR &
tE AR AR BRI R EH (HET Atk
FEGXHNTHREEEFZE - N_F
—tF+ZA=+—H AEEHFEEH
BREFNRARTETIAREST
PR EDBIE1,000087T (ZFT—X
£ :11,338,000/% 7T ) }282,348,000/8
T (ZF— 7% :129,164,0005 7T) °
TR EE NSRRI E19K18 -

RETHER

ROTEEE AEEEERMREE D
HXBEL YA B(ZF—~"F M
f)A2|MBEDH — MEERRK
BREXBOH HFEEERBFEEN
MEBR - ARBEZEFR_FT—tF
M-T— N FEHEFFRE REEN
BE AEAFETHRIRNBAZR

ZREDE -

EEEEIHERAREER IR ZX
B DOREMA D BB IR MR-
DEERDRBEREFELERT 2K
AEAFEHRMTECA2HD AERE
KAEHFHE - REFBEEER KR
BAFBRZAENEARAKERAR
BREEBZAFBRE B HEETR
AMESERRRBERRIRERTA
ZEREMBAZNEREE  BETBRK
ERZME U RERER R EERX
MADEMFEHRATBENZAES -
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REHHER (&)
(continued)
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue NTAEBZET-_A=+T—HILFELE
and results from continuing operations by reportable EREFECEEB 2 WE REEIRA
operating segment for the year ended 31 December. EHRIBEDEER 2 DT

Property development

and investment Total
NEZBRRREER £%
2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE—tE —E-RF —E—+fF —E-RF
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FET
Segment revenue: 2l
Sales to external customers WNPEPHE 1,498,255 85,987 1,498,255 85,987
Gross rental income FH2MA 22,455 16,799 22,455 16,799
Revenue from continuing REBELEEB 2 Wm
operations 1,520,710 102,786 1,520,710 102,786
Segment results DEEE (267,833) (47,058) (267,833) (47,058)
Reconciliation: eI -
Unallocated other income ROBEMEA 6,227 5,985
Corporate and other unallocated ™% & E Kk 2 Bl fi 52
expenses (58,517) (38,592)
Net gain on deemed disposal ?ﬁﬁ%ﬂj'ﬂ =N
of associates F 5 - 3,386
Gain on disposal of convertible & ARREFR 2 FI7H
loans 87,151 -
Share of profits and losses of: PERMRER
Joint venture VN (19,043) (215,369)
Associates R /N 222 (3,013)
Impairment of an available-for- AP ERRE 2FE
sale investment (67,280) (134,107)
Fair value loss of available-for-sale FJ % H ERHE 2
investments NYERE = (490)
Fair value loss on derivative fTESBIAZRATEER
financial instruments (11,337) (108,558)
Fair value loss on an equity BRAFEFABHEL
investment at fair value BALE ATFEER
through profit or loss (6,857) (198,094)
Unallocated income tax credit/ KB ERESR,/
(expense) (Ax%) 724 (383)
Loss for the year from continuing REHELLEK 2
operations KEEAR (336,543) (736,293)
Other segment information: HtpBEH:
Bank interest income |ITAE WA 2,341 1,789 2,341 1,789
Unallocated bank interest AABBITFERA
income 3,898 385
6,239 2,174
Finance costs BHREX (38,761) (77) (38,761) (77)
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Geographical information

(a) Revenue from external customers

31 December 2017 —E—+F+=-_A=+—H
BEQETER (£)

i E & K
(a) FKENHBEF Y

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

HKS'000 HK$'000

FETT FAET

Mainland China B A 1,520,710 102,786

The revenue information of continuing operations

above is based on the location of the customers.

ERFSEREER WS ERTY
BEBEP ZME®E D -

(b)  Non-current assets b) FREEE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET F#ET
Hong Kong BB 22,424 23,211
Mainland China B A i 425,508 389,610
447,932 412,821

The non-current asset information above is based

on the locations of the assets and excludes

financial assets and deferred tax assets.

ERFRBEEEMNIREELZ
FrEwdln X TBREMBEE

FOBEERIA B E ©
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue represents the sale of properties; and gross

rental income received and receivable from investment

properties during the year.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains from

continuing operations is as follows:

W ss ~ EL At W A R R

W e FAMEHEERREREDE
Bl R ERHERS WA -

KEFERERH oW HlRAR
MBI :

2017 2016
—B—tF —E-RF
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue I 25
Sale of properties Ve 1,498,255 85,987
Gross rental income EFHe WA 22,455 16,799
1,520,710 102,786
Other income Hag A
Bank interest income IRITH B WA 6,239 2,174
Interest income on a convertible bond AR E 2 B B U A 1,036 1,036
Interest income on loans to associates  [AHE N A IRHENERZ
FE WA 586 577
Interest income on a loan to a related  MEE A FIRHEMNERZ
company FLEMA 536 1,076
Government grant* KT B & * 172 7,534
Others HAi 9 146
8,578 12,543
Gains 8
Fair value gains on investment KEWMEZ A TFERNE
properties (note 14) (K15t 14) 33,103 =
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE MEMEXEERD 2
plant and equipment AE - 222
41,681 12,765
* This represents subsidies from municipal government in e ULIEE R B A T R # B o B2

Mainland China. There are no unfulfilled conditions or

contingencies relating to these subsidies.

18 B) 30 B R R AR S A
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LOSS BEFORE TAX 6. KRBIAIBE
The Group's loss before tax from continuing operations AEBREFBELCEEB CRBAIEE
is arrived at after charging/(crediting): Bk (FtA)
2017 2016
—E-—+E NS
Notes HKS$'000 HK$'000
it FET FET
Cost of properties sold* MEHER A 1,409,674 74,269
Write-down of properties under EERYERFELEL
development and completed EXKDERERE
properties held for sale to net BB FE
realisable value* 20 296,848 -
Depreciation nE 1,098 2,174
Minimum lease payments under EERHzHERE
operating leases 698 2,511
Employee benefit expense EERNER
(excluding directors’ (TREEEME (WiH28)):
remuneration (note 8)):
Wages and salaries TEk%Ee 29,399 26,204
Pension scheme contributions** R k4 58| {5+ 1,832 2,382
31,231 28,586
Other operating expenses: Hi S R%
Loss on disposal of items HENE BEMZEEE 2
of property, plant and B
equipment 764 =
Fair value losses on investment  BRE&WEZATEER
properties 14 = 34,047
Impairment of an investment REDAZREBEZRE
in a joint venture 15 - 7,745
Provision for impairment of MEBARRENER
loans to related companies HERE 22 - 12,608
Provision for impairment of Hit KRS R BERE
other receivables 20,699 233
21,463 54,633
Auditor’s remuneration T 1,665 1,500
Foreign exchange differences, net 4MEX =555 17 (51)
Direct operating expenses ARTEENEENE
(including repairs and MEAMEREEER
maintenance) arising on rental-  (BEEER&E)
earning investment properties 373 790
* Included in “cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of .

profit or loss

** At 31 December 2017, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the

pension scheme in future years (2016: Nil).

**

BREFABERT [HERAIA-

R—ZT—tF+=-A=+—H &X&H
I A AR B8 W 3R A] A R A R 2R
FEZEKRSFTEHR(ZT—XRF:
;) o
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BiEEX
An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations REFEREEB 2H BRI DA
is as follows: ™
2017 2016
—E—LF —E—RF
HKS’'000 HK$°000
FET FHET
Interest on bank loans and other loans RITERNEMERZF B 109,529 156,816
Less: Interest capitalised BT E (70,768) (156,739)
38,761 77
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERTHREARZRZHM:
REMUNERATION
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant BIE ETRE - BB R EHIZE383(1)
to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of (@ o) RMERATR (FEEEEF
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the HER)AOIE2H EE 2 FRNESHE
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of N
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—ARF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fees we 1,063 840
Other emoluments: Hi e -
Salaries, allowances and e RMEREDN=
benefits in kind = -
Pension scheme contributions RS EHER = =

1,063 840




8. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

REMUNERATION (continued)

(a)

Independent Non-executive Directors

The fees paid to Independent Non-executive

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 78 3R 3% Mt 5%

31 December 2017 —E—+F+=-_A=+—H

8. EERTHARZME (&)

@)

BYFHTES

REAXNTEBILIFRTESTZ

Directors during the year were as follows: W
2017 2016
—B—tF —E-RF
HKS'000 HK$°000
FET FET
Chu Yu Lin, David Nl 300 240
Li Ka Fai, David FRE 300 240
Li Zhaoxi ZJkER 31 60
Zhang Ping iR 132 -
763 540

There were no other emoluments payable to the

Independent Non-executive Directors during the

year (2016: Nil).

RERILEH RN TIBLIF
HTEENME (ZF—RF:

&) -
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8.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERTHREARZHNE (£)
REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Executive Directors and Non-executive (b) HITESRIHTES
Directors
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind contributions remuneration
H¢ 2R BAR&E
e L RE B MeaE
2017 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
—E-t& FAT FAET FET FET
Executive Directors: HITEE:
Liu Hongde 2t 36 - - 36
Pan Linwu FERE 36 - - 36
Lai Weixuan BES 36 - - 36
Zhou Chunhua RAEE 36 - - 36
Xu Hongge* TR 36 - - 36
180 = = 180
Non-executive Director;  3FH{TESE:
Chow Wai Kam ARz 120 - - 120
300 = = 300

* Xu Hongge is also the chief executive of the Group. *

AN TR AN EBEITRER -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERTHEBZME (&)
REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Executive Directors and Non-executive (b) HITESRIHITES (&)
Directors (continued)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind  contributions  remuneration
e 2Rk RAEHE
we ENN = 3R it
2016 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-RE FET FHET FHET FET
Executive Directors: WITESE:
Liu Hongde (appointed ~ 2Itf& (R=ZE—X<F
on 30 December +ZA=+HEZE)
2016) - - - -
Pan Linwu &R 36 = = 36
Lai Weixuan BES 36 - - 36
Zhou Chunhua BAEE (RZT—R4F
(appointed on 30 TZA=TREZE)
December 2016) - - - -
Xu Hongge* TR AT 36 = = 36
Wu Guangquan REE(RZT—REF
(resigned on 30 +-A=THET)
December 2016) 36 - - 36
Xiao Nan (resigned on ~ H# (R=ZF—X<F
30 December 2016) +-RA=1tHET) 36 = = 36
180 - - 180
Non-executive Director:  JFHfTEE:
Chow Wai Kam AR% 120 - - 120
300 - - 300
* Xu Hongge is also the chief executive of the Group. ka BHAR T RAEBITIRAER -

FRAYBEMLHBEEETHEXFRE
MEEAME (ZT—XRF 8) -

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year (2016: Nil).
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.

The five highest paid employees did not include
Details of the
remuneration for the year of the five (2016: five) highest

executive directors (2016: Nil).

hEBRSHES

hERRHFEEYTEENTES (=
TE-ARF E) - AFRH(ZF—KX
F hR)ESHER (XFARAE

paid employees who are not a director of the Company F)zMeFBERT:
are as follows:
2017 2016
—E—LF —E—RF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Basic salaries, allowances and EAFHE ZMEEYH=
benefits in kind 3,238 2,333
Pension scheme contributions RIKE T B R 87 79
Performance related bonuses TYERIRIEBEICL 1,625 610
4,950 3,022

The number of non-director, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

MeETI SR &xaHIFESEEHR
B :

Number of employees

EE"AR
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 L %1,000,0008 7T 2 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 TE
1,500,000/ 7T 3 1
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INCOME TAX

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Group did not generate any assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year (2016: Nil). Taxes
on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at
the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in
which the Group operates.

The provision of LAT has been estimated according to
the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC laws
and regulations. LAT has been provided at ranges of
progressive rates of the appreciation value, with certain
allowable deductions.

10.

31 December 2017 —E—+F+=-_A=+—H

PRt
HRAKERFALEEFABREREELZ
FERTUa A - M AF h BB S
B(ZFE—NF ) HpihRERMK
MM ZHBEREAREELMERR
SEBERIGER M ETE -

THIRER 2 BB RARTBEIEN X
FIGFTE 2 REE (A RT - T IR (E R
RIBEEERRE TR ERE

BIEIRTH R 2 BEAF LB -

2017 2016
—B—tF —E-RF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current — Hong Kong: BVER-2 7% :

Overprovision in prior years MEFRE BEEE (277) =
Current — Elsewhere: BIVER — H fth i [ -

Charge for the year RERX 25,361 1,155
Deferred T (55,505) (15,225)
LAT in Mainland China B A3 2+ 3 (E B 45,617 7,385
Total tax charge/(credit) for the year REBELEEB AT

from continuing operations BB (%) B8 15,196 (6,685)
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10. INCOME TAX (continued) 10.

A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to loss before
tax from continuing operations at the statutory rates for
the countries/jurisdictions in which the Company and the
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax credit
at the effective rate for the year is as follows:

FREH (&)
BRARAREFTEMBARAMERR
BRI ODEEMNEXFEERNREHF
BREEXEBZHRRAIEIBN R IR 2 HE
RFRERMEZRBE R 2 SR
T

2017 2016
—B—tF —E-RF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss before tax from continuing REFBREEEB 2
operations F& % A B 18 (321,347) (742,978)
Tax at the statutory tax rates AT EREEZHIA (70,317) (148,280)
Profits and losses attributable to SMhEERARIRBE AT Z
the joint venture and associates i A X 5 18 4,705 54,596
Income not subject to tax R BT WA (1,867) (1,385)
Expenses not deductible for tax NEMM X 47,492 80,999
LAT in Mainland China P Rt 2 IR E R 45,617 7,385
Tax losses utilised from previous periods @ Ff 8 1 7 i F¢ 18 &5 18 (21,788) =
Tax losses not recognised RERBIEEE 11,354 =
Tax charge/(credit) at the Group's BAEBBEBRHE-47%
effective rate of —-4.7% (2016: 0.9%) —ZE—R¥:09%)
FEzBEAR () 15,196 (6,685)

Share of tax charge attributable to associates of
HK$91,000 (2016: HK$67,000) is included in “Share
of profits and losses of associates” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

There was no tax charge attributable to the joint venture
shared by the Group during the year (2016:Nil).

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 11.

In the prior year, the Group disposed of Zhejiang
Dongyang Jinniu, a 51%-owned subsidiary, to an
independent third party. Zhejiang Dongyang Jinniu
engaged in the production and distribution of knitting
and textile products, knitted fabrics and clothing. The
Group decided to dispose of this subsidiary and cease its
knitting and textile business because it had been loss-
making in recent years.

Db EE QR Z B IERM 91,000 T
(ZE—RFE:67,00087T) it ALZA
BaRRZ [DEBERR)ZH5H R EE]
W o

FRAEEVEDHEERRZHRIA
X (ZT—REF8&)-

CRIEEEXR

EF AKRELEEEAS I % WEA
AIRGEF T —RBLE=TT -0
TREBEFREHBRAEBR HEE
Bt R AR SR H) A B Je 0 3 » AN SR BURE
EZMBRAR R EESE RS EE
B EARZEBOEF—EER-



11.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 11.

The results of Zhejiang Dongyang Jinniu included in the
Group’s consolidated statement of profit or loss as a
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BRIEREREK (&)

BREASEGABRERT FRERK
IFREEB2MIRGEF ZEE27

discontinued operation are presented below: O
2017 2016
g S —T—RF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
REVENUE I 2 = 18,616
Cost of sales 5 B A - (17,621)
Gross profit E7 - 995
Other income H b g A = 112
Administrative expenses THERER = (882)
Other operating expenses HEfh &&= = (4,112)
Finance costs WA = (1,188)
Loss before tax from the REDRIEREEE 2
discontinued operation BREIRTEE = (5,075)
Income tax expense FriS 85 X = (16)
Loss after tax from the REERIEREEBLZ
discontinued operation BRBii2E1E - (5,091)
Pre-tax gain on disposal of & B A B < B AT AE
a subsidiary (note 38) (H15£38) - 32,453
Tax expense I B 2 = S
After-tax gain on disposal LERTE AR 2 BE RS
of a subsidiary - 32,453
Profit for the year from the REBKRIEEEEE 2
discontinued operation R F - 27,362
Attributable to: TH A LA
Owners of the parent ISNEI Ve - 29,857
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR R = = (2,495)
= 27,362
Earnings per share: FRAF
Basic and diluted, from the ERXREE REERIE HK0.54 cent
discontinued operation REER - 0.547 1
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share

from the discontinued operation is based on:

ERILEERE (&)
REERIEEEB 2 SREAREE
B E TR -

2017 2016
—E—LF —E—RF

Profit attributable to ordinary equity

holders of the parent from the
discontinued operation

Weighted average number of ordinary

shares in issue during the year

BRAREBESFAA
EEREERILEREXERK

I

FRDHTEBRRZ

IAEF B

HK$29,857,000
- 29,857,000 7T

5,519,591,000 5,519,591,000

The net cash flows incurred by Zhejiang Dongyang Jinniu

are as follows:

FIRGeFEENReREFHEN
T

2017 2016

—B—tF ZTAF

HKS'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Operating activities KEEY = 5,354
Investing activities BEEY = (2,814)
Financing activities & & & - (962)
Net cash inflow WEMAFHEE = 1,578
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LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic loss per share amounts is
based on the loss for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 5,519,591,000 (2016:
5,519,591,000) in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2016 in respect of a dilution as the Group had
no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during
those years.

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share is
based on:

12.

31 December 2017 —E—+F+=-_A=+—H

BRAAEERSERAARGER
BB

BRERNEBEESEDRES AR L BE
B AAREAFEBEEBRFENBETY
A% 2 hniEF15205,519,591,0000% (=
=T —;X%:5,519,591,0008% ) 5t & -

AEEREBE_FT—LtFR_FT—RF
T-A=Z+-BLEEEYEEAAERE
BEresonTEak Y EY
ZEFEEZRZEREAERSREL
B E s HE-

BREARBEEENGTEIRIE:

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary BRAEBESTEARNG
equity holders of the parent: wm A (EiE)
From continuing operations REFELEES (288,481) (715,699)
From a discontinued operation REDRIEEEER - 29,857
(288,481) (685,842)
Number of shares
& e
2017 2016
—E—tfF ZE—RF
Weighted average number of ordinary FREZETERBKEZ
shares in issue during the year hntEF1g 5,519,591,000 5,519,591,000
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y- -BEMNRE
Furniture,
Land and fixtures and Motor
buildings equipment vehicles Total
B KB
THREF ET AE At
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FET
31 December 2017 “E-t¥+=ZA=1+-H
At 31 December 2016 and RZZ—RF
1 January 2017: +TZA=+—-HkK
—T—tF-A—-R:
Cost R 30,350 4,958 4,214 39,522
Accumulated depreciation 2BNE (7,257) (4,101) (3,189) (14,547)
Net carrying amount EEFE 23,093 857 1,025 24,975
At 1 January 2017, net of RZZ—t&-A—1"
accumulated depreciation NBR2ENE 23,093 857 1,025 24,975
Additions RE - 28 - 28
Disposals k= - (609) (948) (1,557)
Depreciation provided FAMERE
during the year (757) (207) (134) (1,098)
Exchange realignment B RE = 39 57 96
At 31 December 2017, net of RZE—tF
accumulated depreciation +-A=+—8"
nh2RTE 22,336 108 - 22,444
At 31 December 2017: RZE—t4F
+=A=+-8:
Cost R 30,350 3,304 2,571 36,225
Accumulated depreciation ZRME (8,014) (3,196) (2,571) (13,781)
Net carrying amount EHEZE 22,336 108 - 22,444
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. 9% BENRHE (&)

Furniture,
Land and Plant and  fixtures and Motor
buildings machinery  equipment vehicles Total
i HE
THEEF  BERES e HE CE
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FHET FHET FET FHET
31 December 2016 —E-RE
+=A=+-H
At 1 January 2016: RZE—RF
—R—8:
Cost AR 34,565 11,493 5,223 10,385 61,666
Accumulated depreciation ZRMERRME
and impairment (7,567) (11,493) (3,879) (7,132) (30,071)
Net carrying amount REEE 26,998 = 1,344 3,253 31,595
At 1 January 2016, net of RZB—RE
accumulated depreciation —A—H -k
and impairment ZRTERRME 26,998 = 1,344 3,253 31,595
Additions NE - - 9% - 9%
Disposals HE - - - (524) (524)
Disposal of a subsidiary HERBAR
(note 38) (H#1it38) (3,004) - (36) (488) (3,528)
Depreciation provided FAMERRE
during the year (901) - (490) (1,096) (2,487)
Exchange realignment fE X% = = (57) (120) (177)
At 31 December 2016, RZE—RE
net of accumulated +=-A=+—-8"
depreciation NGREBTE 23,093 - 857 1,025 24,975
At 31 December 2016: RZE—RF
+=A=+—-8:
Cost A 30,350 - 4,958 4,214 39,522
Accumulated depreciation ZIEME (7,257) = (4,101) (3,189) (14,547)
Net carrying amount RmEEE 23,093 = 857 1,025 24,975
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14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. BEYE
2017 2016
—E— ZE—RF
HKS'000 HK$000
FET FET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEEE 315,866 373,425

Net gain/(loss) from a fair value NEEAENFE, (BE)

adjustment (notes 5 and 6) FER (HTEtsk6) 33,103 (34,047)
Exchange realignment & 5z 19,670 (23,512)
Carrying amount at 31 December RT+ZA=+—HZEEE 368,639 315,866

The Group's investment properties consist of commercial
properties in Mainland China. The Group’s investment
December 2017
based on valuations performed by Jones Lang LaSalle

properties were revalued on 31

Corporate Appraisal & Advisory Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuers, at HK$368,639,000.
Each year, the Group's chief financial officer decides
to appoint which external valuer to be responsible
for the external valuations of the Group’s properties.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are
maintained. The Group’s chief financial officer has
discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results twice a year when the valuation is
performed for interim and annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, further summary details of which
are included in note 40 to the financial statements.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties
are included on page 233.

AEEMREYEREPRE A E A
ME - RNEBNREMER T —LF
T A=+—BREBEHMPEBITEET
HREBERAR (BLBEEABRMG
BEN) EITHfh{EETH A368,639,000/%8
ToBF AEBEZHMBRERTEERM
SNEBIEERT B BH ANEEREMEETT
SNEREE-EBIZERIEMIS NG &
2 BUMRRGHEBFEREKE-RE
B BRESFMASERTHRTF
EM SRR E BT ARG EMR
MEBRZREEERETREN -

REMENKEHELETE =77 #

— S BERY B @K TAL0

ERAEBREYMENE—PHBER
$233H o
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14.

The following table illustrates the fair value

measurement hierarchy of the Group’s investment

properties:

rREM=x (&)
AFPESRHE
TRIRAEBORENEOAFE

EER:

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2017 using

RZB-tF+ZA=t-HEAUTRRETAVEHE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
REBME EATEE EAFTEE
HHE BARE BAYE
(5-%) (B=%) (5=%) CH)
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
FET FET FET FET
Recurring fair value BEUERTENE
measurement for:
Commercial properties Eliik/ES = - 368,639 368,639
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2016 using
RoZ-A%T-A=+-BERANTERETATENE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
PE BT 5 EAUER EATAUBE
HRE BAHE BAHE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(F—R) (F=®) (E=8) At
HK$°000 HK$ 000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
Recurring fair value BEUATENE
measurement for:
Commercial properties HANE - - 315,866 315,866

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value

measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2016: Nil).

FRN E-—R/RE_FKzEBEQIFET
EER TEEARNELHE=R(=F

—NEF )
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REWHE(E)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AEEEHREE (&)
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used LT RIEEMEGHEMANEERER
and the key inputs to the valuation of investment TEHAREBEIHME:
properties:
Valuation Significant
techniques unobservable inputs Range or weighted average
HET* EATHEHEGAHE HERENELIH
2017 2016
—E—tF —T-RF
Commercial properties Term and reversion Term yield 5.5% 6%
EAME method FH &
FHRERE
Reversionary yield 6% 6.5%
RN G
Market rent (per sg.m. HK$104 HK$102 to
and per month) 10458 T HK$108
mERAE (BFEAREREA) 1028 LE
108/ 7T

The term and reversion method measures the fair value
of the property by taking into account the rental income
derived from the existing leases with due allowance for
the reversionary income potential of the leases, which
are then capitalised into the value at appropriate rates.

A significant increase (decrease) in the term yield and
the reversionary yield in isolation would result in a
significant decrease (increase) in the fair value of the
investment properties. A significant increase (decrease)
in the market rent would result in a significant increase
(decrease) in the fair value of the investment properties.

FHMEREARERKXRARAHONE
WA WA RO RIERBEERA
FHEENZERRAENENRFE
REBBEENEBEERETER-

FHUREEREBREXEFAR L
(TR BERREMERFEANE
A (3gh0) - mEFHESEBAE LA
(TF) BBEIREME R FERRIE N
OB ) »
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INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE EERTZRE
2017 2016
—B—tF —E-RF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Share of net assets DIHEEFE 42,464 58,602
Goodwill on acquisition WEmEEZEZE 7,745 7,745
50,209 66,347
Provision for impairment BB (7,745) (7,745)
42,464 58,602

The investment in a joint venture represented the
Group's right to enjoy certain economic benefits
derived from a 69.4% equity interest in CATIC Siwei

0., Ltd. ("CATIC Siwei") held by third parties through
trust arrangements. CATIC Siwei is registered as a co-
operative joint venture under PRC law and is holding an
investment in China which operates in aero-technology
business and in investment holding.

In the opinion of the directors, notwithstanding that the
Group has the right to enjoy certain economic benefits
from the 69.4% equity interest in CATIC Siwei, none of
the shareholders of CATIC Siwei has unilateral control
over the economic activity of CATIC Siwei pursuant to
the provisions in the articles and association of CATIC
Siwei. Since the Group does not have any power to
control the financial and operating activities of CATIC
Siwei, the directors consider it is appropriate to account
for the investment as an investment in a joint venture
using the equity method of accounting as at 31
December 2017 and 2016.

BERNAIZIREENSEERZEERSE
=HEBRERLHRE 2 MEMZTERK
BRAR ([HAEER])69.4%0% A
A THOBE R o P04 i BB R B
%fﬁﬂﬁfﬂﬁﬁ/—\ﬁm%*lﬁm# Bl FFH &
ERMEBMEEER Z2EE -

EERA RAXNEEHEENEE
69.4% IR AN fE 2 09 5 T 48 W e %~@
RIBEMEEROATERBT  HEN
HERBRRRENEER ICELBHES
BB 77 T A o /R O AN R B A 4 ) T
WERZVBEREE TS EERAE
HIEZEm AR GEARE YR
ﬁf’tiﬁ ’*/\EJF_)EJ:JF*E
AARERRIZEE-
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15.

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 15. RERRZRE (&)
(continued)
The above entity was not audited by Ernst & Young, LA EEBIER LR BB KL K BIRAELE
Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst & HMKERRERZ-
Young global network.
In the prior year, an impairment of HK$7,745,000 (note EF BREERARAEF—EE
6) was recognised for the investment in the joint venture B EUEHMEE AR ZRERRRE
because the joint venture had been loss-making in recent 7,745,000 7T (A/716) < BB T ER
years. The impairment was determined based on value KRABeREBANEAEEFEME
in use calculation using cash flow projections based on E-BEHReREBAT AN BKIEE &
financial budgets. The discount rate applied to cash flow Eft-RenERAMERZITRER
projections was 16%. 16% o
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TRINEMOEER M BERGE (B
information of CATIC Siwei adjusted for any differences HEFTHRZARNEZEFELARE LR
in accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying FEUBHmRAZKREEETHR)
amount in the consolidated financial statements:
2017 2016
—E—LF —E—RF
HKS’'000 HK$°000
FET FHET
Cash and cash equivalents BekBReEE 2,462 7,140
Other current assets Hine&E 29,129 49,494
Current assets mENE B 31,591 56,634
Non-current assets EMBEE 78,084 149,490
Current liabilities mEAE (44,776) (115,380)
Non-current liabilities FnBEE (956) (828)
Net assets BEFE 63,943 89,916
Less: Net assets attributable to W IETE AR A AR RS
non-controlling interests BEFE (2,756) (5,475)
61,187 84,441
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INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 15.

(continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of CATIC Siwei adjusted for any differences
in accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements:

31 December 2017 _ZE—+F+-/F=+—H
EERTZRE (&)

TRINMEEER M BERBE (B
REABRZENZRFELHE Y HE
FAMBBMRAZKREEETHR)
(&)

(continued)
2017 2016
—B—tF —E-RF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Reconciliation to the Group's interest ~ HEIREBR A & QA
in the joint venture: a2 HER
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBEHEBEZ L 69.4% 69.4%
Group's share of net assets of KEESEEERAIZ
the joint venture BEFE 42,464 58,602
Goodwill on acquisition WEEMEECHE 7,745 7,745
Provision for impairment oIk e (7,745) (7,745)
Carrying amount of the investment KEZKHE 42,464 58,602
Revenue Wz 1,305 17,756
Interest income ) B A 2,972 2,900
Depreciation and amortisation e R = (17,380)
Impairment provision* BB R~ (22,196) (224,155)
Interest expenses MERX = =
Tax g - _
Loss for the year RERE (30,158) (311,141)
Other comprehensive income HEi 2wk 4,185 (12,831)
Total comprehensive income for the year N4 2 HE 5 /E 58 (25,973) (323,972)

* The impairment has been determined based on a value
in use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by senior management covering
a five-year period. The discount rate applied to cash flow
projections is 16%.

* ZREDERFARSRERNEA
BEFEMET AHEAENENSR
EREMENTFRMBERE -HER
BEAMERZFRER16% °
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15. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 15. @& LNTE2RE (&)

(continued)

* (continued) g (%)
Assumptions used in the cash flow projections to undertake BEAR R RERAAMER ZRF
impairment testing are as follows: mR

BHEEFF-REENE 2 BETDRE
BHEEEN —FRERNFHERN X
5 30 R FE TR B R i E T A 0 o

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine
the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the
average gross margins achieved in the year immediately
before the budget year, increased for expected efficiency
improvements.

P FE — PR RBZ TR E T ARHBRHIA
I 2 BR A BB Bl T 2 5 RE R o

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

The values assigned to key assumptions are consistent with AR 2 BEEIIMNDEIE IR -
external information sources.

16. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 16. HENRIZRE
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—REF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Share of net assets DIREEFE 14,211 13,204
Goodwill on acquisition WEEMEECHE 7,500 7,500
21,711 20,704
Less: Provision for impairment R E B (7,326) (7,326)
14,385 13,378
Due from an associate included in FFAREERSEEL
the Group's current assets i NEIF/ S 10,441 =
Loans to associates included in STAREERBEEZ
the Group's current assets: mEEE A FRENENR
Loans to associates — current MBS N RIRHAE R
— e - 37,430
Less: Impairment of loans to associates & : [A1 B 4 A B4R £ Y
BERZRE = (27,933)

= 9,497
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INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the loans to associates were
unsecured, bore interest at 4.5% to 6% per annum
and were repayable within one year. During the year,
the loan to tREEFEHZBEAFRAAE ("ERERFEFR")
of HK$10,059,000 has matured and was reclassified as
an amount due from an associate. The remaining loans
to associates represented fully-impaired loans to 2§
BMHEMEARAA ("EBMZE") of HK$27,933,000
which had convertible options allowing the Group to
convert the loans into ordinary shares of E2HfiZe at
an established conversion rate (i.e. RMB1 per share).
Impairment was recognised because EtfiZ had
been loss-making in recent years. In the opinion of the
directors, the fair values of the convertible options did
not have significant financial effect and were therefore
not recognised in these financial statements.

The amount due from an associate is unsecured and is
repayable on demand.

During the year, the Group's equity interest in 2
Z= has been diluted and the Group no longer had any
significant influence over it. Accordingly, the investment
in 2% M= was reclassified to an available-for-sale
investment and the fully-impaired loans to 2%
were reclassified to other receivables.

16.

31 December 2017 —ZE—+F+-/F=+—H

BERNTRZRE (&)
R-ZE—XNF+_A=+—8 \A#KL
ANAREHERTEER  RFFE45
EE6EFEAER—FANBE-FA -
Mt REFEERREAR AR ([HEREF
Z= | ) IRHAE 10,059,000 7L 2 I HA
WEHDEABWEERRIERR BT
MEE QA RIRENE T2 EURENR
EMEAEMmEaRAR ([28ME])
IR E 27,933,000/ 7T - Hf %]
BRE AEEATRMEETERE (S
BRITARYE) BERER A2 M ZE
TER -BAREBMETAF —EEE-
AUHEERRE-EERAE MJBRRE
ZATEITESAVEZE ARE
TEARB SRR TR o

&

B U 2 N R BRI T IR IR BRI E SR

o

§

i
il

FRAEEREBMEZBRARED
REEAAEETBERZARBEAENXN
FEN A AREREBRMEZR
EEFOBEANHEENRE fE:
BUREREBMERFENERAEN
DEEH M EUER -
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16.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 16. B& AT 2RE (&)
The movements in the provision for impairment of the MEEARRUNER O RERES
loans to associates are as follows: /N
2017 2016
—E—LF —E—RF
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January ®n—H—H 27,933 29,940
Exchange realignment & 5z - (2,007)
Reclassified to other receivables EF O EEHMERER
(note 23) (Hit23) (27,933) =
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—8H - 27,933

Particulars of the material associate are as follows:

BERBERRZHBMOT

Percentage
Place of of ownership
incorporation/ interest
Particulars of registration attributable Principal
Name issued shares held and business to the Group  activity
BEe®T T rEEELERE
=L R G E B E-—E S ERZEO FEXK
EREE R Registered capital ~ PRC/Mainland China 35.6 Research and development of
of RMB1 each B E A engineering technology and
FRITARED electronics communication
FMAER technology
TRENREFBRERMEH
Lk
* Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another e WIFR TR B B RL KB IR E MK

member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

BRARAEZ-
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INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 16. BE& AT ZIRE (&)
The above table lists the associates of the Group which, FRINNEEREFEFERFEEE
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the IERAEEEEFEFESH 2AE
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of EHtE AR c EER WA E A &
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other NEBERERHITE-
associates would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.
In the prior year, the Group had discontinued the EF AEEERIEERDGEERMZT
recognition of its share of losses of EEifZ because REE W HERAEEBM T 2 BB
the share of losses of 2Bt ZE exceeded the Group's EHlaREERNZAAINEZ  MAS
interest in it and the Group had no obligation to take up EEETREE-—TBE-KX&E
further losses. The amounts of the Group's unrecognised EFRERNELHEEMTEEESS
share of losses of 2EifnZE for the prior year and Lk E2E 2D R /10,574,000 T K&
cumulatively were HK$10,574,000 and HK$54,995,000, 54,995,000/ It °
respectively.
In the prior year, the Group's equity interest in 1b & EF RIEREEREMKRREIER
{£%= was diluted subsequent to the capital contribution AEBRIEREERZRAERDH®
by other shareholders of it " {£%. A gain on BHE BERSAHEBRE R ZHE
deemed disposal of an associate of HK$3,386,000 was 3,386,000 TERZFRGZEERE
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss FRER ©
for that year.
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TRINTAEEERIEE R E AR Z
information of the Group's associates that are not SRt BBER:
individually material:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—XF
HKS’'000 HK$°000
FET FHET
Share of the associates’ profit/(losses) 2 {hHf % A &) 2 A 4F
for the year wmA(ER) 222 (3,013)
Share of the associates’ total SBE AR ZEE
comprehensive income W 58 222 (3,013)
Aggregate carrying amount of the REBEBRBEAT 2
Group's investments in the associates & Z BRE(E A 14,385 13,378
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17.

FINANCIAL ASSET UNDER PROJECT 17. EC120lEH 2B BEE
EC120
The balance represents the carrying value of the Group's HEHEARRZEEREFBME R
interest in 80% of the interest of AVIC International MEEZERAERAT ([FMER]) R
Holding Corporation (“AVIC International”), a EC12015 B JEET 2 F A 280% Hm 2
substantial shareholder of the Company, in the net HEIRME EC120BE 22— HAETM
income in relation to Project EC120, a jointly-controlled BB B T 5 = 5 AL 2 2R
operation established by AVIC International and certain BE -ZERAEBRLIER S ERE-
independent third parties, to develop, manufacture and B R 2 ERCIHEC120 R > Z AR E
globally distribute the multi-purpose EC120 helicopters. T o
AVIC International’s net income derived from Project A EER K BECI200E B 23 WA R
EC120 is limited to AVIC International’s share of income, PR BBREECI20 B ETEE 2
net of all expenses, to be derived from its interest in JEIEWM AR BRI
Project EC120.
The investment represents a contractual right to receive ZEREEAEES " RKEEKRBRER S
cash in the future from another enterprise and has been ZEHNER WEDBEAEREATHD
classified as a non-current available-for-sale financial ENYMBEE  BERAABERRERS
asset and stated at cost less any impairment losses BIER W TBHREBE QAT EMG &
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is EBRX HESRAEEARHEAR
so significant that the directors are of the opinion that R
its fair value could not be measured reliably.
As at 31 December 2017, the directors has made a full RZE—+tF+A=+—H EEE
provision for impairment of the value of the financial MZENBEEZBEEL2EURER
asset and the cost less accumulated impairment losses of H UBEELKANRBZERERBE
the financial asset is analysed as follows: DITWT

HKS’'000

FET
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016, RZZE-—RE—HA—RB ZT—RF
1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017: +ZA=+—HB-ZF—+#F
—A—BR-_TB—+%F
+=-A=+—8:

Cost (DN 39,759
Accumulated impairment ZERE (39,759)
Carrying amount BREE -
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AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 18. AIHHENKRE
2017 2016
—B-tF —TRF
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current: IERE :
Unlisted investments, at fair value: FEEMRE EAFE:
PMH Bonds (note (a)) KTEZERES
(Kiat(a)) - 83,420
AVIC Joy Bond (note (b)) EREBERES (Hitm)) - 45,744
= 129,164
Listed equity investment, at fair value ~ ETRAKRE ZAFE
(note (c)) (HTeE()) 110,380 149,581
Unlisted equity investments, at cost ELETRAKRE B AE
(note (d)) (B et (d)) = -
110,380 278,745
Current; B
Unlisted investments, at fair value: FEEMKE BAFE:
PMH Bonds (note (a)) RKTEZERES
(H5t@a)) 42,400 =
AVIC Joy Bond (note (b)) ERERES (HiEb)) 39,948 =

82,348
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18.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(continued)

Notes:

(a)

Peace Map Holding Limited (“"PMH") is a company
whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The convertible
bonds issued by PMH (“PMH Convertible Bonds”) held
by the Group are non-interest-bearing, convertible into
400,000,000 ordinary shares of PMH at HK$0.25 per share
(subject to adjustment upon the change in the capital
structure of PMH) and will mature in five years from the
date of the issuance.

PMH Convertible Bonds are hybrid instruments that include
non-derivative host contracts and embedded derivatives.
The non-derivative host contracts, representing the bond
components (“PMH Bonds”), have been designated as
available-for-sale investments. The embedded derivatives,
representing the conversion options which allow the Group
to convert PMH Convertible Bonds into ordinary shares
of PMH at an established conversion rate (i.e., HK$0.25
per share), have been designated as derivative financial
instruments (“PMH Derivatives”) as detailed in note 19(a) to
the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2017, the fair value of PMH Bonds was
stated at HK$42,400,000 (2016: HK$83,420,000) based
on a valuation performed by an independent professionally
qualified valuer, and a fair value loss of HK$41,020,000
(2016: gain of HK$12,422,000) in respect of PMH Bonds
was recognised as other comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

The directors consider that there is objective evidence
that PMH Bonds have been impaired and an impairment
loss of HK$18,795,000 (2016: Nil), which included a
reclassification from other comprehensive income of
HK$18,795,000 (2016: Nil), has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year.

18.

AHHENRKRE (&)

B

(a)

RKTEEZERERQA ([XTEZER])
RHAEROREBHERIMAR
ARI([BR]) Emz Rl REE
BAEZBRTEERETHIRRE
FIRTEERTRRESR]) T
BAEER025B T (HEEXTE
EREAEEZ2EZHTURAE)EinA
400,000,0000% X T B 4% A% 2 & 3@ A% -
BEBRBEITAERHAFERH-

RARTEZERAIBRKRESRRESIFTE
TATANERARXTETAZEAR
TR ETAETATENRRESFEND
(TRTEZERESR]) CREERA
HEEHWRE - RAXTETARER
AAEBIZEERE (AER0.25%8
o) BRTEERABRRESER SR
TEZERZ BB RAREE S
ERVBHREMT19@)FRZITES
BMTAE(RTEZERITETA] -

R-_E—+tF+-_A=+—H X TE
EREHFZATEREBE I XS ER
ERETT 2 [H1EF{E /542,400,000
7L ( ZZF—7X%F 1 83,420,000/ 7T) * K
TEZERES 2 A FER1E41,020,000
BT (ZF —/NF - F))H12,422,0007%
TIRBE_T—+F+=_A=+—8H
IHFEEERAHEMDE M-

EERR AEBISBBEIKATEEZER
E5ERME R EE 818,795,000/ 7T
(ZZE—RE: %) (BEKEMLE2E
W EH H 218,795,000 T (=&
—REF ) )FRNBREEERRTRE
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18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

AVIC Joy is a company whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange. The convertible bond issued by AVIC Joy (“AVIC
Joy Convertible Bond”) bears interest at 2% per annum, is
convertible into 225,112,487 ordinary shares of AVIC Joy at
HK$0.23 per share (subject to adjustment upon the change
in the capital structure of AVIC Joy) and will mature in three
years from the date of the issuance.

AVIC Joy Convertible Bond is a hybrid instrument that
includes a non-derivative host contract and an embedded
derivative. The non-derivative host contract, representing
the bond component (“AVIC Joy Bond”), has been
designated as an available-for-sale investment. The
embedded derivative, representing the conversion option
which allows the Group to convert AVIC Joy Convertible
Bond into ordinary shares of AVIC Joy at an established
conversion rate (i.e., HK$0.23 per share) before the
maturity date of AVIC Joy Convertible Bond, has been
designated as a derivative financial instrument (“AVIC
Joy Derivative”) as detailed in note 19(b) to the financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2017, the fair value of AVIC Joy Bond
was stated at HK$39,948,000 (2016: HK$45,744,000)
based on a valuation performed by an independent
professionally qualified valuer, and a fair value loss of
HK$5,796,000 (2016: gain of HK$2,299,000) in respect
of AVIC Joy Bond was recognised as other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2017.

AHHENRE (&)

B (&)

(b)

ERERA—HERMNEERA LT
AR ER/ERBEITZAIARES
(TERIERTIRRES ) REME2E
HE AR ER023BT (KEEEEE
ERERBREZEHTURARE)ERA
225,112,487 =RIER 2 L @R B
BEBITHRT =FH 8-

ERERABBRESFADSITELA
FENRBRARITEIAZEAIA
FTETAEANREKESF M ([
BIERESR])  CHIETAATEHLEED
BB - BARTELARKRAHFALH
MR AT AR &5 2 BB H ATIRET
TEBRE (AMER0.23BT) B EEE
IR R E S IR A EEER 2 TR
MR AR - EWIEE A RERM T
19b)FlziTESm T A ([FRIER
PFTHETAD -

R-ZE—tF+-A=+—8 =FEZ
REH 2 AFEREB L EELS LR
BRN3#ETT 2 1B 518 439,948,000/ 7T
(ZZ— /X% :45,744,00087C) * £18
2RRESH 2 N FEE1ES,796,000% 7T
(ZZF—7~F : 7 H2,299,000% 7T )
HE-"ZE—+F+_A=+—HILEE
HRAHAM D E R -
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18.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(0

During the year, a fair value loss of HK$39,201,000 (2016:
HK$134,107,000) in respect of the Group's investment in
AVIC Joy was recognised as other comprehensive income
for the year.

There has been a significant decline in the market value of
AVIC Joy shares during the year. The directors consider that
such a decline indicates that the investment in AVIC Joy has
been impaired and an impairment loss of HK$48,485,000
(2016: HK$134,107,000), which included a reclassification
from other comprehensive income of HK$48,485,000
(2016: HK$134,107,000), has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year.

As detailed in note 16 to the financial statements, the
Group's equity interest in 2 E#Z= has been diluted during
the year and the Group no longer had any significant
influence over it. The Group’s investment in £ Bffin 2%
was reclassified to an available-for-sale investment. This
investment was designated as an available-for-sale financial
asset and has no fixed maturity date or coupon rate.

As at 31 December 2017, the unlisted equity investments
were stated at cost less impairment because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the
directors are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be
measured reliably. The investments have been fully impaired
in the prior year. The Group does not intend to dispose of
them in the near future.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
disposed of club debentures for a cash consideration of
HK$1,800,000. As a result, a fair value loss of HK$490,000
was recognised as other comprehensive income and the
same fair value loss was then released from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for that year.

18.

AHHENRKRE (&)

Hiez: (&)

(o)

(e)

FR RAEERER/ERZEEZ
A F{EE1E39,201,0008 T (= F
£ :134,107,000/8 7T ) RFAERAE
ftb 2 TE T3S

—N
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Bo-EERR HETRETINERE
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) (BREREMZEREETH
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RPHER-
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AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(continued)

During the year, a net fair value loss of HK$86,017,000
(2016: HK$119,876,000), in aggregate, in respect
of the Group’s available-for-sale investments was
recognised as other comprehensive income for the year,
of which fair value losses of Nil (2016: HK$490,000)
and HK$67,280,000 (2016: HK$134,107,000) were
reclassified from other comprehensive income to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year on
derecognition and impairment, respectively.

The fair values of certain of the unlisted available-for-
sale investments have been estimated using valuation
techniques based on assumptions that are supported
by observable market prices or rates. The valuation
requires the directors to make estimates about the
expected future cash flows including expected future
dividends, the risk-free rate and the credit spreads
of the underlying shares. The directors believe that
the estimated fair values resulting from the valuation
techniques, which are recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and the related changes
in fair value, which are recorded in other comprehensive
income, are reasonable, and that they were the most
appropriate values at the end of the reporting period.

18.

31 December 2017 _ZE—+F+-/F=+—H
AHRHENRE (£)

FAN ARAEEAHREENREZ
A EFEIEBE86,017,0008 T
(ZZF—7"%:119,876,0008 L) 2
BRAFNEMZEKZE HFPQFE
BEEEZT (ZF —/XF:490,000/8
JT) }67,280,0008 7T (=& — N F
134,107,000/ 7T ) 7 Bl 4 1 T 3R KR
BERtEMEZAREET S BEERFE
ImEeRBmE-

ETHLMARLENREZAFE
TR ARG ERMRERER G S M
ZEBRIAABREMIGERKEEE
XFoREEAESHRARKRER
B BEREREHRREE ERRFER
HEBRNEEEBESFELET -EFA
5 M ERMAZLNEE R BR
MRARCERZ et A E URREAM
PEHWET O HEAFERZE B
A AANKREPRZZAEEE-
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19. {T4¢€mI A

2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FrET FET
Non-current assets: ERBEE:
PMH Derivatives (note (a)) RKTBE#ZERITET A
(Htit(a)) - 9,277
AVIC Joy Derivative (note (b)) FRERITETLA
(K1aEm)) - 2,061
= 11,338
Current asset; MENEE
AVIC Joy Derivative (note (b)) ERERITETLA
(BzEm)) 1 -

The Group's derivative financial instruments are
managed and their performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis. Any fair value gain or loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The fair values of the derivative financial instruments
have been estimated using valuation techniques based
on assumptions that are supported by observable market
prices or rates. The valuations require the directors to
make estimates, including expected cash flows and
volatility of the underlying securities. The directors
believe that the estimated fair values resulting from
the valuation technique, which are recorded in the
consolidated statement of financial position, and the
related changes in fair value, which are recorded in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, are reasonable,
and that they are the most appropriate values at the end
of the reporting period.

REEZTESRMITANDRATEREE
B CHERBTRAFEEEFE-E
AR FENBLBERORNGEEBERA

TES BT AEZ A FEEFRGEERM
REBRREFHSE MZEBERAEA
ERMSERAEREXR -HERE
EELEE BREMR SR E RIARH
EHFZKE EFHEEREERNE
HMERE MBI RAR B AF
B UREGEBERAKRZARAF
EESHETESE UAREHRZEE
iEEE -
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Notes:

(a)

PMH Derivatives represent the derivatives embedded in PMH
Convertible Bonds as detailed in note 18(a) to the financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2017, the fair value of PMH Derivatives
was stated at Nil (2016: HK$9,277,000) based on a
valuation performed by an independent professionally
qualified valuer, and a fair value loss of HK$9,277,000
(2016: HK$81,167,000) in respect of PMH Derivatives was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the year.

AVIC Joy Derivative represents the derivative embedded
in AVIC Joy Convertible Bond as detailed in note 18(b) to
the financial statements. As at 31 December 2017, the
fair value of AVIC Joy Derivative was stated at HK$1,000
(2016: HK$2,061,000) based on a valuation performed by
an independent professionally qualified valuer, and a fair
value loss of HK$2,060,000 (2016: HK$27,391,000) was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the year.

During the year, an aggregate fair value loss of
HK$11,337,000 (2016: HK$108,558,000) in respect
of the Group’s derivative financial instruments was

recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

for the year.

/A

1

Bt

(a)

FA REAFEHEERE

£4FMITAE(£Z)

B SRR M 52 18(a)Frafil - KT BlE
EETAE TARRARTEIER AR ES
FZBMARSTETIA

i 2 +F&+=-A=+—H XTE
AR IEZ’U?@EW%jﬁ#&\
éﬂfuwaamﬁzmam BRZT (=

— 734 19,277,000 7T) vﬂETE&
TET R 2 A FEEE,277,00008 T
—T— X% 181,167,000/ 70 ) RAF
FiREBERNHER

»f\\

—~ 4\\

_}

W0 BF 7S 3R R MY FE18(b)FT FF k- AR
BRETETIAEREZ=RIERTRRE
EPRZBARTETIAE-R-_T—+
F+_A=+—H8B FREBRITET
AZAFEREBIEXESERGE
RETH A ESIAERT, 000/%71(7
T — X% :2,061,00087T) AFE
/582,060,000 0 (=T — X &F:
27,391,000 ) RAFEHRAEERE
NRER °

§ R R 2

EETEEMIAEZRATFEBIER
511,337,000 0 (& — XF:
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181



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEMZE TEERER (58)BRA T
182 Annual Report 2017 —Z—+F4#§

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 %8 3R = Mf 5T

31 December 2017 —Z—+F+=-A=+—H

20. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT AND 20. RETYERBEHEZCTRK
COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR LIES

SALE

The analysis of the costs of the Group’s properties under
development and completed properties held for sale
situated in the PRC is as follows:

REEA R E Y EER YRR
EXBRRYE T RADFNT

2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE—RF
HKS’'000 HK$°000
FET FHET

Properties under development TEHAW B 2 B R AP %

expected to be recovered:

Within one year —FR - 1,239,303
After one year —F LB 1,817,160 2,150,603
1,817,160 3,389,906
Properties held for sale BIEHE 2 WE 1,120,000 715,411
2,937,160 4,105,317

During the year, the properties under development and
completed properties held for sale have been written
down to net realisable value based on valuations
performed by an independent professionally qualified
valuer, and a loss of HK$296,848,000 (2016: Nil) (note
6) was recognised in the cost of sales in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

At 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s properties
under development with an aggregate carrying amount
of approximately HK$1,658,082,000 were pledged to
secure the banking facilities granted to the Group (note
32(a)).

FA BRAVMERFEHEZE T
KYECREBTEEREKMGERM
BOZHEEREESAERFE ME
$8296,848,0008 7L (Z T — N F : )
(f1iF6) EMERABERPHHEERA
R e

R_E—XNF+-_A=+—H £&£H
IR E{E 4 % 471,658,082,0008 T2 &
TERTMELEER - ERAEER
TEEZER (MiF320)) -
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TRADE RECEIVABLES FEWE SR
2017 2016
—B—tF —E-RF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FiET
Trade receivables FEUNE 5 AR 3K 76,977 89,620
Less: Non-current portion R IR ENED D = (20,178)
Current portion mEEn 76,977 69,442

Trade receivables from sale of properties in respect of
the property development and investment business are
payable pursuant to the terms of sale and purchase
agreements.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade
receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit
risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances.
Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

MEBRIBRERBZNEHEEZEK
EHERATIRIBEEE A QRREN-

RE BB R RIFE 2 B ER G
REE - BERETHRAAMER-
ERLA_EFT R AR B 2 EUCE 5 AR
DEREBEREDHZIEFPNEE At
BEXEESTRAR ASKETERHE
FEUWE 5 Rk 2 S B R ek
HEERE BUEESERLEFE
P
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21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end

21.

FEWE SRR (&)

RBEEHR BRREZERZEZAH

of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and R EE 2RO T
net of provisions, is as follows:
2017 2016
—B—tF —E-RF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within 1 month —fERAR - 2,089
1 to 2 months —EZmEA = =
2 to 3 months e ] = S
Over 3 months 238 = & A 76,977 87,531
76,977 89,620
The movements in the provision for impairment of the EWESEZR 2 BRERBESNOT
trade receivables are as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE—RF
HKS’'000 HK$°000
FET FHET
At beginning of year F4 - 11,685
Disposal of a subsidiary HEMB A A - (11,685)
At end of year FR = -
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. BRESERER(Z)
The ageing analysis of the trade receivables that are not AERBERNKERERELERKES
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is R 2RO
as follows:
2017 2016
—ET—+tF —T—RF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Neither past due nor impaired KA AR E 22,206 22,266
Less than 1 month past due #H DR —1E A - 21,940
1 to 3 months past due mE—==MA 54,771 45,414
76,977 89,620
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired KRBT ABRBEZEBERSIRERS
relate to a large number of diversified customers for ZbEP ZEEPUBRGOEAR
whom there was no recent history of default. o
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate B A R R B R ER P R R %
to a number of independent customers that have a good HAEEBERIBECHIBLE
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, PoREBEILER ARAREERE &
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that AMZFEBIERERERE A
no provision for impairment was necessary in respect BEEEHNEEAZHEEBRBRNERA
of these balances as there has not been a significant A2 EpUE o
change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.
LOAN TO A RELATED COMPANY 22. MEEABATRRHKHER

As at 31 December 2016, a loan to a related company
represented the loan to ZHEIK (L) BEBHR A
Bl ("HIAE "), a former associate of an intermediate
holding company, which was unsecured, bore interest at
6.15% per annum and was repayable within one year.
During the year, the loan to % ¥ & Ek was reclassified to
other receivable as 3% ¥ is no longer an associate of
an intermediate holding company.

RZBE-—AR"F+-A=+—10 H@EH
ARAREMER IS HEEK (ER)
BEBERAF ([ZFHEEIK] 51—
FRZBRAFRIZEBE AR REMNE
FoREER RFENER6ISEFER
AR—FREE-FA AR FHEIX
THA—MPBIERARZHE AT
W SMRERREENEREN I EEH
b JE IR BR K o
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22. LOANTO A RELATED COMPANY 22.
(continued)

In the prior year, impairment losses of HK$12,608,000
(note 6) were recognised for the loans to 1t & 5 Fi&E fl
BREREFAA ("IERBEME") and EBEBESER
BRMTBERAR (" L/BEBER") because JL REFIE had
been loss-making in recent years and )& E & & was
liquidated in 2016, and the related loans were written

EERBARRMANER (&)

EF At EBMENBEAERETA
AI(MAERBAE]) R L gERS RE
BREMERAR ([ LEERE S 24
BB R EE 512,608,000/ 7T
(Hrate) BRI RBMELF —HE
BRESEBEEN-_Z—X EBAE

off. B ERBER D M-
Particulars of loans to related companies are disclosed as MmN RTRENERFEHINNOT
follows:
Maximum At Maximum
amount 31 December amount
At outstanding 2016 and  outstanding At
31 December during 1 January  during the 1 January
2017 the year 2017 prior year 2016
RZZ-RF
i +=A
“B-tF =+—-Bk i
T=A FRRE —E—tF £FRR —T-KF
=+-H KNBER —HA—8 RNBER —HA—8
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET TET THET FET TET
HAENR HAER - 16,760 16,760 16,760 16,272
EREBE R BE - - - 958 958
TEEBES LBERE R S - - 11,976 11,976
= 16,760 29,206
Less: Non-current portion % FERE D = = (11,976)
Current portion REHH - 16,760 17,230
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PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 23. FANNE- -ZRERHMEWERR
RECEIVABLES
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Prepayments B 5RIE 4,275 27,571
Deposits and other receivables e KA th JE YR R 52,895 52,516
Impairment VERE] (52,075) (37,109)
5,095 42,978
Deposits and other receivables that were not impaired i ARBE 2 R E R B W AR TS R
relate to receivables for which there is no recent history BIMEXE S B FEUERR
of default.
During the year, the Group disposed of fully-impaired FA-AREBEAKES7,151,000% 7T M)
convertible loans to an independent third party at a —RBUFEF=-HFHECRERAEMNIR
consideration of HK$87,151,000. As a result, a gain on BRER-E - BEATRKRERZHE
disposal of convertible loans of HK$87,151,000 (2016: 87,151,000 T (ZE—RF &) ER
Nil) was recognised in the consolidated statement of REEHEBRRRER

profit or loss for the year.
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23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 23.
RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in the provision for impairment of other
receivables are as follows:

ANFE  2EREMERERR
(&

HiEUMERZHERBESHNT

2017 2016

—B—tF —E-RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

At beginning of year F4 37,109 73,914

Disposal of convertible loans HEMBRRKRE XK (35,754) =

Disposal of a subsidiary HEKB AR - (38,501)
Reclassified from loans to an associate BRI Z QA RIRENER

(note 16) ENOB(HiF16) 27,933 -

Impairment losses recognised EmARREEE 20,699 4,345

Provision written off e E e (233) =

Exchange realignment PE 5% 2,321 (2,649)

At end of year F 4R 52,075 37,109

Included in the above provision for impairment is a
provision for individually impaired other receivables of
HK$52,075,000 (2016: HK$37,109,000), with the same
carrying amounts before provision.

24. EQUITY INVESTMENT AT FAIR VALUE 24,
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

LU ERE T ERIE R E 2 iR
BRE 2 B #552,075,0008 7T (ZZF—X
£ :37,109,000% 7T ) - SEER < BRE
EMRR -

BAFEIFABREZRARE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Listed equity investment, LEWRAKRE  EME
at market value 80,761 87,619

The above equity investment is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis. The
Group designated this investment as a financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition.

FRABRAIGETIRAFEEEER  H
R/ R FEELEFNE NEERA]
HHERBE IR EZRERRAFEFAR
S EEE -
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PREPAID TAXES

Balance represents taxes and surcharges prepaid for the
sales deposits received from pre-sales of properties in the
PRC.

31 December 2017 —ZE—+F+-/F=+—H

AMAHE

BRERBETRYEMKIINIHER
EMBEMEOBRIENMINE -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HERBEEE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Time deposits E BfF R 301,921 298,710
Cash and bank balances Be RIETEF 325,219 307,215
Cash and cash equivalents BekBEeEE 627,140 605,925

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances and time deposits of the Group denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB"”) amounted to HK$301,810,000
(2016: HK$253,965,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and one
year depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term
time deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

RBREHR AEBUARE (TAR
DA EZRSREBETETREHTE
X 4301,810,0008 L (= F — < F:
253,965,000 7L) - AR AR
BRAEEMER  AWMBIEFE A2
B IED R AEE - SE RMEEEIR
T ASEERERERARINE LR
¥R BRITBARE S B ARMEY -

FITERIET BRI ERR R H
DHEH LRI AEBODBRSE
K FENF - AE—F S TRABM
jHATE A0 3 - 3 1 RV A AT
Rl 8 RITET REMERE TR
PRI R BB E 2 BT
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27.

28.

29.

T FFH

+tF+=-A=+—H

DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

BALANCES WITH AN INTERMEDIATE
HOLDING COMPANY

The loans from an intermediate holding company are
unsecured, bear interest at 6% (2016: 6%) per annum
and are not repayable within one year.

The amount due from/to an intermediate holding
company is unsecured, non-interest-bearing and has no
fixed terms of repayment.

BALANCES WITH FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts due from fellow subsidiaries are unsecured,
non-interest-bearing and repayable within one year.

The amounts due to fellow subsidiaries are unsecured,
non-interest-bearing and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

The loans from a fellow subsidiary are unsecured and
bear interest at 6% (2016: 6%) per annum.

The loans from a fellow subsidiary which are not
repayable within one year were included in the Group’s
non-current liabilities. The loans from fellow subsidiaries
which are repayable within one year were included in
the Group’s current liabilities.

27.

28.

29.

FEAS B B 1 B 2 FE R IR IR

FEAST Y B A ) 2 FEFE AR AR R T B R
PR EREEEEESR-

BEREERQFZER

KB R ”/\757% SORE w7
FHEeE E—RF 6E)itENE
AR — ilﬁféf

FEA A5 rp R PR R X R FRIR T SR
aﬁ%&#ﬁlm%ﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁ °

EEEAY - NP o

FEH&W%WE’“* g Ty AR R . s
NER—FAER-

e R P /B 2 A
,%\&ﬁlmféiﬁﬁﬁﬁ

IR THEE AR - AET

KERZMBRARNERDEER T
FHERE (ZFE—RF:6E)FR-

BEAR—FARAEEZXRARRZNMER
MEFFARKEERB A ,\OZE\BA—
FRERZRERRMBERRNERG

AREERBEE
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TRADE PAYABLES 300 ENESERX
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end RBEHR BNESRFIEEZAH
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as 2B
follows:
2017 2016
—B—tF —E-RF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Within 1 month —EAR 85,604 10,249
1 to 2 months —EZmEA - 28,005
2 to 3 months —Z=={@A = -
Over 3 months B = E A 36,907 2,959
122,511 41,213
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are ZEEMNE SRR E R —#KIZ0
normally settled on 90-day terms. BHAREE -
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 31. HitENRIERETER
2017 2016
—B—tF —E-ARF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Other payables H b FE T BR X 10,832 10,918
Accruals FEsTE A 23,366 6,305
34,198 17,223

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an
average term of three months.

HipEAFREI TR R FEOHR A=

@A -
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32. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 32. FTEBITER
2017 2016
—Z-tf% —ERF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%)  Maturity  HKS'000 rate (%)  Maturity  HK$'000
BERF= BBRM=E
(%) HEA FET (%) 38R FET
Non-current: E IR
Bank loans - secured BOER-HHE - - - 5.4625 2018 230,134
Notes: Mtat
(a) As at 31 December 2016, the Group's banking facilities (a) RZE—R"F+ZA=+—8B K&
were secured by pledges of certain of the Group's BRTEEAERAEBEREmARE
properties under development with an aggregate carrying 1,658,082,0008 T2 E THER Y
value of HK$1,658,082,000 (note 20). ERER (Hat20) -
(b) FTERITEEYUARBEE -

(b) All bank borrowings are denominated in RMB.
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The movements in the Group's deferred tax liabilities
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33. EIERIR

AEEREERABBEREENFAZE

and assets during the year are as follows: Tk
Deferred tax liabilities
EEBEEE
Fair value
adjustments
Revaluation of arising from
investment acquisition
properties of subsidiaries Total
WK R A F
EEW
REWEZEM AFEAE &ast
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2016 RZE—RF
—H— 182 187,019 187,201
Disposal of a subsidiary HEHBRF
(note 38) (B 5%38) - (548) (548)
Deferred tax credited to ~ FRFFAEBHEEKZ
the statement of profit EETIE
or loss during the year (182) (3,026) (3,208)
Exchange realignment PE & 35 = (11,686) (11,686)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF+HA
and 1 January 2017 e Rl = I N =
—t¥—H—H = 171,759 171,759
Deferred tax charged/ FrRHk (FTA)
(credited) to the BHERZELERE
statement of profit or
loss during the year 318 (75,393) (75,075)
Exchange realignment & 5 A& 422 8,840 9,262
Gross deferred tax RZE—tF+=A
liabilities at =+—HBZIEL
31 December 2017 HIBEBERRE 740 105,206 105,946
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33.

DEFERRED TAX (continued) 33. EEBE (&)
The movements in the Group's deferred tax liabilities AEBECHEAEREERFAZE
and assets during the year are as follows: (continued) BT (&)
Deferred tax assets
BEREEE
Losses
available
for
offsetting
Revaluation against
of future
investment Provision taxable
properties for LAT profits Total
] it 3 8 R 3R
REWME THIBEH ERFEF
ZEf BiE ZE#R &t
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T FET FET
At 1 January 2016 RZF-R"¥—A—H = 5,786 37,448 43,234
Deferred tax credited to FARFTABRKRZ
the statement of profit or BT IE
loss during the year 8,330 473 3,264 12,067
Exchange realignment RS (372) (409) (2,656) (3,437)
At 31 December 2016 and RZZE—RFTZA
1 January 2017 =t+—BARZE—tF
—A—HR 7,958 5,850 38,056 51,864
Deferred tax credited/ FRECA/ (k)
(charged) to the statement BaRk JEERIEA
of profit or loss during the
year (7,958) 1,647 (13,259) (19,570)
Exchange realignment BE 3, o2& - 395 1,859 2,254
Gross deferred tax assets RZE—+F+=A
at 31 December 2017 =+—HZELEHE
BERR = 7,892 26,656 34,548
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DEFERRED TAX (continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The following is an
analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group for
financial reporting purposes:

33.

31 December 2017 —ZE—+F+-/F=+—H

IESEBLIR (4£)

BITEIR ETEERAEENAR
ERGEEMBRRRFEN AT /A
SEZRER IR AR SR E R
(R

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Net deferred tax assets recognised in &R & B T AR 0 2 T R
the consolidated statement of BERIBEETE
financial position = 10,025
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in R4 4& B ik R ER 2
the consolidated statement of BERIBEAETE
financial position (71,398) (129,920)
(71,398) (119,895)

At 31
tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$15,456,000 (2016: HK$15,456,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable

December 2017, the Group had aggregate

profits of the companies in which the losses arose and
tax losses arising in Mainland China of HK$96,615,000
(2016: HK$14,934,000) that will expire in one to five
years for offsetting against future taxable profits.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of these losses as they have arisen in the companies
that have been loss-making for some time and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

WRZEBE—+HF+=A=+—H K
EEEREBEEACHBEEBBEASEY
15,456,000 L (=& — X F:
15,456,000/ 7T ) - 7] & [R B9 A 1E 4K 85
IR B A B2 RIRERBUREF - w4
Bl A b 2 A 2 B TE E51596,615,000/% 7T
(ZZF— 7N 14,934,000 7T) Al
—ZERFARERERRERTEF -
HRZEBERRERKHATLEBECZA
&)+ B3 AR5 A 8 R AR B A A
HERABIEEE LW EERIETEH
BEE-
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33.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For
the Group, the applicable rates range from 5% to 10%.
The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

At 31
recognised for withholding taxes that would be

December 2017, no deferred tax has been

payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject
to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries, joint
venture and associates established in Mainland China.
In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable that
these subsidiaries, joint venture and associates will
distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. As at
31 December 2017, the aggregate amount of temporary
differences of approximately HK$178,300,000 (2016:
HK$117,573,000) is associated with investments in
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised.

33.

ELERIE (&)

R B EREEE - 729 B A K
MZMNETERINBRREESTRZKRE
BEI0%ENB -ZHRAERZTZN
F-A—BABEY BARZ-ZZTLF
TZA=+—H%EZWE MR E A
BHANREEE 2 RVERRET A BB
T RAIRAREZBINRE - HAE
Eims #BAREAE%E10% > AEE
PN Y=Y eaesl el b s v 3= PNy
BT N\F—A—BRBREAZWEA
DR 2 B B A YETE TR o

RZE—+F+—A=+—0 1 E®
AEBEFBERMBKIZHBAGF A
ERR R E R E 2 ARE D UK FTE
NZHENHRBRECHE-EER5
ZEWB AR - &E AT REEQART
AEEAJRBRDRZEREZ KT
—tF+-ZA=+—8 HEARRFTEH
Wiz B AR IREER ZELERIE
BEREETES L A178,300,000
BT (ZFE—/RNF:117,573,000/%8
TT) e

There are no income tax consequences attaching RABMREIRE 2R EE TSR E
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its TEo

shareholders.
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SHARE CAPITAL 34. B=EX

Shares

gy

2017 2016
—E—+F —E-REF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Authorised: ETE
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 10,000,000,0000% & f% ™
HK$0.10 each E0.108 L2 Em 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRER:
5,519,591,000 ordinary shares of 5,519,591,0000% & i% m &
HK$0.10 each 0.10/8 7T 2 B @M 551,959 551,959

SHARE OPTION SCHEME 35. fERREESTE
At the annual general meeting held on 28 May 2014, R-ZZE—MERA-+N\BBRITZRE
the Company adopted a share option scheme (the BERE L ANRa R\ T —IAERE
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and T8 ([ZA181))  BEmMAYAER 2%
rewards to eligible participants to contribute to the BEREKERENERZABEKRSEHE
business development and growth of the Group and IR BB N R A ARE B MIRIE
to enable the Group to recruit high-calibre employees BFETIWWNS B HAEEELGE
and attract or retain human resources that are valuable BEZAT -BERMAZAEUR R=F
to the Group. Since the adoption of the Scheme, no —tF+—A=+—H BEBREZ
options have been granted, exercised, lapsed, cancelled B AT R S RERTTEZ
or outstanding thereunder as at 31 December 2017. RE AR HE -

Major terms of the Scheme include: Zrt Bl T B IGRRBE:

1. The purpose of the Scheme is to provide 1. ZEtE B M EE R NE-
incentives to the participants.

2. The participants of the Scheme are any individual 2. ZEr gl 2 8E BN HET
being employees, officers or consultants of the M@ R RIEE B St RZ R
Company or any of its subsidiaries including ArZRE S4B EEMERE
any executive or non-executive directors thereof AT BEREEMNITHIENIT

whether employed in Hong Kong or any part of g%
the world.
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

3.

The total number of shares of the Company (the
“Shares”) which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Scheme,
together with all options to be granted under
any other share option schemes of any member
of the Group, must not in aggregate represent
more than 10% of the total number of the
Shares in issue as at the date of adoption of the
Scheme. The Company may refresh this 10%
limit at any time subject to prior approval given
by its shareholders at a general meeting. The
overall limit on the total number of Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Scheme, together with all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under
any other share option schemes of any member
of the Group, must not exceed 30% of the total
number of the Shares in issue from time to time.
No options may be granted under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of any
member of the Group if such grant will result
in the said 30% limit being exceeded. As at the
date of this annual report, the total number of
securities available for issue under the Scheme is
461,959,100 Shares, representing approximately
4.97% of the total number of the Shares in issue
as at the date of this annual report.

The total number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options (whether
exercised, cancelled or outstanding) granted or to
be granted under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company to each eligible
participant under the Scheme in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the total number
of the Shares in issue as at the proposed grant
date.

35.

BRESE (F)

3.

RITERBEZAEBEL A
ki ERRBAREBEMK
B A B H)fF o] H b B IR T &
BECZHABBRER AR
ZARRERR D ([BRM])BE
TEBBRZITERMNE B %
TR B Z10% ° A A A] BE
BFE % 10% LR - AR R
AE LBRRELME-FAITE
BIEZFT R L M ARITEZFR
BERITEERE  ERTER
BAEBEMEKE AT EAE
b B AR AT B L MM R ITE 2
FT A 18 K 17 158 B8 AR 4 1 mT Bk 3%
TZRDBE  TEBRATED
BTG BEZ30% ° HIRIEZ
ERAEBIMKE QAT
FREMBRETSEDBER
EEmSBE Eili30% 2z ER-
AT FREBRE - RAFHRA
B REBEZAEHBITZIES
B 5461,959,1000%  HEE R
RERBHADBITROBE 2L
4.97% °

RER+ =8 A SR ETERE
%At 8 R AR R BT E A B A
ArEIE AR EIR T &R
ERMSEERLZBRE (TR
BT EEHEIHRTE)M
BIRBTERITZIENERE T
FHRAEBER L BHMEHITRN
/%%I%(Z1 % o
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

5.

An option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the Scheme at any time during a
period of 10 years commencing on the date
which the Board may determine at its discretion
but such date shall not be earlier than three
months after the date of the grant of such option
is made.

An option granted shall remain open for
acceptance by eligible participants for a period
of 28 days from the date of the grant of such
option together with a non-refundable payment
of HK$1.00.

The exercise price of an option shall be the
highest of:

(a) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
on the date of the grant of the option,
which must be a business day;

(b) the average of the closing prices of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of
the grant (subject to acceptance) of the
option; and

() the nominal value of the Shares.

35. BIRRESE (2)

5.

BRI RIRE XA 2 RFRN B
EFgRBEENEH (HEHE
WABTFEREEBRER N
BH®=1EA) L5+ FHEA
BERSTTIE

BEHaBRER R A #&28H
HREANESIHAER2EER
0 0 78 32 A A AT AR B 5R81.00
BT

BREZTEEARTIZES
%

(@ REBREELBEH(ER
EERMIAERRE
RS2 W E

by MREZRBRERGL (FE
EH) BHATAEZEXA
KRBT B mERMT
ZBFHRHE: K

(0 BHEE-
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 35. BRETE (&)
8. The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a 8. ZitEBH T -mIFRAZ+TN
period of 10 years commencing on 28 May HEest +FEEaR R AR -
2014 and thereafter for as long as there are mi Ll +FHEMATE & &
outstanding options granted and accepted Bz mARITEEREDAT
pursuant thereto prior to the expiration of the B e
said 10-year period and in order to give effect to
the exercise of any such options.
Share options did not confer rights on the holders to BRELEE THEAZAEREINK
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. RREEREZHET-
At the end of the reporting period and at the date of RIEBRRE AT EHREEMES B
approval of these financial statements, there were no WS RITEZERE (ZZ—RF:
share options outstanding (2016: Nil). /) o
36. RESERVES 36. f#fE

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 78 to 81 of this annual report.

Pursuant to the articles of association of certain
subsidiaries operating as foreign-owned enterprises in
Mainland China and the relevant PRC Company Law,
the subsidiaries shall make an allocation from their
profit after tax at the rate of 10% to the statutory
surplus reserve fund, until such reserve reaches 50%
of the registered capital of the subsidiaries. Part of
the statutory surplus reserve may be capitalised as
the subsidiaries’ registered capital, provided that the
remaining balance after the capitalisation is not less than
25% of the registered capital of the subsidiaries. The
statutory reserve will be reclassified to retained profits
upon the disposal of the subsidiaries.

A o A B (4 2 B
BEBRNAERSSEEES H 2
AEREBEN-

BIBEE TRPEAMAINE BT HE
EZHBRAEZARERERERTEA
ADER EM B AR AR ERT RS
MZ10%BELELTEES BEEAMMH
BEEZFMBARGEMERZ50% -
MOEEAESARERZFMNEL
AlZEMER EREERCEZIHKET
ERTIIORZEMNB AR EMERZ
25% EERBERZEMBATWEE

BREROBEERBFEAM -
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PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH 37.

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

Details of the Group’s subsidiary that has material non-

controlling interests are set out below:

31 December 2017 —ZE—+F+-/F=+—H

RERFERERZZFZENE

NG

BERGFERES 2 ARENB AR
BEEMT :

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
Percentage of equity interest held by REMEFTRESZFAD
non-controlling interests of XKi&EMZE  RAEZB DL 47.92% 47.92%
2017 2016
—E-t% T
HKS’'000 HK$'000
TFET FET
Loss for the year allocated to DB T REMEIFZERELR
non-controlling interests of A & ff % ZAREEE (46,527) (20,560)
Dividend paid to non-controlling B REMEIFERER
interests of A i 2 pdi ¥ = =
Accumulated balances of R B AR K M
non-controlling interests of JEERERRABEER
KM E at the reporting date 536,193 548,868
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37.

+tF+=-A=+—H

PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH 37.
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING

INTERESTS (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial

information of the above subsidiary. The amounts

disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations:

RERFERERZZFZENE
DR (&)

TRFABLAMBRARNOH B ERE
E-EBENESRY ARINBKREMNRFME
K B

REMmE KEBEMEE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Revenue Yz 1,520,710 102,786
Cost of sales and total expenses HERAR BT (1,617,803) (145,691)
Loss for the year REERE (97,093) (42,905)
Total comprehensive income for the year RE2EM =B (26,450) (130,113)
Current assets BB E 2,205,247 3,424,363
Non-current assets FERBEE 403,187 368,913
Current liabilities mEAaE (827,341) (1,606,924)
Non-current liabilities FrBaE (662,159) (1,040,968)
Net cash flows from operating activities REEHELECRETREEFE 563,886 553,053
Net cash flows from investing activities RETDEEZHENREFE = -
Net cash flows used in financing activities BB EEMAZ B e K255 (630,849) (414,003)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BeRBEEEEEN

cash equivalents (Rd) 38 (66,963) 139,050
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DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 38.
In the prior year, the Group disposed of its 51% equity
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HE B A F
EF - AREHLEEHEES I R AER

interest in Zhejiang Dongyang Jinniu. An analysis of the ZHIRGeF - FRAEE 25T
disposal is as follows: T
2017 2016
g S —T—RF
Notes HKS'000 HK$'000
Bt FET FET
Net assets disposed of: HECEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment Y BFE R 13 - 3,528
Prepaid land lease payments AN LA ER = 2,872
Intangible asset mEE - 285
Inventories FE = 4,062
Trade receivables BWE ZERER - 3,151
Prepayments, deposits and FENRIE -Z2 R
other receivables H A FE UBR 3R = 2,174
Pledged time deposits EHEFE TR - 3,174
Cash and cash equivalents RehkBeEE - 1,934
Due to a non-controlling ERHBARZ
shareholder of a subsidiary FE AR AR = (18)
Trade and bills payables EBRESERRERE = (13,420)
Other payables and accruals H e 5RIB R
Bt &R = (19,017)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings  FERITER = (37,964)
Tax payable B RLIA - (371)
Deferred tax liabilities BEHIBEEE 33 = (548)
Non-controlling interests IR E S - 24,578
= (25,580)
Exchange fluctuation reserve P& 5,08 B K 1% - (1,223)
= (26,803)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & B A |l 2 FIE 11 - 32,453
= 5,650
Satisfied by: AR
Cash Bexft - 5,650
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38.

39.

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 38. HEMBEAR (&)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as

follows:

ERLENBARNEE RASFER
ANFEDTWMT

2017 2016
—E—tF —EB—RF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cash consideration ReRE = 5,650
Cash and bank balances disposed of FrEE 2R RRITEF - (1,934)
Net inflow of cash and cash EHELEWBARN
equivalents in respect of RekREEERAFRE
the disposal of a subsidiary = 3,716
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 39. LKERERERHT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Changes in liabilities arising from financing RMETBMEENAEEEH
activities
Loans Due to non-
Interest- from an Loans  controlling Due to an
bearing intermediate froma shareholders intermediate Due to
bank holding fellow of holding fellow
borrowings company  subsidiary subsidiaries company subsidiaries
RETE  REFER  EAHE
ite BRAF MERR DRAZHE FE i i EfE%
RITER HEX wER  Z2RRR  ERAF KELS
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HK$000
FEr FEx FEx fEx TEx fEr
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+5-A-H 230,134 475419 1,234,637 88,444 = 1,643
Changes from financing BERSTER
cash flows (230,134) = (373,852) 45,946 = 4,726
Foreign exchange movement  §ME# - 28,131 62,292 4,462 - 49
Interest expense FlEX - - - - 16,681 -
Interest paid ERFE = = = - - (926)
At 31 December 2017 RZB—tF
+-ZA=+-H = 503,550 923,077 138,852 16,681 5,492
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OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 40.

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14
to the financial statements) under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging
from 1 to 10 years. The terms of the leases generally
also require the tenants to pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the
then prevailing market conditions.

At 31 December 2017, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

31 December 2017 —ZE—+F+-/F=+—H

REBNRH
EREAA

AEERBELERORHHEEKREY
X(BHmERMFE14) BEEBMAS—
ETF-HOBER—BRABRBELHR
REE LRERBERITHNE BAEME

R-T—+&+=A=+—0 RES
MEE Y2 TG EHRN e
Ha 2 B RORERKES eERY
mT

2017 2016
—B—tF —E-RF
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —FR 23,974 19,441
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_EZERF
(BREEEMS) 30,953 39,724
After five years hF % 3,817 7,385
58,744 66,550
COMMITMENTS 41. &IE

The Group had the following commitments at the end of
the reporting period:

REBERBERRE U TALE:

2017 2016
—E—t%  —TF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Contracted, but not provided for: BRT4R & R B
Property development expenditure WERESH 371,009 328,655
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42.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 42. FAREE
At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities REBERR WARRIBomEREL BB
not provided for in the financial statements were as ZHEABERAT:
follows:
2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Guarantees given to banks for housing MAEEYEZ ERER
loans extended by the banks to the EEEZMmMARITIEEZ
purchasers of the Group's properties R ERABERE
for a period from the date of loans BERXZHREERER
being granted to the purchasers upto #EEEZE AL
the date of issuance of property title
certificates to the purchasers 104,012 76,085
The fair value of the guarantees is not significant and ZERZAFELITER MAESER
the directors consider that in case of default in payments B E—EBEREXXNFR - HEWEZ
by the purchasers, the net realisable value of the related SMFEKEHANEHEEERRZER
properties will be sufficient to cover the repayment RN& LA R EFF B RK - B I KRR
of the outstanding loan principals together with the BE_T—+F+_A=+—RHILFE
accrued interest and penalties and therefore no provision LHBRERZEREFMERE (=ZF

for the guarantees has been made in the financial —REF &)
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
Nil).
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 43. BEAIRS
In addition to the transactions described (@) KRUBBREZEMRZZZIN:
elsewhere in these financial statements, the REERFEANGETATEES
Group had the following transactions with related 5
parties during the year:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Notes HKS'000 HK$°000
=3 FET FET
Interest income on a loan MA@ A RRENERZ
to a related company M EHEA (i) 536 1,076
Interest income on loans ML N FRENERZ
to associates FEKA (i) 586 577
Fellow subsidiaries: EEIGIEAGIE
Interest expense on loans RERZRMB A/
from a fellow subsidiary ERZHABEH (iii) (101,293) (130,038)
Management fee paid to SR E oy =Nl
a fellow subsidiary EEE (iv) (5,443) (6,619)
Agency fee paid to X 4a R R B2 a6y
a fellow subsidiary REZ (iv) (115) (177)
Purchases of materials BRZMBAGEE
from a fellow subsidiary M # v) - (8,035)
Interest expenses on loans KB BERA R ER
from an intermediate Z R B X
holding company (vi) (38,598) (7,548)
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
(a)  (continued)
Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

Details of the loan to a related company are set out
in note 22 to the financial statements.

Details of the loans to associates are set out in note
16 to the financial statements.

Details of the loans from a fellow subsidiary are set
out in note 29 to the financial statements.

The management fee and agency fee paid to fellow
subsidiaries are determined between the Group and

the fellow subsidiaries.

The cost of purchases from a fellow subsidiary was
made at pre-determined prices agreed between the

parties.

Details of the loans from an intermediate holding
company are set out in note 28 to the financial
statements.

Outstanding balances with related parties:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Details of the Group’s balances with
associates are disclosed in note 16 to the
financial statements.

Details of the Group's loan to a related
company are disclosed in note 22 to the
financial statements.

Details of the Group's balances with non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries
are disclosed in note 27 to the financial
statements.

43.

BREIXRS (&

(a)

(%)

EE

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

£ B gt

(i)

(i)

(iii)

M ARRENERZFE
BB KM EE22 o

S A RIRENERZFHE
NPT A

RERRWEBLRMERZF
B8 B R M 529 -

XN ERRMBARNERE
R AR E TR AR E R R
BAREE -

BREMBARBENKAT
BAHTHENHEEEE

o

REPEERIRNERZH
TEHI B R M 528 -

TZRBEEH:

AR BRI S AT H A5
2B ERB RN 6
-

AEB MR R RIRED
BERZF BRI EREM
22 EE -

%S e PN e
PR 2 ok 2 FH IR E
SRR L2745 55
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 43.

(continued)

(b) (continued)

(iv) Details of the Group's balances with
an intermediate holding company are
disclosed in note 28 to the financial
statements.

(v) Details of the Group’s balances with fellow
subsidiaries are disclosed in note 29 to the

financial statements.

(c) Compensation of key management personnel of

31 December 2017 —ZE—+F+-/F=+—H
BBgAERS (&)

(b) (#&)

(iv) ZAEBEARZERARZ
EHRZFEBRM B REN
FF28H FE -

v AEBEFARMEARZ
REER 2 BB SRR MY
293 FE

(0 AEERREEABZRH:

the Group:

2017 2016
—E—LF —E—RF
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Short term employee benefits EHEB &R 2,470 370
Post-employment benefits ER®EF 36 14

Total compensation paid to SHBERERBAE L
key management personnel M sE 2,506 384

Further details of directors’ emoluments are
included in note 8 to the financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of item (a)(iv)
above also constitute continuing connected transactions
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

FREFHE 2E—FSHFBER
A 7% MR B LS ©

BREA E@)(ivIBZBE TR 5 ITEK
EHRAUEBIVAEER CAERS -
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44.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 44. @I A%
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of REEHR SR zEMITAREE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting N
period are as follows:
2017
—E—tF
Financial assets
HBEE
Financial
assets at
fair value
through Available-
profit or loss for-sale
- held Loans and financial
for trading receivables assets Total
BAYE
HPN§-
BREE- ERk  AHHEH
HEEE FE W AR HBEE Gl
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FET FET FET
Available-for-sale investments AHENEE - - 192,728 192,728
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T£& @ T & 1 - - 1
Trade receivables K E Z R - 76,977 - 76,977
Due from fellow subsidiaries L EE NG - 1,664 - 1,664
Due from an associate LGN - 10,441 - 10,441
Financial assets included in FABRRE ReR
prepayments, deposits HiRY RN BEE
and other receivables = 820 = 820
Equity investment at fair value ~ RAFEFABRZ
through profit or loss BRAERE 80,761 - - 80,761
Cash and cash equivalents BehBeE@E - 627,140 - 627,140
80,762 717,042 192,728 990,532
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows: (continued)

2017 (continued)

—EB—+tF(F)
Financial liabilities
g S=R

44.

31 December 2017 —ZE—+F+-/F=+—H
SRMITESE(E)

RBEMR SEF 2B TAREE
mT (&

Financial
liabilities
at amortised

cost
R R A B BR
WEt BB &
HKS'000
FHET

Due to non-controlling JE AT B /BB X Rl 2 FEHERR AR R
shareholders of subsidiaries 138,852
Due to an intermediate holding company FE PRI AT 16,681
Due to fellow subsidiaries ERRAENB AT 5,492
Loans from a fellow subsidiary KERZEMHE QRN ER 923,077
Trade payables FERTE SR 122,511
Other payables and accruals HMENRBRETEA 34,198
Loans from an intermediate holding company 3 B & fE 2 i A B W B 3% 503,550

1,744,361
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44.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY  44.

(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows: (continued)

SRMITEDE (&)

%

mr (&)

RmERK Sz ERTAKREE

2016
—E-RF
Financial assets
HBEE
Financial
assets at
fair value
through Available-
profit or loss for-sale
- held Loans and financial
for trading receivables assets Total
/NS ]
FAERZ
MBEEE- ERk  AHEES
RHIEER JE AR 3 NBEE A&t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FET
Loans to associates M2 D RIRENER = 9,497 = 9,497
Available-for-sale investments A HENRE - - 278,745 278,745
Derivative financial instruments ~ fTE42R T A 11,338 = = 11,338
Trade receivables EKE 5 &N - 89,620 - 89,620
Due from fellow subsidiaries R EESEING - 10,960 = 10,960
Loan to a related company B D AR R E = 16,760 = 16,760
Due from an intermediate PR EERA A
holding company - 5,282 - 5,282
Financial assets included in FABMFE RER
prepayments, deposits Hi R R B EE
and other receivables - 15,407 - 15,407
Equity investment at fair value ~ RAFEFABEZ
through profit or loss BRAERE 87,619 = = 87,619
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEE - 605,925 = 605,925
98,957 753,451 278,745 1,131,153
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows: (continued)

2016 (continued)
ZE-XNF(E)
Financial liabilities

MBaE

44.

31 December 2017 —ZE—+F+-/F=+—H

ERMITEDE (&)

%

RmERK Sz ERTAKREE
wmr (&)

Financial
liabilities
at amortised

cost
R 8 A AR B BR
g aE
HK$'000
T#ET

Due to non-controlling JE AT B /BB X Rl 2 FEVERR AR 3R
shareholders of subsidiaries 88,444
Due to fellow subsidiaries FE AT R K B & 2 A 1,643
Loans from a fellow subsidiary RERRWERARBHER 1,234,637
Trade payables FERTE 5 R 41,213
Other payables and accruals HihEAHRIBREGTERA 17,223
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTEIRITER 230,134
Loans from an intermediate holding company 3 & & fE 2 i A B W B 3% 475,419

2,088,713
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SRMITAZAFTERATFEER
il
AEBSBIAY EEMBRATHE (K
EEERAFEAREEERN) B
mT -

45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY  45.
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's
financial instruments, other than those with carrying
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are
as follows:

Carrying amounts Fair values
IRE & DNEE
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF ZE—tF ZT—KF
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FE FET
Financial assets BREE
Trade receivable BB 583
(non-current portion) (FERBHMR) - 20,178 - 18,862
Available-for-sale investments A ENEE 192,728 278,745 192,728 278,745
Equity investment at fair value ~ RAFEFABEZ
through profit or loss BRAERE 80,761 87,619 80,761 87,619
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T£& BT & 1 11,338 1 11,338
273,490 397,880 273,490 396,564
Financial liabilities B¥EE
Loans from an intermediate REFEZERRANER
holding company 503,550 475,419 502,961 473,114
Loans from a fellow subsidiary K& R ZH B2 A&
(non-current portion) ER(ERBHH) 556,213 648,045 555,274 646,682
Interest-bearing bank borrowings if B R17E - 230,134 - 227,430
1,059,763 1353508 1,058,235 1,347,226
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of trade
receivables (current portion), balances with fellow
subsidiaries (current portion), an intermediate holding
company (current portion), non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries, associates and a related company,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade
payables, other payables and accruals and interest-
bearing bank borrowings (current portion) approximate
to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the chief
financial officer is responsible for determining the
policies and procedures for the fair value measurement
of financial instruments. At each reporting date, the
finance department analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed
and approved by the chief financial officer and then
reported to the chief executive officer. The valuation
process and results are discussed with the audit
committee twice a year for interim and annual financial
reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

45.

31 December 2017 —ZE—+F+-/F=+—H

EMTRAZAFERAFESERH
HE (&

BEEEHERAS BREZEROR
BEtn) BRARWNERF (R
) FREEAE OREEMD) - B
NEZFFEBERR BERRNEBA
B2 FFARNRE ZHEhEM
FRUEFTOMBEE R RkBREF
B BB SRR B0 RN RENE
AHEMR - UREBRITER OREBEN)
ZAVEEESAZREEMRAE 2
RHRZEFLANEHATH-

MRS RE Y AEE MBI A
EEETERTAQAFEFEZERRERE
F-RBERSAH BHBASNE
BMITAMNBEEHYETHETER
MEE2H-AEHMBRERZIY
- EMBE TTRAER HEBER
RS EMRT N FE I 5w
HEZZEGETIMW-

BHEERBEZAFEFABR (M
FRELBFREBE)RZHETRERR
SHAEBMTAZEEA-
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45.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of trade receivables (non-current portion),
loans from an intermediate holding company, loans from
a fellow subsidiary (non-current portion) and interest-
bearing bank borrowings have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s own
non-performance risk for loans from an intermediate
holding company and loans from a fellow subsidiary as
at 31 December 2017 was assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based
on quoted market prices. The fair values of unlisted
available-for-sale investments and derivative financial
instruments have been estimated using a valuation
technique based on assumptions that are supported
by observable market prices or rates. The directors
believe that the estimated fair values resulting from
the valuation technique, which are recorded in the
consolidated statement of financial position, and the
related changes in fair values, which are recorded in
other comprehensive income and consolidated statement
of profit or loss, are reasonable, and that they were
the most appropriate values at the end of the reporting
period.

45.

EMITAZAFERAFESER
HE (&
R ATER SEATIHXRRE

=1
B

RN E 5 BRK (GERB R ) ~ REF M
BERABMER KERRWMEBERRD
ERCGERD M) Rt BRITERD
RFEDZEABRUGR  FERR K
B FH 2 TRARTZMEFRBEHR
KEEREFE- R _T—tF+_H
=t—HA - AKEAFRETHEHERA
A E SRR KB R R B AN ERN
TEAORBREFE/STEK

FHRAREZ A FETIAMBTE
ERER - JFEM A B ERIRE RIT
AT EZ A FETAGHERM R
B ZEERMERZBEREA AR
MEALXER/IF -EFTRR KA
MR R REERMAEEZ
NFEAREMPE RS MR BRRER
Nk A FERBESHIEEE ©
BEHR HEERA/RE-



45.

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEIMZE TEBERER (58)BRA T
Annual Report 2017 —Z —+FF 7R

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B1 %8 3R Rk izt

31 December 2017 —ZE—+F+-/F=+—H

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 45. €@ I A AFERAFEER
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) BE (&
The Group enters into derivative financial instruments AEEERZEARS AT UITESRIA
with various counterparties. Derivative financial BRI ARBESZETS
instruments were measured using valuation models AERG ABIBNHERIETHE
which incorporate various market observable inputs BEXSHFTNEEEERMNEHER 1T
including the credit quality of counterparties and e T ENEEESEREQATFE R
interest rate curves. The carrying amounts of derivative —ET—+HF+A=+—8  bf1&E
financial instruments were the same as their fair values. BEFRAENMEECHRETEIARS
As at 31 December 2017, the marked to market value FRARRMELANEEGEHAR-
of the above derivative asset position was net of a
credit valuation adjustment attributable to derivative
counterparty default risk.
Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs KNTAER-_Z—tF+_A=+—H=%
to the valuation of financial instruments together with a BT AMGEZENTI]BREASERE
quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2017: REERREZONHE:
Significant
Valuation  unobservable Sensitivity of fair value
technique  input Range to the input
EAFUBE ATEHEAHE

RERT BWAHE & ZHBE

Unlisted available-for-sale Discounted  Default risks 2017:23% to 65% 1% increase/(decrease) in
debt investments cash flow — BHER —T-tF: default rate would result

FEMAHNENBEERE BREERE 23%Z65% in decrease/(increase) in fair

value by HK$518,000

BHORREM, CRD)1%
BERATERD,/ (M)
518,000 1T
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45.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY  45.

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value

measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial

instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

EMTAZAFERLAFESER

BE (&
D ESRFE

TRINTAEECHIEZAFEAE

F

HUAFEHEZRE:

Fair value measurement using

BERATERETLFEE

Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
REBTE EATEE EAFTTEER
HHE WARE BAYE
(F-%) (B=#) (B=R) &3t
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
As at 31 December 2017 R-ZB-tF+=A=+-H
Available-for-sale investments: AEEERNRE
Equity investments BRAEZE 110,380 - - 110,380
Debt investments EBEREE - - 82,348 82,348
Equity investment at fair value ~ RAFEFABEZ
through profit or loss BRAREE 80,761 - - 80,761
Derivative financial instruments T4 & @ T & - 1 - 1
191,141 1 82,348 273,490
As at 31 December 2016 R-ZB-RE+=ZA=1+-H
Available-for-sale investments: ARHENRE:
Equity investments BARE 149,581 - - 149,581
Debt investments EBREE = 129,164 = 129,164
Equity investment at fair value ~ ZAFEFABHZ
through profit or loss A& 87,619 = = 87,619
Derivative financial instruments ~ fTE2R T A = 11,338 = 11,338
237,200 140,502 - 377,702
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 45. €@ I EBEZAFERAFEER
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) HE (&
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NFESERHEE (&)
The following tables illustrate the fair value TRINTAEEEHIAZ A FEFTE
measurement hierarchy of the Group's financial E&: (&)
instruments: (continued)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued) URFPEGFEZEE: (&)
Except for the fair value measurement of available-for- RBE-T—+tF+_A=+—HIEF
sale debt investments that was transferred from Level 2 B BREGHEREAFEBERTTBRER
to Level 3 as a result of significant unobservable input ABBEMERATHEENEHIRENA
adopted in the valuation model during the year ended FHAEHE-RBAE=HII E—
31 December 2017, there were no transfers of fair value BRERAFEFEZLEALETBTE
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no ERVEaEER  NEEANETLE
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets =H(ZE—RF &)
and financial liabilities (2016: Nil).
The movements in fair value measurements within Level FRN BZJAFEFTENEFHOT
3 during the year are as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Available-for-sale debt investments: AHENEBHIRE:
At 1 January m—HA—H - -
Transfer from Level 2 WE—mE A 129,164 =
Total losses recognised in B B At 2 R R RR A
other comprehensive income B R (46,816) -
At 31 December ®n+Z—A=+—H 82,348 =
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45.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY  45.
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The following tables illustrate the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial

instruments: (continued)

Assets for which fair values are disclosed:

EMTAZAFERLAFESER

HE (&)
AFESRHE (&)

TRINTAEECHIEZAFEAE

EW (&)

EREAFEIAE:

Fair value measurement using

BERAATERETATENE

Quoted prices

Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
REBTE EATHEE EBEAFTEE
HHE WARE WARE
(B-%) (B=%) (5=8%) At
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FHET
As at 31 December 2016 R=B-AE£+=A=t-H
Trade receivable JEYE 58 3K
(non-current portion) (EREEHH) = 18,862 = 18,862
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY  45.
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The following tables illustrate the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial
instruments: (continued)

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:

EMTAZAFERLAFESER

HE (&)

DR ESREE (&)
TRITAEECHIEZAFEAE

EW(E)

ERELAFEHZAR:

Fair value measurement using

BERATERET D FEFE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
REBHE EATBE EATTEE
H3RE BAHE WAHE
(F—-%) (F=8) (B=R) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
As at 31 December 2017 R-ZB-t&+-A=t-H
Loans from an intermediate REFRERATNER
holding company = 502,961 = 502,961
Loans from a fellow subsidiary ~ KERZMBAFRMER
(non-current portion) (3ERBEH) - 555,274 - 555,274
- 1,058,235 - 1,058,235
As at 31 December 2016 RZE-ARE+ZA=+—H
Loans from an intermediate REFHRERARNER
holding company - 473,114 - 473,114
Loans from a fellow subsidiary ~ RERZHBLRAMNER
(non-current portion) (FERBHR) = 646,682 = 646,682
Interest-bearing bank borrowings it S 8R/TE = 227,430 = 227,430
- 1,347,226 - 1,347,226
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46.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments, other
than derivatives, comprise bank loans and cash and
short term deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities, such as trade receivables and trade
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The board
of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group's foreign currency exposures primarily arise
from certain sales or purchases by operating units in
RMB. In view of the fact that the Group tries to match
its assets and liabilities with the same currency, the
Group's exposure to foreign currency risk is minimal.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest rate risk because
the Group's interest-bearing debts, including loans from
an intermediate holding company and a fellow subsidiary
and interest-bearing bank borrowings, are arranged on a
fixed rate basis.

46.

MEEREERERFERBEE

AEENTIZEMIA(MIETE)R
BROTERMASRERAFT - hES
BITENTIERAZRERAEENEER
KPR - A EETESENEMYHE
ERBE PIMEKE SRR NENE
R NEEREEMEL -

AEENERITAEMEENTIERRE
SMNERER - MR ERR - EERR  REME
R kkERR EFS@CFALIE
BRI FRERABE  BAmT e

SMEE LB
AEEMIINERREIBZELEER
AARBETHNE THERRE -E
RASRERNIERREENEER AR
fe& - B A 5 B P 2 B SME LB 1R
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F=ER

HRAEENGEES (BEKXETRME
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents, available-
for-sale investments, derivative financial instruments,
deposits and other receivables, and loans to associates
and a related company, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer/counterparty, by geographical region and by
industry sector. There are no significant concentrations
of credit risk within the Group as the customer bases
of the Group’s trade receivables are widely dispersed in
different sectors and industries.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements.

46.

31 December 2017 —ZE—+F+-/F=+—H
BXRAREEEERBER (&)

FERR

AEEERERTNREBRITHES
FRAIRS AEENRELHEEE
EITEEX MBS HE BB BRI
£ HE AR ESEERE KT
e UL EEMERL T EA -

AEBEMMBEE (BRAERRS
FE -AHLENRE TTEERTA -
R & N e AR TR A R (A1 B & A )
LREBARRUNEFONEERR
TTHRXZETEHOMES  BHERRIA
ZETENEEERR -

HRASEERLRATNREERITN
FZHETRS B EKEUE R G

IRE- ST EERREBREF /XS
HHER BHWBRRTESBE -ARAK
SEREESRFNEFERDS MR
REXETR REBERNLEREE
[ B o

A WA SR B T R 5 PR 55 B A 12
BB E S BALBIE TR B B R E N
H21RE
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial

assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash flows
from operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank loans and loans from a fellow subsidiary and an
intermediate holding company. The Group's policy is to
minimise borrowings.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

46. MHEBEERFERBE (&)

B LB

AEBENBEEERDRE TAERE
cREBRER ZTAGESHMIARY
BEE (MEKE SRR WA
LR EEEENRERE -

AEENBERZEBNMNARTERR
KERAZMBARRTEZERATNE
FARBEBENFEENER LN T
- AEBHNHREBEERERE-

RBERR NREBERCITAERE
BNz BaEIHERNT

2017
“E-t%
3to
Less than less than
On demand 3 months 12 months 1-5 years Total
ZEAR
DR
RERE PR=M@EA +=f8A —-2HE &3t
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
FET FET FAT FET FET
Due to non-controlling FENHBDR 2 Rk
shareholders of subsidiaries P 138,852 = = = 138,852
Due to an intermediate JERHREER AR
holding company 16,681 = = = 16,681
Due to fellow subsidiaries ERRZHB AR 1,002 4,490 - - 5,492
Loans from a fellow subsidiary & & [F &K B A 715
B - - 409,775 664,495 1,074,270
Trade payables ERE SRR - 122,511 - - 122,511
Other payables and accruals £/t & 1 78 [z
B ER - 34,198 - - 34,198
Loans from an intermediate ~ REFEZER AN
holding company B0 - 7,553 22,660 558,186 588,399
Guarantee given to banks mRITRE 2 ER
(note 42) (Brit42) 104,012 = = = 104,012
260,547 168,752 432,435 1,222,681 2,084,415
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the

46. MHEBEERFERBE (&)

REMERR (F)

RBERAR NEBEERSITHER
BRRNR U BAEIHMEROT:

contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows: (&)
(continued)
2016
—ETRF
3 to
Less than less than
On demand 3 months 12 months 1-5 years Total
ZEAR
REXK PRZER +=M@A —EhfF Gl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FHET FET
Due to non-controlling ERWBARZ
shareholders of subsidiaries  FEIFRRAR R 88,444 = = = 88,444
Due to fellow subsidiaries ERRZMB AR 717 = 926 = 1,643
Loans from a fellow subsidiary & &[5 &K B2 71&)
B - 566,006 30,922 707,765 1,304,693
Trade payables ERESHER - 41,213 - = 41,213
Other payables and accruals £ {1 JE 1 78 &
B ER - 17,223 - - 17,223
Interest-bearing bank FERITER
borrowings - 3,143 12,571 242,705 258,419
Loans from an intermediate R A RHER A A
holding company ¢ - 7,131 21,394 553,863 582,388
Guarantee given to banks mRITR A 2 ER
(note 42) (Hiitaz) 76,085 - - - 76,085
165,246 634,716 65,813 1,504,333 2,370,108
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 46. BIHEREEBEEREE (&)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of
financial instruments decrease as a result of changes in
the levels of equity indices and the value of individual
securities. The Group is exposed to equity price risk
arising from a listed equity investment classified as a
trading equity investment (note 24) as at 31 December
2017. The Group’s listed equity investment is listed on
the Stock Exchange and is valued at quoted market price
at the end of the reporting period.

The market equity index for the following stock
exchange, at the close of business of the nearest trading
day in the year to the end of the reporting period, and
its respective highest and lowest points during the year
was as follows:

I B L B

fi% B @ B BN A AR S 48 BUK S (B Bl 75 5
EEEHMELSBR T EAFLERED
B - R _FT—tF+_A=1+—80"
REBERIXDBREERNKE (K
id24) 7 FRAIREMEE ZRER
o ANEE ETRARE TR RFT £
W Wi E AR HRmEGE

FARBOREMRZ S AETHE T
EHRHAMEREEERERFALZ
R MRERBNT

31 December 31 December

2017 High/low 2016 High/low

“E-t% 2017 X% 2016

+=A B/ +=A /1

=t-B —Z-t% =+-B ZE-XF

Hong Kong - Hang Seng Index ~ EB—E4EH 29,919 30,200/21,884 22,001 22,070/21,819
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to
every 1% change in the fair values of the listed equity
investments and the underlying equity investments
of the derivative financial instruments, with all other
variables held constant and before any impact on tax,
based on their carrying amounts at the end of the

reporting period.

31 December 2017 —ZE—+F+-/F=+—H
46. MHKEREEBERBE (&)

RERE (&)

TR -EMEEMAIZERERT
AT RAZENGET ER®RE
MR EMRARERITESR T A ZA
BARAREZREE EQXFESHE
1% R R -

Carrying Increase/
amount (decrease) Increase/
of financial in profit (decrease)
instruments before tax in equity*
EMIAEZ Bt A0 R REEEM
IREME ®mORD) (ma) *
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEIT FAET FET
2017 —E—-tF
Investment listed REE LM ZIRE
in Hong Kong
— Available-for-sale — A EWIRE 1,104/
investment 110,380 - (1,104)
- Equity investment at — B R FEFAE
fair value through & R E 808/
profit or loss 80,761 (808) =
PMH Derivatives RKTNEZERITETA = - -
AVIC Joy Derivative FRERITETLA 1 - -
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 46. HKEREEBEREE (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Equity price risk (continued) IRE R (2)
Carrying Increase/
amount (decrease) Increase/
of financial in profit (decrease)
instruments before tax in equity*
@I AEY T8 A& g,
FREE  EnS ORd) O ) =
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET
2016 —E-REF
Investment listed REBLETMZIRE
in Hong Kong
— Available-for-sale — A HHENRE 1,496/
investment 149,581 - (1,496)
— Equity investment at — AV EF AR
fair value through W RAKE 877/
profit or loss 87,619 (877) =
PMH Derivatives RATBEERITELA 176/
9,277 (176) -
AVIC Joy Derivative EFRERITAETLA 70/
2,061 (155) _

* Excluding retained profits

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and

*

ErER
AEEEREENERBR REFRAN
SEAGBREZRRNEN RAFER
MEBEARLR UXHHEREE FM
RAHRREE-

maximise shareholders’ value.

NEEE G
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. Except for the composition of debt in the
calculation of the gearing ratio, no changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 December 2017 and
31 December 2016.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is the interest-bearing debts divided by equity
attributable to owners of the parent plus the interest-
bearing debts. Interest-bearing debts include loans from
an intermediate holding company, loans from a fellow
subsidiary and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods
were as follows:

46.

31 December 2017 —ZE—+F+-/F=+—H
BXRAREEEERBER (&)

EREE (&)

AEERBEESINESHRBABEE
WERSE EREERNERLELHA
B GHEFNABRERER AEE
EERHERRRRENRE MRER
Bl &AL FEITHR - AEBTEXH N
EAINBHEMZ EERF R -BREITEER
BREERZAEBERINN BEZ=Z—+t
Ft+ZA=+—HERZZE—X"F+=A
=+—BIEFEAN EXEB2BE:
2R S A8 e A M 2R B o

AEBEAERBER (FFEEBRUT
REITEEREER NG BER) BT
BAMBR -t EEBRERS PEE
BABNER KEBRRMEARNE
FEETRIRITER -

BERRZERBERNT

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET T
Loans from an intermediate REFEZERABHER
holding company 503,550 475,419
Loans from a fellow subsidiary KERZEZMBARNER 923,077 1,234,637
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFERITER - 230,134
Interest-bearing debts FBER 1,426,627 1,940,190
Equity attributable to owners BRAGIMAEEGEER
of the parent 1,732,505 1,973,272
Equity attributable to owners of the [SY/NIN P oy il
parent plus the interest-bearing debts 5 8 & 3,159,132 3,913,462
Gearing ratio BERBEXR 45% 50%
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47. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

On 7 February 2018, the Company completed
the acquisition of the entire issued share
capital of Motto Investment Limited (“Motto”)
and the shareholder’s loan owing by Motto
to AVIC International (HK) Group Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company (the
“Acquisition”), at an aggregate consideration
of HK$2,400,000,000, out of which
HK$1,000,000,000 was satisfied by cash and
HK$1,400,000,000 was satisfied by way of
allotment and issue of shares of the Company.
Further details of the Acquisition were included
in the circular of the Company dated 29
December 2017. Accordingly, immediately after
the completion of the Acquisition, the issued
share capital of the Company increased to
HK$930,337,478, and the total number of issued
shares increased to 9,303,374,783.

Because the Acquisition was effected shortly
before the date of approval of these financial
statements, it is not practicable to disclose further
details about the Acquisition.

On 6 March 2018, AVIC Joy Convertible Bond
with a principal amount of HK$51,776,000
matured and was redeemed by AVIC Joy.

47.

BEMREE

(a)

RZE—-—NE-_AtBH AR
&) 5t Ak U BEMotto Investment
Limited ([Motto ] ) Z 2 &2
1T A R MottofT K A R A
TERFRHIMER (BH)EHR
BERAFRIZBREER([KESE
H]|) #R{E/52,400,000,000
77t E#1,000,000,0008 7T
LAIR & )5 » ™1,400,000,000
75 7T B AR 2 B AR 10 B B K 2%
TANEMN - WEEENE—$
HBEERARRARZZT—t
Fr+ZAZtThAZEEAN-E
b BRERBEEEMRE AR
A B2 1T IR AL £930,337,478
B MBBEITROHBEEE
9,303,374,7830% °

e A M B S A AR B A SR
BT A SRR - R
BEE S HELTYET
7o

R-ZZE—N\FE=ZAH HBH=ER
TR PTE 1T A S EE A51,776,000
BrsaRESEE WE S
ERERED -
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF  48.

THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position

of the Company at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:

R BB E

BB RRRNERE R BN K

ERBIIMT -

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BRE R 22,424 23,211
Investments in subsidiaries MBARZIRE 863,978 1,726,465
Total non-current assets IERBEELE 886,402 1,749,676
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and TERFIE mE KEM
other receivables JrE Ui BR 3k 370 840
Due from a subsidiary FE W B BB A R - 955
Cash and cash equivalents BekBReEE 319,818 346,020
Total current assets MEEELE 320,188 347,815
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Other payables and accruals Efb I RIBRERTE A 6,227 2,358
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 313,961 345,457
Net assets BEFE 1,200,363 2,095,133
EQUITY R
Issued capital BEITRA 551,959 551,959
Reserves (Note) e (A at) 648,404 1,543,174
Total equity EmBE 1,200,363 2,095,133
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49.

tFE+-A=+—H

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 48. ZARQATHHEMRRE (&)
THE COMPANY (continued)
Note: Biat -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RAFREEERT
Share
premium Contributed Retained
account surplus profits Total
B 17 % E R AR BERA &%t
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2016 RZE—XRF—A— 609,080 5,243 29,936 644,259
Total comprehensive income AEZEP LT
for the year - - 898,915 898,915
At 31 December 2016 and RZE—XR"F+=A
1 January 2017 =t+—BR=ZFT—tF
—H—H 609,080 5,243 928,851 1,543,174
Total comprehensive income REZHERELTE
for the year = = (894,770) (894,770)
At 31 December 2017 RZT—+ &
+=-—A=+—H 609,080 5,243 34,081 648,404
The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess RARZBABHRARAAREEREAR
of the consolidated net asset value of Far East Aluminium (B.V.l.) ER—NAhh—F+— A=+ HE AFar East
Limited on 20 November 1991, when its entire issued share capital Aluminium (B.V.I.) Limited2 & & 217 i% B -
was acquired by the Company pursuant to a group reorganisation, Far East Aluminium (B.V.l.) LimitedZ 45 & & &
over the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued in FEBBANTMEABEBREMBITZRMOHE
consideration for such acquisition, net of accumulated losses of BB YENMRRBEFEEEZIART
the Company set off in the prior years. Under the Companies Act 2EEE BEEEEQTE-—NN—KQF
of 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed surplus of the Company is ZEANBBEETEATAHSIRTERE-
distributable to shareholders under certain circumstances.
The Company’s share premium account of HK$609,080,000 (2016: AR _ZFE—tF+_A=Z+—8Bz2K
HK$609,080,000) as at 31 December 2017 may be distributed in ) % 8 ﬁE609 080,000/ 7T ( =T — /X% :
the form of fully paid bonus shares. 609,080,000 7T ) A LA R AT AR 5 N DI °
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 49. IR ZHLE

STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 14 March 2018.

MBRREVR-F-NF=ZATHAL
ExgENEENE-
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REWE
Attributable
interest of
the Group
Location Use Tenure rTEE
ih 2h Jiik=S EizR EhER
3/F to 13/F, Phase A Office Medium term 52.08%

The International Square WAE A H

Shahekou District
Dalian City
Liaoning Province
The PRC

EREEAETYTOE

B RR B S
ABI=ZE+=#&

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PROPERTIES FOR SALE

BRRPYE BEHEZCTHRUE
Attributable
Stage of interest of
Gross completion the Group
Location Use Sitearea  floorarea I rEE
it 26 A% HwERHE HEEEE THRER LR
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(FmAK)  (FHK)
The International Square Commercial/ 46,938 435,609 Partly completed 52.08%
Shahekou District residential and partly work
Dalian City ¥/ EE in progress
Liaoning Province BHEERIR
The PRC Biin Ti2ETH
FREEERNETAN AR
H B R E 5
Liangjiangxin District Commercial/ 375,252 401,514 Work in progress 99%
Chonggqing City residential TRETH
The PRC MR/ EE

PEEETMLNE

233



234

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEMZE TEERER (58)BRAF
Annual Report 2017 —Z—+FF7R

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY I F B &=

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-

controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial

years, as extracted from the published audited financial

statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set

out below. This summary is not part of the audited financial

AEEBEREVRFENEEREE AF
MEERES AT DR NREE
BERB®E YEFEEEEEFOE- U

EMBUFRBZY B REROMN

statements.
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+-HLEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
“BE-t& —T-RF —T-1Ff —ET-NF —FT-=%
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
RESULTS 4
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FELEXY
Revenue e 1,520,710 102,786 2,154,988 17,443 =
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BREAER (FE) (321,347)  (742,978) 205,573 50,025 483,143
Income tax credit/(expense) FiEREe,/ (AX) (15,196) 6,685 (108,057) (569) (81,117)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FROM ~ REBEKEEK 2
CONTINUING OPERATIONS KERF/ (BR) (336,543)  (736,293) 97,516 49,456 402,026
DISCONTINUED OPERATION DRIEEEER
Profit/(loss) for the year from a RABRIEEEK 2
discontinued operation KERR,/ (BE]) - 27,362 (14,056) (43,509) (5,351)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR KERHN/ (BE) (336,543)  (708,931) 83,460 5,947 396,675
Attributable to: TAIALER:
Owners of the parent BARMEE (288,481) (685,842 41,820 27,266 397,242
Non-controlling interests R ER (48,062) (23,089) 41,640 (21,319) (567)
(336,543)  (708,931) 83,460 5,947 396,675
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON- EE BER
CONTROLLING INTERESTS FERER
Total assets BEEE 4,384,075 5703073 6,417,546 8,680,613 2,348,352
Total liabilities BfEHE (2,112,143)  (3,176,320)  (3,085,888) (5,318,852)  (118,040)
Non-controlling interests BRI (539,427)  (553,481)  (594,124)  (578,390) (5,082)
1,732,505 1,973,272 2,737,534 2,783,371 2,225,230
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
DNFEHR

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

Unit B, 15th Floor, United Centre
95 Queensway, Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRARS
Principal registrars

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HM 08

Bermuda

Hong Kong registrars

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.avic.com.hk

STOCK CODE
232

MMBERTEEEMR

BELEEISH
S—H 0 15EBE

RIDBFETE
FRRMDBFETE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HM 08

Bermuda
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